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KING—

KING, Philip Gidiey, Governor of
New South Wales, born at Launceston,
Cornwall, April 23, 1758. He was the
son of Phillip King of that town; received
his early education from Mr. Bailey,
of Yarmouth; was midshipman at the age
of twelve, and went to the East Indies
on board the “ Swallow,” frigate, Captain
Shirley. At seventeen he returned to
England; in 1775 went on active service
in the Liverpool to Virginia, where he re-
mained untilthe wreck of the vessel inDela-
ware Bay; entered the “ Princess Royal ”
October, 1778; on November 26th was
made a lieutenant by Admiral Byron,
and appointed to the “Renown”; re-
turned to England in the subsequent
year; served in the Channel on board
the “ Kite,” cutter, and *“ Ariadne,”
frigate, till the beginning of 1783; with
Captain Arthur Phillip he went to the East
Indies as lieutenant of the “Europe,” in
January, 1783, whence he returned on
the restoration of complete peace in
1784; on October 25, 1786, King was
appointed lieutenant of the “ Sirius,” when
theexpeditionto New South Wales was pro-
jected; he accompanied the “First Fleet,”
and landed with Captain Phillip, in the
“Supply,"at Botany Bay, January 18,1788;
appointed Superintendent and Commandant
of Norfolk Island by Governor Phillip,
February 12, 1788; sailed in the armed
tender “ Supply,” with his party of 24 per-
sons from Port Jackson three days after-
wards, landed and formed the first British
settlement at Norfolk Island, March 5,
1788; remained there until March 24,
1790, then sailed for England; returned in
the “ Gorgon” September 21, 1791, with
the rank of Commander in the Navy and a
commission as Lieutenant-Governor of Nor-
folk Island; at the end of November pro-
ceeded to that place and remained there
until he was appointed Governor of New
South Wales, September 28, 1800, and
acted in that capacity until August 12,
1806; he married in 1790 Anna Josepha,
daughter of Mr. Coombes, of Bedford,
England, and had several children. He died
at Tooting, Surrey, on September 3, 1808.

KING, Philip Gidley, J.P., grandson
of Governor King, is the first and present
Mayor of the town of Tamworth; is a
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native of the colony, having been born in
Parramatta, in the year 1817. The early
youth of Mr. Philip Gidley King was
spent in the Royal Navy, under the com-
mand of his father and Captain Robert
Fitzroy, in the voyages of H.M. ships
“Adventure”and " Beagle,” which were em-
ployed in and about the Straits of Ma-
gellan, near Cape Horn, and up and down
both sides of the South American conti-
nent—voyages which, in the annals of
the Surveying Service, have no mean
celebrity, arising from the ability and the
energy which was displayed in their prose-
cution, and from the dangerous nature
of the coasts which were examined. In
1836 the Royal Navy, from the crowded
state of the Navy List, held but little in-
ducements to young men who had any other
opportunities of earning an honourable
livelihood, and these facts presenting them-
selves to Mr. King, he left the service,
to which he was much attached, and took
to the less exciting occupation of a pastoral
life in Australia. Soon after leaving the
Navy he became attached to the staff of
the Australian Agricultural Company at
Port Stephens; and subsequently, on the
formation of the Peel River Company,
was selected by the Board of Directors
in England to manage its affairs. This
post he has ably and honourably filled since
1854 to the present day. As Mayor of
Tamworth, he received Her Majesty’s
representative in New South Wales— Sir
Hercules Robinson—on his arrival at the
opening of the extension of the Railway to
Tamworth in 1878. Mr. King married, in
1844, the eldest daughter of the late
Hannibal H. Macarthur—nephew of John
Macarthur, Esq., of Camden Park, the
founder of the merino wool industry in
Australia. Mr. King has been appointed
a Commissioner for the Sydney Inter-
national Exhibition of 1879.

K|NG, Rear-Admiral Philip Parker,
F.R.S., F.L.S.,, son of Governor King,
was born at Norfolk Island, December,
13, 1791. He entered the Navy in 1807,
and distinguished himself by his gallantry
in boat actions on the coast of France; in
1817 was sent in command of an expedition
to survey the coasts of Australia in the
“ Mermaid” and “Bathurst,” of which
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FLOODS AND DROUGHTS.

FLOODS and DROUGHTS in New South W ales.

FLOODS.
Year. Jan. Feb. Mar. April. May. June. July. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.
1783

1739
170

1

12
178

™
176 Flood. Flood.

1%
1797

178

170 Flood.

180 Flood.
1801 Flood. Flood.

184
186 Flood. F
186

lood. Flood. Flood.
Great Flood. Flood.
Flood.

188 Flood Flood. Flood. Flood.
180 Flood. Flood.

1810 Flood.

181 Flood.

1812 Flood. Flood.

Fresh. Flood.
1817 Flood. Flood. Flood. Flood.

1818
1819 Flood. Flood.
180
11 Flood. Flood.

183
22y Flood.

185
186 Flood. Flood. Flood.

Flood.
Flood. Flood. Flood. Flood.
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DROUGHTS.

No rain is said to have fallen at
Sydney in 1790, from June to
ov. InOct.,grassalldriedup.
InJan. and Feb. 1791, several
weeks of excessive heat, hot
winds, birds dropped dead from
trees and everything burnt
up, stream of water supplying
Sydney nearly dried up.
Several good crops of wheat at
Parramatta in spite of drought.
Rain of April came too late to
sa\llle com, August wheat quite

Niuch wheat blighted, yield
small.

5 feet less water at Windsor in
April than in February, owing
to the previous dry weather
since August last.

leavy bush fires in January

Fllnders and Bass certain

slgns of drought at Bateman's
and Western Port.

Sep ember, pastures and gar-
dens wantlng rain; bush fires
in_December; thermometer
107 deg. in shade at Windsor.

Bush fires, drought, grass burnt
up, cattle in great distress.

Mar.—The drought was severely

felt |n all parts of the colony.
o rainexcept passing

showers since last July.

February—Long drought.

January — Drought.  April —
Iong period of dry weat
Feb.” 11—Town gangs cleaned
out tanks; drought severely
felt. Nov. 24—New wheat 34s.
bushel; harvest promised to be
abundant; seven days later
price 18s. bushel.
March 2—Drought destroyed
maize crop; tanks
water 6d. per pailful.
Drou3ght prevalent 1812 and
so severe that Went-
worth and party were led to
cross the Dividing Range.
Drought.

Drought after September, 1821,
to F% bruary, 18&

Turnips failed through extreme
drought, 1824.
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FLOODS AND

DROUGHTS.

FLOODS and DROUGHTS in New South W ales— continued.

Year.

FLOODS.

Jan. Feb. Mar. April. May. June. July. Aug.

Heay

|:|ng

Flood
Flood Flood

Creeks  flooded
Flood Flood Flood Flood Flood

Flood Flood

Fresh
Fresh Fresh Fresh
Flood Flood. Fresh Flood Fresh

Fresh Fresh
Fresh Fresh Fresh Fresh Fresh
Fresh Flood
Flood Flood Fresh

Flood Flood
Flood Flood Flood Flood

Floods
Flood

Flood
Flood Flood Flood

Fresh
Flood Flood Flood

Floods Flood Flood
Small
Flood
Flood Flood Fresh Floods Flood

Flood Flood

Floods Flood Flood

Flood Fresh

Fresh Flood Fresh Fresh
Flood Flood Flood Flood Fresh Fresh
Fresh Flood Fresh Flood Fresh
Flood

Flood Flood Fresh Fresh Flood Flood
Flood Flood Flood Fresh Fresh Flood Fresh
Flood Flood Flood

Flood

Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.

Flood Flood
Flood Flood
Flood
Fresh
Floods
Flood
Fresh
Flood
Fresh Fresh Flood
Fresh Fresh
Flood
Flood
Fresh
Fresh
Flood

Fresh
Flood Flood
Fresh
Fresh Fresh Flood Flood
Fresh Fresh Flood Flood
Flood

Flood

DROUGHTS.

Drought so bad stock had to be
removed from 30,000 acres at
Camden for want of water.

Sturt's Expedition (March, 1829):

—* | sawriversceaseto flowand
sheets of water disappear.”

August very 13/
At I Iawarra inJanuary, theTom
Thumb Lagoon driedup (usual-
ly 6 miles in circumference).

Jan., thermometer 109°inshade;
Feby. drought at Illawarra,
Argyle, and Maitl

G.M Pittsays wheat sown on the
Hunter in May had not germi-
nated in September.

2nd Novr.—Day of humlllatlon
on account of drought.

Feby. asture River ceased
toflowfirsttime since discovery
forty-eight years previously;
March, dead cattle along roads;
nofood for man or beast; Hun"
ter salt at W. Maitland.

Mudgee_district dry, although
floods in the north;

DroughtAug.toFeb., 1843; Pat-
erson ceased running in Nov.

Droughty weathel

Only chain of ponds in bed of
Hunter at Smgsl4

Drought July, 1847, to January,
1848; dreadfully dry December.

Drought August to March.

Drought Aug. 18;fast onaccount
of drought Sept to Jan., 1855.

Drought October to Feby. 1858,

Very serious drought in Queens-
land; Lake Gracemere (Rock-
hampton) dry.

Very dry Nov. to Jan. 1862
Fearfully dry; Aug. to Jan. 1863
Very dry Oct. to Feb., 1864.

Drought.

Very dry summer; Jan. 12thday
of fast on account of drought.

Very dry Oct. to Jan., 1868.

Very dry summer.
Drought.
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The number of immigrants who arrived in the
Colony during the four years previous to Decem-
ber 31, 1841, was 49,684.

First German immigrants arrived in Adelaide,
South Australia, September 18, 1844.

The number of immigrants arrived in the
colony of New South Wales during ten years
ending 1846 was 55,063, at a cost of £992,729,
being £18 3s. 1d. per head.

The first immigrant ships, the “ Philip Lang”

and the “ John Wickliffe,” for Otago, New
Zealand, left Greenock, the leader of the
colonists being Captain William Cargill, of the

74th Regiment, November, 1847.

The *“ Artemesia,” first Government immi-
grant ship, arrived at Brisbhane, Dec. 13, 1848.

About athousand Germans were introduced
into Port Phillip, and soon settled down to
useful pursuits, February 11, 1849.

The “ Culloden " arrived in Melbourne with
a large number of distressed needlewomen, July,
1850.

The sum of £108,000 appropriated by the
Parliament of New South Wales for the purpose
of immigration, 1853.

Mr. (now Sir) Henry Parkes and Mr. W. B.
Dailey sent to England as N.S. Wales emigra-
tion lecturers, May, 1861.

Immigration to the several Australasian Colonies

from 1838 to 1875.

o ;
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INFIRMARY, Sydney. [See Hospitals.]

INFIRMARY—JOHNSTON.

INSOLVENCIES in Austratia, for the year
ending December 31, 1877:—
No. Liabilities. Assets.  Deficiency.
New South Wales.. 588 508,352 210,851
tNew Zealand.. 326 324,178 284,161
Queensland. . 132 190,534 112,720
*South Australla 176 158,766 81,879
Tasmania. 24,228 13,373

. 33
Victoria... | 715 £462,650 £272,727
1Weslern Australia..

1 Bes ;‘Zt Buzrgr:;/akt)e; aﬁn;erangemems under the Insolvem Act.

+ No returns published

The Judges decided that the English Bankrupt
Laws were not applicable in the Colony of New
South Wales, November 26, 1839; four Official
Assignees appointed in the Insolvency Court,
New South Wales, February 7, 1844. [They
were appointed to abolish the system of trustee-
ship, as many of these trustees had escaped from
the colony, or made away with the assets of
estates which had been placed under their
charge.]

IPSWICH, Queenstand. First sale of Crown
Lands held, October 11, 1843; the first steamer
between Brisbane and Ipswich started, June 29,
1846; first Supreme Court Sittings held at Ips-
wich, February 6, 1860; Ipswich gazetted a
municipality, March 3, 1860; Ipswich Grammar
School opened, September 25, 1863.

IRON.

Iron smelting commenced in New South Wales,
at the Fitzroy lIronWorks, near Berrima, in 1847.

Derwent Iron Works, Tasmania, first smelted
iron, July 5, 1875.

The Lithgow Valley Iron Works, New South
Wales, were commenced in 1875.

[See M ineral Statistics.]

J.

JAMIESON, Sir John, awarded the gold medal
of the London Society for the Encouragement of
Art and Manufacture, for a method of extirpa-

ting stumps of trees, 1829. [See Norfolk
Istand.]
JOHNSTON, Major, proceeded to England

with Mr. John Macarthur, to attend the court-
martial regarding the conduct of the former re
Bligh's arrest and deposition, March, 1809.
Court-martial, consisting of fifteen officers—six
lieutenant-generals, two major-generals, five
colonels, and two lieutenant-colonels—was held
over Captain Johnston for the arrest of Bligh,
the trial commencing May 7, 1811. The result
of this trial was that Lieutenant-Colonel John-
ston (he having been promoted shortly before
the trial to that rank) was found guilty of an
act of mutiny in the arrest of Bligh, and was
sentenced to be cashiered, July 2, 1811. [Lieut.-
Colonel Johnston shortly afterwards returned to
the colony, which he had served long and faith-
fully, where he spent the remainder of his days.
He died May 5, 1826.]
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The Honorable Sir James
Martin, Knt., Q.C. 1
John Robertson
George William Lor:

The Honorable
Bowie Wilson.

James Byrnes....

William  Charles
deyer.

The Honorable Joseph
Docker.

John

Win-

Henry Parkes..........
William Richman Pid-
dington....
succeeded by
George Alfred Lloyd..
James Squire Farnell
Robert Palmer Abbot
John Sutherland
Edward Butler
succeeded by
Joseph Geo. Long Innes
George Wigram Allen..

Joseph Geo. Long Innes..

George Alfred Lloyd
succeeded by
Saul Samuel, C.M.G.

Saul Samuel....

John Robertson
William Forster

succeeded by
Alexander Stuart
Joseph Docker...

Thomas Garrett..........
succeeded by
Ezekiel Alex. Baker..
John Lackey
William Bede Dailey..
John Lucas .
John Fitzgerald Burns

Henry Parkes....
William Richman
dington.
Francis BathurstSuttor..

Pid-

Richard Driver
James Hoskins
William Chas. Windeyer

George Alfred Lloyd
Saul Samuel, C.M.G.

MINISTRIES.

No. 13—MARTIN MINISTRY.

Attorney-General....

Colonial Secretary
Colonial Treasurer
Secretary for Lands

Secretary for PublicWorks
Solicitor-General

Postmaster-General...

Dec. 16,1870.. May 13, 1872.

No. 14—PARKES MINISTRY.

Colonial Secretary
Colonial Treasurer

Secretary for Lands
Secretary for Mines
Secretary for Public Works

Attorney-General......

Minister of Justice and
Public Instruction.
Solicitor-General

Postmaster-General.

May 14, 1872.. Feb. 8, 1875.
May 14, 1872..
Dec. 5, 1872..
May 14,1872..
July 27,1874, Feb. 8 1875,
May 15, 1872.
May 15, 1872.. Nov. 19, 1873.
Nov. 20,1873..
Dec. 9, 1873. Feb. 8, 1875.
May 14,1872. Nov. 19, 1873.
May 14, 1872.. Dec. 4, 1872..
Dec. 5, 1872..

Feb. 8, 1875.
May 14, 1872..

No. 15—ROBERTSON MINISTRY.

Colonial Secretary
Colonial Treasurer
Minister of Justice and
Public Instruction.
Secretary for Lands..........
Secretary for Public Works
Attorney-General..

Secretary for Mines.
Postmaster-General.....

No. 16—

Colonial Secretary
Colonial Treasurer

Minister of Justice and
Public Instruction.
Secretary for Lands..........
Secretaryfor Public Works
Attorney-General..............

Secretary for Mines.
Postmaster-General.

Feb. 9, 1875. March 21, 1877.
Feb. 9, 1875.
Feb. 8, 1876. March 21,1877.
Feb. 9, 1875..
Feb. 6, 1877.. March 21, 1877.
Feb. 9, 1875.. March 21, 1877.

PARKES MINISTRY.

March 22, 1877 Aug. 16, 1877.

1 Vice-President of the Executive Council.

Representative of Government
in the Legislative Council.

Resigned.

Also Secretary for Mines, May 9
to July 26, without salary.

Resigned.

Without a Seat in the Cabinet.
From December 9,1873.

Representative of the Govern-
ment in the Legislative
Council. Appointed Attorney-
General.

Appointed Colonial Treasurer.

Vice-President of the Executive
Council and Representative
of Government in Legislative
Council.

Appointed Agent-General for the
Colony, resident in England.

Representative of the Govern-
ment in the Legislative
Council.

Resigned.

A Member of the Legislative
Council; a Member of the
Government without a Seat
in the Executive Council.

Member of the Government
without a Seat in the Execu-
tive Council.

Representative of the Govern-
ment in the Legislative
Council.
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No. 17—ROBERTSON MINISTRY.

No. 18—FARNELL MINISTRY.

Note.—John Marks, M.L.C., was appointed on the 14th January, 1878, Vice-President of the Executive Council and Representative of
the Government in the Legislative Council.

No. 19—PARKES-ROBERTSON MINISTRY

1. —NEW ZEALAND.

List of Members of the Executive Council of the Colony of New Zealand previous to the establishment of Responsible
Government (not including the Officers Commanding the Forces).
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MINISTRIES.

No. 1—BELL-SEWELL MINISTRY.

No. 2 - FOX MINISTRY.

No. 3—STAFFORD MINISTRY.

No. 4-FOX MINISTRY.

No. 5—DOMETT MINISTRY.
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No. 6—WHITAKER-FOX MINISTRY.

No. 7—WELD MINISTRY.

No. 8—STAFFORD MINISTRY.

No. 9—FOX MINISTRY.
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MINISTRIES.

No. —OX MINISTRY—continued.

No. 10—STAFFORD MINISTRY.

No. 11—WATERHOUSE MINISTRY.

No. 12—FOX MINISTRY.
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No. 13—VOGEL MINISTRY.

No. 14—POLLEN MINISTRY.

No. 15—VOGEL MINISTRY.

No. 16—ATKINSON MINISTRY.
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No. 17—ATKINSON MINISTRY (RECONSTITUTED).

No. 18—GREY MINISTRY. 1877.

1. —QUEENSLAND.
No. 1—HERBERT MINISTRY. (Merged into the Macalister Ministry.)

No. 2—MACALISTER MINISTRY.

No. 3—HERBERT MINISTRY. (Merged into the Macalister Ministry.)
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No 4—MACALISTER MINISTRY.

No. 5—MACKENZIE MINISTRY.

No. 6—LILLEY MINISTRY.

NO. 7—PALMER MINISTRY.
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No. 8—MACALISTER MINISTRY.

No. 9—THORN MINISTRY.—(Merged into Douglas Ministry.)

No. 10—DOUGLAS MINISTRY.

No. 11—M'ILWRAITH MINISTRY.

IV.—SOUTH AUSTRALIA.

No. 1—FINNISS MINISTRY.—(From October 24, 1856, to August 21, 1857.)
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No. 2—BAKER MINISTRY.—(From August 21 to September 1, 1857.)

No. 3—TORRENS MINISTRY.—(From September 1 to September 30, 1857.)

No. 4—HANSON MINISTRY.—(From September 30, 1857, to May 9, 1860.)

No. 5—REYNOLDS MINISTRY.—(From May 9, 1860, to May 20, 1861.)

No. 6—REYNOLDS MINISTRY.—(From May 20 to October 8, 1861.)

No. 7—WATERHOUSE MINISTRY.—(From October 8 to October 17, 1861.)

No. 8—WATERHOUSE MINISTRY.—(From October 17,1861, to July 4, 1863.)

No. 9—DUTTON MINISTRY.—(From July 4 to July 15, 1863.)
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No. 10—AYERS MINISTRY—(From July 15 to July 22, 1864)

No. 11—AYERS MINISTRY—(From July 22 to August 4,1864.)

No. 12—BLYTH MINISTRY—(From August 4 to March 22, 1865)

No. 13—SUTTON MINISTRY—(From March 22 to September 20, 1865)

No. 14—AYERS MINISTRY—(From September 20 to October 23, 1865.)

No. 15—HART MINISTRY—(From October 23, 1865, to March 27, 1866.)

No 16—BOUCAUT MINISTRY—(From March 28, 1866, to May 2, 1867)

No. 17—AYERS MINISTRY—(From May 3, 1867, to September 23, 1868.)

No. 18—HART MINISTRY—(From September 24 to October 12, 1868.)

No. 19—AYERS MINISTRY—(From October 13 to November 2,1868.)
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No. 20—STRANGWAYS MINISTRY—(From November 3,1868, to May 12, 1870.)

No. 21—STRANGWAYS MINISTRY—(From May 12 to May 30, 1870.)

No. 22—HART MINISTRY—(From May 30, 1870, to November 10, 1871.)

No. 23—BLYTH MINISTRY—(From November 10th, 1871, to January 22, 1872.)

No. 24—AYERS MINISTRY—(From January 22 to March 4, 1872))

No. 25—AYERS MINISTRY—(From March 4, 1872, to July 21,1873.)

No. 26—BLYTH MINISTRY—(From July 22, 1873, to June 3, 1875.)

No. 27—BOUCAUT MINISTRY—(From June 3,1873, to March 25, 1876.)

No. 286—BOUCAUT MINISTRY—(From March 25 to June 6, 1878.)
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No. 29—COLTON MINISTRY—(From June 6, 1876, to October 26, 1877.)

No. 30-BOUCAUT MINISTRY—(From October 26, 1877, to September 27, 1878.)

No. 31—MORGAN MINISTRY—(From September 27, 1878.)

V.—TASMANIA.

No. 1—CHAMP MINISTRY.

No. 2—GREGSON MINISTRY.

No. 3—WESTON MINISTRY.

No. 4—SMITH MINISTRY.

No. 5—~WESTON MINISTRY.
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No. 6—CHAPMAN MINISTRY.

No. 7—WHYTE MINISTRY.

No. 8-DRY MINISTRY.

No. 9—WILSON MINISTRY.

No. 10—INNES MINISTRY.

No. 11—KENNERLY MINISTRY.

No. 12—REIBEY MINISTRY.

No. 13—FYSH MINISTRY.

No. 14—CROWTHER MINISTRY.
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VI.—VICTORIA.
No. I—HAINES MINISTRY.

No. 2—O'SHANASSY MINISTRY.

No. 3—HAINES MINISTRY.

No. 4—O'SHANASSY MINISTRY.

No. 5—NICHOLSON MINISTRY.
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No. 6—HEALES MINISTRY.

No. 7—O'SHANASSY MINISTRY.

No. 8—M'CULLOCH MINISTRY.
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No. 9—SLADEN MINISTRY.

No. 10—M'CULLOCH MINISTRY.

No. 11—M'PHERSON MINISTRY.

No. 12—M'CULLOCH MINISTRY.

No. 13— Bl NISTRY.



MINISTRIES.

No. 14 -FRANCIS MINISTRY.

No. 15—KERFERD MINISTRY.

No. 16- BERRY MINISTRY.

No. 17-M ‘CULLOCH MINISTRY.

161



162 MINT—MISSIONS.

MINT, Royal.

The establishment of a Mint, or branch of the
Royal Mint, in Australia, first considered in the
Legislative Council, 1851.

The formal sanction of Her Majesty’s Govern-
ment for the establishment of a branch of the
Royal Mint at Sydney, received, July, 1853.
[The stipulation was, that the dies from which
the colonial coins were to be struck were to be
provided by the Master of the Mint in London.
Precise directions were given as to the fineness
and weight of the coins, which were in those
respects to correspond with the coin of the
realm; colonial coins were from time to time to
be transmitted to England, to be assayed and
tested by the Master of the Royal Mint, and
the principal officers were to be appointed by
the Crown. Captain (now Colonel) Edward
Wolstenholme Ward, of the Royal Engineers,
was appointed first Deputy-Master of the
branch of the Royal Mint in the colony, at a
salary of £1,000 per annum, May 13, 1855.]

Victorian Mint, Melbourne, opened, June 12,
1872. Colonel Ward first Deputy Master.

First issue of 40,000 sovereigns from the Mel-
bourne Mint, July 8, 1872.

Total quantity of gold dust or bullion received
at Sydney branch from its opening to December,
1878, inclusive, 11,591,320,4650z.; its total value
being £44,488,539 19s. 3d. Total value of gold
dust or bullion issued during the same period,
£44,490,307 4s. 1d.

Total quantity of gold dustor bullion received
at Melbourne branch from its opening to Decem-
ber 31, 1877, was 2,159, 166'710z.; its total value
being, £8,590,158 16s. 10d. The total value of
gold dust or bullion issued during the same
period was £8,560,568 5s. 7d.

MISSIONARIES.

Arrival of the “ Nautilus” with the “ Duff”
missionaries from Tahiti, April 14, 1798.

Wesleyan Missionary Society established in
Hokianga, New Zealand. 1822.

Rev. D. Tyerman and G. Bennett, Esq., depu-
tation from London Missionary Society, visited
Australia, August 20, 1824.

The German mission projected by Dr. Lang to
Christianize the blacks at Moreton Bay, and to

afford security to ships wrecked on the adjacent
coast. Two clergymen and 18 lay missionaries
formed the mission, the chief missionary being
Schmidt, arrived from Berlin.  1838.

The Rev. Joseph Holbert Smales, for many
years a town missionary in Hobart Town, died,
December 30, 1870. [Sixty-seven years pre-
viously, in 1803, Mr. Smales, then a midship-
man on the sloop-of-war “ Porpoise,” performed
divine service to the first assembly of Tas-
manian Christians, on her deck, when she was
lying off Flagstaff Battery, Hobart Town, long
before there was a place of worship built on the
banks of the Derwent.]

MISSIONS to the Australian blacks.

A mission station for the aboriginals was
established at Reid’s Mistake, Lake Macquarie,
in the year 1825, by the late Rev. L. E. Threl-
keld, under the auspices of the London
Missionary Society, and was subsequently re-
moved to Ebenezer, on the opposite side of the
lake, where the natives were more numerous.
In 1829, the London Missionary Society with-
drew their support, when the mission was sus-
tained under the same management by the late
Dr. Broughton, first metropolitan Bishop of
Australia. Government support was granted
until the close of the mission in 1841, when,
owing to the almost total extinction of the
tribes in the district of Lake Macquarie, it was
determined to close the mission. An Australian
grammar was compiled by the Rev. L. E. Threl-
keld, in the year 1834, and copies were for-
warded to the Royal Library, London; also, to
the Governor, Sir Richard Bourke; to Colonel
Arthur, Governor of Tasmania; Archdeacon
Broughton, Alexander Macleay, Esq., Sir George
Grey, and to numerous other friends of the
author. In 1835, a selection of prayers from
the Ritual of the Church of England was trans-
lated into the aboriginal language for public
worship; also, reading lessons selected from the
sacred Scriptures; a spelling book was also
translated for use in the school. In 1850, after
the close of the mission, “ The Key to the
Aboriginal Language” was published, when, in
consequence, Mr. Threlkeld was elected a cor-
responding member of the Ethnological Society.
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In 1859, at the close of his life, Mr. Threlkeld
had just completed the translation of the
Gospel of St. Luke. Maloga Aboriginal Mission
Station, Murray River, established by Mr.
Daniel Matthews, 1875. (See Aborigines, Mis-
sions TO.)

MOA, The, an enormous bird which inhabited
New Zealand up to seventeenth or eighteenth
century, ranging from size of a goose to 12 or 14
feet in height; though now extinct remains have
been found to form almost perfect skeletons.

MONARO PLAINS. Captain Currie and Bri-
gadier-Major Ovens discovered Monaro Plains,
and called them Brisbane Downs. June 3, 1823.

MONEY. [See Ccurrency.]

MORETON BAY.

Captain Cook entered a Bay which he named
Moreton Bay in honor of the Earl of Moreton,
who was president of the Royal Society, May
17, 1770.

Captain Flinders, whilst exploring the
northern territory entered Moreton Bay, 1800.

Mr. Oxley, Surveyor-General of New South
Wales, was sent on an expedition to Moreton
Bay to search for a spot to form a penal settle-
ment. He was accompanied by Lieutenant
Stirling and Mr. Uniacke, October 23, 1823.

The expedition under Oxley, after having
visited Port Curtis and surveyed the Boyne
River, returned and anchored (in the “ Mer-
maid ") in Moreton Bay, November 28, 1823.

Mr. Oxley and party, of the “ Mermaid,”
rescued two men, named Pamphlet and Finnegan,
from the blacks; Pamphlet told Oxley of the
existence of a fine river flowing into the Bay,
November 30, 1823.

Mr. Oxley explored the river falling into the
Bay, which he named the Brisbane, in honor of
Sir Thomas Brisbane, Governor of New South
Wales, December 2, 1823.

Mr. Oxley sent in a report of his explorations,
in which he recommended Moreton Bay as a
place for establishing a penal settlement,
February, 1824.

Lieutenant Miller, of the 40th Regiment, ap-
pointed first Commandant of the Moreton Bay
settlement, September 12, 1824.

A settlement was formed at a place called
Redcliff e Point, under direction of Mr. Oxley,
but it was soon found unsuitable, and was re-
moved to the present site of Brisbane (aboriginal
name Meganchan), September 12, 1824.

Sir Thomas Brisbane was the first Governor
who visited Moreton Bay; and Brisbane, the
town, was called after him, November 10, 1825.

Moreton Bay appointed a place to which
offenders convicted in New South Wales, and
being under sentence of transportation, should
be sent, August 15, 1826.

Visit of Governor Darling to Moreton Bay,
1827.

Allan Cunningham made an overland journey
from Sydney, 1827.
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Rev. John Vincent, C.E., appointed Chaplain
of the Moreton Bay settlement by Governor
Darling, September 18, 1828.

During the sixteen years of the " convict
period ” there were 8 commandants. The
following table gives the duration of their
command:—

1824

1824 to 1825

1825 to 1830

1830 to 1835

1835 to 1837
Major Cotton 1837 to 1839
Lieutenant Gravet .. May, 1839 to July, 1839
Lieutenant Gorman.. 1839 to 1840

Captain Logan, third commandant, was repre-
sented as being remarkably unpopular, and
charged with being excessively tyrannical; “old
hands ” say that the lash was ever resounding in
the camp during his sway. He was murdered
by the blacks (supposed at the instigation of the
convicts), while on a botanical expedition in the
neighbourhood of the Limestones (Ipswich),
November 16, 1830. [His remains were brought
to Sydney, and interred with military honours, at
Garden Island, in the same tomb as those of
Judge Bent, a friend of his early youth.]

The first squatters on the Darling Downs
were Patrick Leslie, James Leith Hay, and
Arthur Hodgson, about 1830.

The convict hospital (now Police barracks)
erected, 1827.

The Chaplains residence (now Colonial Secre-
tary’s office) erected. 1828.

The Prisoners’ barracks (now Supreme Court)
erected, 1828.

The Military barracks (now Treasury) erected,
1828.

The Windmill (now Observatory) erected, 1829.

Female factory (now Central Police Court)
erected, 1830.

The Superintendent of Convicts’ quarters
(now Railway Engineers’ office) erected, 1829.

The Surgeon’s quarters (now occupied by
Inspector of Police) erected, 1831.

Military hospital (now Public Works office)
erected, 1832.

First steamer, “ James Watt,” anchored in
Moreton Bay, August, 1837.

A young convict who had escaped fourteen
years previously, was found with the natives on
the Mary River; he had almost forgotten his
own language, 1837. [He was found by an ex-
pedition party,among whom were Andrew Petrie,
Hon. Mr. Wriothesley, H. Stuart Russell, and
Mr. Jallath; another convict was also found by
the same party, who had been twice with the
blacks, once seven years and this time eighteen
months.]

Andrew Petrie appointed Foreman of Works,
Royal Engineer department, 1837.

The convict settlement broken up,
1839.

First free settlers arrived in Brisbane, 1840.
[Their names were John Williams, T hos. Dowse,
G. Edmondstone, G. S. Le Breton, David Bow,
John Richardson, Wm. Holman Berry, R. Little,
P. Phelan, and M. Moriarty.]

Captain Mille
Captain Bishop
Captain Logan..
Captain Clunie
Captain Fyan

May 21,
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First drays brought over Cuningham's Gap to
Brisbane, October 19, 1840.

Sir George Gipps visited Moreton Bay settle-
ment, March, 1842.

Moreton Bay proclaimed open to settlement,
May 4, 1842.

First sale of Moreton Bay land held in Sydney,
December 7, 1842.

The Governor visited Moreton Bay to make
arrangements for the sale of lands and to mark
out the chief reserves, 1842.

First land sale took place in Brishane, August
9, 1843.

Moreton Bay proclaimed a warehousing port,
July 20, 1846.

First Government emigrant ship the “ Arti-
mesia” arrived, December 13, 1848.

The “ Fortitude,” emigrant ship, sent out
under Dr. Lang’s auspices, arrived Jan. 21, 1849.

First exile ship, “ Mount Stuart Elphin-
stone,” reached Moreton Bay, October 31, 1849.

First bank opened in Moreton Bay, November
14, 1850.

First Circuit Court in Moreton Bay District
held, 1851.

The first direct shipment of wool to England
was made February, 1851.

Government Resident first
Moreton Bay, January 1, 1853.

Governor Sir Charles Fitzroy visited Moreton
Bay, March 20, 1854.

Separation granted from N.S.W .,
10, 1859.

appointed at

December

MORRILL, or MURRELL, James, who was
wrecked in 1846 on a voyage from Sydney to
China in the barque “ Peruvian” on Cape Cleve-
land, N .E. Coast of Australia, and who had lived
with the blacks for 17 years, made himself known
to some stockmen in the North of Queensland,
on January 25, 1863. Born near Maldon,
England, in 1824; died at Port Denison, Queens-
land, October 30, 1865.

MOUNTAINS.

The highest mountain in Australia is Mount
Kosciusko, in the Australian Alps; its altitude
is 6,510 feet. The Bogong Range, Gipps Land,
Victoria, is 6,508 feet.

New South Wales.—The principal ranges of
mountains are the Interior Ranges, the Great
Dividing Chain, and the Coast Ranges. The
former lie near the western boundary of the
colony, and form the western watershed of the
Darling River; the chief of them are the Grey
Range, and the Stanley or Barrier Range. The
loftiest elevation in the Grey Range is Mount
Arrowsmith, 2,000 feet high; and in Stanley
Range, Mount Lyell, about the same height.
The Great Dividing Chain extends throughout
the whole length of the eastern and south-eastern
coasts of Australia, and forms the main water-
shed of the country. It consists of seven main
branches, viz.: (1) the New England Range
(highest point Ben Lomond, 5,000 feet; (2)
the Liverpool Range (highest point Oxley’s
Peak, 4,500 feet); (3) the Blue Mountain
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Range (highest point, Mount Beemarang,
4,100 feet); (4) the Cullarin Range (highest
point, Mundoonen, 3,000 feet); (5) the
Gourock Range (highest point, Jindulian,
4,300 feet); (6) the Monaro Range (highest
point, head of Kybean River, 4,010 feet);
and (7) the Muniong Range (highest point, Mount
Kosciusko, 6,510 feet). This lastis about700 feet
belowthelineofperpetualsnow. Allthisseriesis
connected with the Cordillera dividing the
eastern and western watersheds. The Coast
Ranges lie on the east side of the Great Divid-
ing Chain, and parallel to it for a very consi-
derable distance. They generally form the
edge of the elevated table-land, upon which lies
the Great Dividing Chain.  The loftiest peaks
of these are Mount Seaview, 6,000 feet, Mount
Coolungubbera, 3,712 feet, and Mount Buda-
wang, 3,800 feet high. The most remarkable
of the isolated mountains and groups are Mount
Doubleduke, Whoman, Elanie, Yarrahappini,
Kibbora, The Three Brothers, Mount Talawah,
Dromedary, Mumbulla, and lastly, Imlay, or
Baloon—2,900 feet high.

New Zealand.—The mountains of New
Zealand are more lofty than those in Australia.
In the province of Wellington is an active
volcano called Tongariro, 6,500 feet, the peak
of Ruaperhui rises to an elevation of 9,100 feet
above the sea-level. Mount Egmont is about
8,300 feet high; it rises in an almost perfect
cone from a base of 30 miles in diameter, and
its summit, which is an extinct crater, is
covered with perpetual snow. In the Southern
Island, Mount Cook, in the province of Canter-
bury, is the loftiest peak, being 13,000 feet high.
Mount Arthur, near Nelson, is about 8,000 feet
high. Amongst the peaks in Otago province is
Mount Earnslaw, at the head of Lake Wakatipu,
9,000 feet, and Mount Tutoko, near Martin’'s
Bay, 8,000 feet.

Queensland.—The highest peak on the Coast
Range is Mount Dalrymple, 4,250 feet. The
Bellenden Kerr Range is in the north; its
highest point is 5,400 feet.

South Australia.—The highest points of the
Main or Flinders Range are Mount Lofty, 2,334
feet above the sea-level — overshadowing
Adelaide; Mount Barker 2,331 feet, Mount
Horrocks 1,984 feet, the Razorback 2,992 feet,
Mount Bryan 3,012 feet, and Black Rock Hill

2,750 feet. The highestelevation of the Gawler
Range, in Port Lincoln Peninsula, is about
2,000 feet.

Tasmania.— The highest mountain in Tas-

mania is 5,069 feet in height. Among the peaks
are Row Tor 3,895 feet, Mount Barrow 4,644
feet, Mount Victoria 3,964 feet, Ben Nevis 3,910
feet, Ben Lomond 5,010 feet, Mount Nicholas
2,812 feet, Brown Mountain 2,598 feet, Table
Mountain 3,596 feet, Miller's Bluff 3,977 feet,
Dry’s Bluff 4,257 feet, Quamby BIluff, Ironstone
Mountain, 4,736 feet, Cradle Mountain 5,069
feet (the highest in the colony), the Du Cane
Range, Mount Olympus, Mount Humboldt,
Mount Hugel, Mount William 4,360 feet, and
Mount Hobhouse 4,031 feet, Mount Roland,
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List of Mayors of Sydney, New South Wales, from the

Foundation of Municipal Institutions in Australia.
John Hosking 1843  James Oatley 1862
J. R. Wilshire 1844 Thomas Spence 1863
George Allen 1845  William Speer 1864
Henry M'Dermott 1846 John Woods 1865
Thomas Broughton 1847  John Sutton 1866
J. F. Josephson 1848 Charles Moore 1867
Edward Flood 1849 Charles Moore 1868
George Hill 1850 Charles Moore (till

William Thurlow 1851 March) 1869
William Thurlow 1852 Walter Renny

Daniel Egan 1853 (from March)

Council abrogated 1854 Walter Renny 1870
and Commissioners 1855 Michael Chapman 1871
in office 1856 Michael Chapman 1872

Corporation again James Merriman 1873
established— S. S. Goold 1874

George Thornton 1857 Benjamin Palmer 1875

John Williams 1858 Benjamin Palmer 1876

George Smith 1859 James Merriman 1877

James Murphy 1860 James Merriman 1878

John Sutherland 1861 C. J. Roberts 1879

List of Mayors of the Municipality of Brisbane,

Queensland, from 1859 to February, 1879.

John Petrie 1859-60
John Petrie 1860-61
John Petrie 1861-62
Thomas Blacket Stephens 1862-63
George Edmondstone 1863-64
Joshua Jeays 1864-65
Albert John Hockings 1865-66
Richard Symes Warry 1866-67
Albert John Hockings 1867-68
John Hardgrave 1868-69
John Hardgrave 1869-70
William Pettigrew.. 1870-71
Francis Murray 1871-72
Edmond Joseph Baines. 1872-73

James Swan 1873-74
James Swan 1874-75
James Swan 1875-76
Richard Ash Kingsford 1876-77
Alfred Hubbard 1877-78
Alfred Hubbard 1878-79

List of Mayors of Adelaide, South Australia, from

the Incorporation of the City.

James Hurtle Fisher, October 3 1 . .. . .. 1840
James Hurtle Fisher, re-elected, October 2 2 .. 1841
James Hurtle Fisher resigned January 6 . . . . 1842
Thomas Wilson, January 20 ... . 1842
Thomas Wilson, re-elected, October 2 1 . . 1842
(Council became extinct September 26, 1843)
Commissioners appointed, Captain A. H. Freeling,

Messrs. Samuel Davenport, F. S. Dutton, William
Blyth, and R. F. Newland; Messrs. J. B. Neales and
Dr. Wyatt succeeded Messrs. Newland and Davenport
in 1850 and 1851.

(Re-incorporated) James Hurtle Fisher (Mayor),

June 9 .. 1852
James Hurtle Fisher, December 8 .. 1852
James Hurtle Fisher, December 9 .. 1853
Joseph Hall (vice Fisher resigned), November 20 1853
Joseph Hall, December 9 1854
John Lazar, December 10 1855
John Lazar, December 2 1856
John Lazar, December 9 1857
William Thompson Sabben, December 8 .. 1858
E. W. Wright, December 9 ... 1859
E. B. W. Glanfield, December 9 1860
E. B. W. Glanfield, December 9 1861
Thomas English 1862
Thomas English 1863
Samuel Goode 1864
William Townsend 1865
H. R. Fuller 1866
H. R. Fuller 1867
H. R. Fuller 1868
J. M. Solomon.. 1869
J. M. Solomon 1870
J. M. Solomon.. 1871

1872
A. H. T. Bartels 1873
W. K. Abbott 1874
John Colton 1875
Caleb Peacock 1876
Caleb Peacock 1877
Henry Scott 1878
William C. Buik 1879

List of the Mayors of Melbourne, Victoria, from the
time of the Incorporation of that City to the Present

Year, 1842,

Henry Condell, 1842-43 Richard Fades 1859-60
Henry Condell, 1843-44  John Thomas Smith 1860-61
Henry Moor, 1844-45 Robert Bennett 1861-62
James Frederic Edward Cohen 1862-63
Palmer, 1845-46  John Thomas Smith 1863-64
Henry Moor 1846-47 George Wragge 1864-65
Andrew Russell, 1847-48 William Bayles 1865-66
William Montgomerie William Williams 1860-67
Bell, 1848-49 James Stewart
Augustus Frederic A. Butters 1867-68
Greeves 1849-50 Thomas Moubray  1868-69
William Nicholson 1850-51 Samuel Amess 1869-70

John Thomas Smith 1851-52 ThomasMacpherson 1870-71

John Thomas Smith 1852-53 Orlando Fenwick 1871-72
John Hodgson 1853-54 Thomas O'Grady 1872-73
John Thomas Smith 1854-55 John M‘llwraith 1873-74
John Thomas Smith 1855-56 James Gatehouse 1874-75
Peter Davis 1856-57 James Paterson 1876-77
John Thomas Smith 1857-58 John Pigdon 1877-78
Henry Sallows Walsh 1858-59  J. Storey 1878-79
MURRAY, River. Upper part, the Hume,
discovered by Hamilton Hume, November 16,
1824; lower part, named after Sir George
Murray, Secretary of the Colonies, discovered

by Captain Sturt, 1829; Captain Sturt sailed
down the Murray in 1833; first navigated by
W. R. Randall in his steamer the *“ Mary
Anne,” July, 1853; first navigated by Cadell
as far as Albury in the steamer “ Albany.”
August 27, 1853. [See Rivers.]

MURRUMBIDGEE, River, discovered by
Captain Currie and Brigadier-General Ovens (who
went on an expedition to examine the country
south of Lake George), June 1, 1823; Hume
and Hovell reached the Murrumbidgee, October
19, 1824; Hume and Hovell crossed the Murrum-

bidgee, October 22, 1824; the Murrumbidgee
first traversed by a steamer, as far as the town
of Gundagai, 1858. [See Rivers.]
MUSEUMS.

The Australian Museum, Sydney, originated
by a number of gentlemen interested in the pro-
motion of science in Australia. Founded, 1836.
[The first president was Alexander Macleay,
then Colonial Secretary.]

National Museum, Melbourne,
present building, May 1, 1864.

South Australian Museum opened, 1855.

Queensland Museum, Brisbane opened, 1870.

Canterbury, New Zealand, 1858.

The Industrial and Technological Museum of
Victoria opened, September 7, 1870.

The Legislative Assembly of New South
Wales decided on opening the Museum and Free
Library on Sundays, March 26, 1878.

opened in
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Crommelin. Mr. T. L. Crommelin, Commis-
sioner of Crown Lands, died at Sydney, April
7, 1877.

crowley. John Crowley, died, Richmond,
N.S.W., aged 58, May 9, 1833.

Crummer. Major James Crummer, an officer
who had distinguished himself in the British
army in Spain and other countries, and who was
Police Magistrate of Newcastle, Maitland, and
Port Macquarie, N.S.W., died at Port Mac-
quarie, December 29, 1867.

Cunningham. Richard Cunningham, Killed
by the natives, near the River Bogan, whilst on
Mitchell's expedition, as Botanist, 1835.

cunningham. Allan Cunningham, botanist
and explorer, died at Sydney, N.S.W ., June 27,
1839.

curtain. Michael Curtain, an old colonist,
who arrived in Melbourne in 1839, died July,
1872.

Daintree. Richard Daintree, F.R.G.S., late
Agent-General, Queensland, died June 25, 1878.

Daly. Sir Dominick Daly, at one time Go-
vernor of South Australia, died Feb. 19, 1868.

Daly. Lady Daly (wife of late Governor)
died in South Australia, July 16, 1872.

Darling. Lieutenant-General Sir Ralph
Darling, at one time Governor of New South
Wales, died, 1834.

Darling. Edward, infant son of Governor
Darling, died in Sydney, of whooping-cough,
August 3, 1828.

Darling. Sir Charles Henry Darling died in
England, January 25, 1870.

Darling. Lady Darling, widow of Sir Charles
Henry Darling, K. C. B., died at Lee, near
London, September 24, 1875.

Darwin. Dr. Erasmus Darwin died, April
18, 1802.

Davey. Governor Davey, of Tasmania, died
May 2, 1873.

Davies. Right Rev. Charles Henry Davies,

R.C. Bishop of Maitland, died May 17, 1854.

Davies. John Davies, proprietor of the
Hobart Town Mercury, died June 11, 1872.

Dawson. Michael Dawson, an old and
wealthy Victorian colonist, died June 1, 1875.

Day. Edward Denny Day, for many years
Police Magistrate of Maitland, Muswellbrook,
and Port Macquarie, N.S.W ., died at Maitland,
May 5, 1876.

Deniehy. Daniel Henry Deniehy, solicitor
and journalist, died at Bathurst, N.S.W ., Octo-
ber 22, 1865.

Denison. Sir William Thomas Denison died
in England, at the age of 67, January 19, 1871.

Desailly. G. P. Desailly died at Brighton,
Victoria, aged 53 years, September 19, 1876.
[He was one of the earliest colonists of Vic-
toria, and for some time very successful in
pastoral pursuits, equally in New South Wales
and Victoria, into which business he introduced
many improvements in the working of stations.]

Deuchar. John Deuchar, died at Mile End,
Queensland, September 28, 1872. [He was one
of the pioneers of Southern Queensland, and
was the first white man that camped on the
present site of Warwick.]

Devine. Nicholas Devine, died at the
advanced age of 104 years, at Newtown, 1830.
[He arrived in the colony with Governor
Phillip, as principal Superintendent of Con-
victs, which office he retained for 25 years.
For this and other services he was allowed an
annuity, besides a grant of land that he had
previously received, which land some years
afterwards became the source of much litigation,
and the trial of which extended over several

years, known as the “ Devine Case.”] (See
Trials.)
pight. John Dight died, aged 65, 1837.
Dight. Hannah Dight, wife of John Dight,

died, aged 81, 1862.

Dodd. Henry Edward Dodd, superintendent
of Rosehill, afterwards called Parramatta,
N.S.W., since the establishment of that station,
died 1791.

Don. Charles Jardine Don, member of the
Victorian Legislative Assembly, and champion
of the working classes, died 1867.

Donaldson. Sir Stuart Alexander Donald-
son, the first Premier of New South Wales,
died at Carlton Hall, Cumberland, England,
January 11, 1867.

Donoghue. John Benjamin Donoghue, gen-
erally known as John Dunn, the well-known
and favourite comedian, and the oldest actor on
the Australian stage, died, aged 62, August 17,
1875.

Dove. Richard Dove, Judge Advocate, died
November 30, 1800.

Dowling. Sir James Dowling, Chief Justice
of New South Wales, died in Sydney, N.S.W.,
September 27, 1844.

Draper. Rev. Daniel James Draper, Wes-
leyan minister, was drowned in the steamship
“ London” in the Bay of Biscay, Jan. 11, 1866.

Drummond. Rev. Ralph Drummond, died
at Mitcham, S.A., aged 80, April 26, 1872.
[He was the pioneer minister of Presbyterianism
in South Australia. He came to the colony in
1839, and was the founder, and for many years
pastor, of the church now presided over by the
Rev. Charles Lyall.]

Dry. Sir Richard Dry, premier of Tasmania,
died August 1, 1869.

puffy. Lady Duffy, wife of Sir Charles
Gavan Duffy, died September 21, 1878.

Dumaresq. Lieutenant-Colonel Dumaresq,
died suddenly at Port Stephens, N.S.W ., March
5, 1838.

Dumaresq. Captain William John Dumaresq,
aged 76 years, died 1868.

Duncan. Edward Duncan, M.P., of Eng-
land, died at Melbourne, February, 1870.

Dunn. John Dunn, Chief Clerk in the Audit
Office, Melbourne, died March 23, 1877.
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PARLIAMENTS.

List of Members of the Legislative Assembly, 1879.

AubIgNY .o The Hon. Patrick Perkins (Secre-
tary for Public Lands)

Balonne. ..Jacob Low

Blackall. Archibald Archer

Henry Rogers Beor

.Hon. Samuel Walker
Q.C; Hon. Arthur Hunter
Palmer (Colonial  Secretary
and Secretary for Public In-
struction)

Brisbane (South)............. Richard Ash Kingsford, Angus

Bowen
Brisbane (North) Griffith,

Bundamba

Bulimba

Burnett.

Burke...

Carnarvon. John de Poix-Tyrel

Clermont H.Weld-Blundell

Cook .. ohn Walsh, Fred. A. Cooper
Dalby. George Morris Simpson

Darling Downs ............. William Miles, Francis Kates

Drayton and ToowoombaWilliam Henry Groom, G. H.
Davenport

Enoggera......... cocvenee Hon. Jas. R. Dickson, Arthur

Fassifern De Burgh F. Perse
Fortitude Valle Hon. R. Prin
Gregor Charles Lumley Hill

Gympie. ohn Hamilton

Ipswich. Malbon Thompson
(Minister of Justice), John
Macfarlane

Kennedy H. W. Palmer, Francis Horace
Stubley

Leichhardt ............c.... John Scott (Chairman of Com-
mittees), vacant

Logan.... . Peter McLean

Mackay Francis Tyssen Amhurst

Maryborough .. ..Hon. John Douglas, C.M.G., Hon.
Henry Edward King(Speaker)

Maranoa ..James Lalor

Mitchell Boyd Dunlop Morehead

Moreton ames Francis Garrick

Mulgrave ..Hon. Thomas Mcllwraith (Colo-
nial Treasurer)

Normanby ..John Stevenson

Northern Down Vacant

Oxley.......

Port Curtis

Rockhampton

Rosewood .

Stanley. P. O'Sullivan, Wm. Kellett

Townsville . M. Macrossan (Minister for
Works and Mines)

Warrego ..Ernest James Stevens

Warwick ..Jacob Horwitz

Wide Bay ..cooocovvvieriens W. G. Bailey, Thos. Price.

Lewis Adolphus Bernays, F.L.S. (Clerk of the Legis-
lative Assembly).

South Australia.

1st Parliament, opened April 22, 1857; dissolved March 8,

Session 1.—1857-8. From April 22,1857, to Jan. 27,1857.
" 11.—1858.,, Aug. 27 to December 24.
11.—1859.,, April 29 to September 1.

2nd Parliament, opened April 27, 1860; dissolved Octo-
ber 22, 1862.
Session 1.—1860. From April 27 to October 17.
" 1n—1861.,, April 26 to December 3.
111—1862.,, April 25 to October 21

3rd Parliament, opened February 27, 1863; dissolved
January 25,1865.
Session 1.—1863. From February 27 to Nov. 12.
11.—1864.,, May 27 to December 9.
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4th Parliament, opened March 31,1865; dissolved March
26, 1868.

Session 1.—1865. From March 31 to August 4.
11.—1865-6.,, September 29, 1865, to March
6.

,, N1.—1866-7.,, June 15, 1866, to January 11,
1867.

» 1V.—1867. » July 5to December 19.

5th Parliament, opened July 31, 1868; dissolved March
2, 1870.

Session 1.—1868-9. From July 31, 1868, to January

30, 1869.

" 11.—1869-70.,, July 30, 1869, to February
23, 1870.

6th Parliament, opened May 27, 1870; dissolved Novem-
ber 23, 1871.

Session 1.—1870-71. From May 27, 1870, to January
3, 1871

" 1.—1 87 1.,, July28to November 23.

7th Parliament, opened January 19, 1872; dissolved
January 14, 1875.

Session 1.—1872. From January 19 to November 30.
,, 11.—1873. " July 25 to December 18.
., 111.—1874. April 30 to November 6.

8th Parliament, opened May 6,1875; dissolved.
Session 1.—1875. From May 6 to October 15.

" 1.—1875.,, November 10to November 30.
»  H1.—1876. . May 26 to November 17.
» IvV.—1877. ,  May 31 to December 21.

List of Members of the Legislative Council, 1879,

President—Hon. Sir Wm. Milne.

Hon. Thomas Hogarth.

Hon. Sir Henry Ayers,
K.C.M.G. Henry Kent Hughes.

,, Richard Chaffey Baker. ,, Charles Morgan.
., Allen Campbell. ,, James Pearce.

,, John Crozier. ., Wm. Sandover.
., Walter Duffield. ,,» Phillip Santo.

,» Joseph Fisher ,, Henry Scott.

. Alexander Hay. ,, Robert Alfred Tard ton.
., John Hodgkiss. ,» Charles Barney Young.

List of Members of the House of Assembly, 1879,

Speaker—Sir George Strickland.

Mr. Rodolph Wilhelm Emil
Henning.
Hon. Thomas King.

Mr. Friedrich Edouard Hein-
rich Wulff Krichauff.
Albert Henry Landseer.
William James Magarey

Hon. Charles Mann.

» John Cox Bray. Mr. David Moody.

. Henry Edward Bright. . William Ranson Mort-

. William Henry Bundey. lock.

Hon. John Carr. . John Langdon Parsons.
Mr. Wentworth Cavanagh. Hon. Thomas Playford.
Patrick Boyce Coglin. Mr. William Quinn.

. Ebenezer Cooke. » Rowland Rees.

.. John Darling. ,, Robert Dalrymple Ross.

., John William Downer. ., Wm. Benjamin Roun-

George Swan Fowler. sevell.

. Hugh Fraser. ., James Shannon.

., Luke Liddiard Furner. ,, William Knox Simms.
Hon. Lavington Glyde. ., Edward Thomas Smith.
Mr. Arthur Hardy. ,, Francis William Stokes.

., Charles Simeon Hare. . William Townsend.

Hon. George Charles . Ebenezer Ward.
Hawker. . James White.

Mr. Thomas Atkinson.
. Frederick Basedow.
., Wm. Henry Bean.
,, Caleb Peacock.

,, John Bosworth.

., William Alexander "
Erskine West.

,, David Bower.
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Tasmania.

List of Members of Legistative Councit, 1879

[By the Queen’s order, Members of the Legislative Council
and the Speaker of the House of Assembly take the title of
“ Honorable.” The figures within parentheses signify the

number of Members for the districts so marked.]

Hobart (3).. Agnew James William
Aikenhead James (Chairman of
Tamar (2).. Committees)
North Esk Cameron Donald
Buckingham Chapman Thos. Daniel
Hobart (3).. Crowther William L.
Longford Dodery William
Meander Field Thomas William
Derwent Gellibrand Walter A. B.
Tamar (2 Grubb William Dawson
Newland Innes Frederick Maitland

Pembroke.. Lord James

Cambridge Lord John

Jordan Maclanachan James

Mersey Moore William

Huon.. .. Robertson James Thomas

Hobart (3)....oooeee. Wilson SirJ. M.,K.C.M.G.(Presi-

dent)

List of Members of the House of Assembly, 1879.
West Hobart ...Balfe John Donnellan
South Hobart Belbin William
Cumberland Brown Hon. Nicholas John
Brighton Butler Hon. Henry (Speaker)
Norfolk Plain Clark Andrew Inglis

Queenborough. ...Crowther Edward Lodewyk
Glenorchy .. Dobson Hon. Alfred

East Hobar Dodds John Stokell

East Devon Dooley James Monaghan
Fingal Douglas Adye

Ringwood Gellibrand William St. Paul
Wellington Giblin Hon. William Robert

George Town
Sorell
Central Launceston
Deloraine ..
Richmond

Gilmore George
Gunn James Arndell
___Hart William

Henry Samuel
Hodgson William

Selby ... Just Thomas Cook
Campbell Town Keach George William
Clarence............ Lamb Henry

North Launceston
Central Hobart

Lewis David

WestDevon.. Meredith Hon. Charles
Glamorgan .. Mitchell John
Kingborough O'Reilly Hon. Christopher
Oatlands Pillinger Alfred Thomas

Westbury
New Norfol
Franklin

North Hobar
South Launceston
Morven

Reibey Hon. Thomas
Riddoch Alexander
Risby Joseph Edward
Salier George

Whitehead John

Victoria.
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List of Members of Legislative Council, 1879,

List of Members of Legislative Assembly, 1879

W estern Australia.

List 0Of Members of Executive Councii, 1879

[See constitution.]
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PARLIAMENTARY AGENT.

Appointment of Parliamentary Agent in
England for the Colony of New South Wales
conferred on the Hon. Francis Scott, M.P.
for Roxburgh, to represent the interest of
the Colony in the House of Commons at a
salary of £500 a year. 1844. Act passed ap-
pointing him agent for N.S.W . for three years,
Oct. 30, 1846; re-appointed for one year ending
August 3, 1849.

Edward W . T. Hamilton appointed agent for
the Colony of N.S.W., resident in London,
January 20, 1863. [SeeAgent Colonial; also,
Hamilton, Edward William Terrick.]

PARRAMATTA.

Settlement of then Government farm, called
Rose Hill, at the head of the navigation of the
harbour, fifteen miles distant from Sydney,
February 16, 1788.

Rose Hill, becoming a regular town, had its
name changed to Parramatta, June 14, 1791.

John Macarthur appointed to the command
of the settlement at Parramatta, January,
1793.

St. John’s, C.E.,
September 29, 1796.

School opened by Mr. Tull. 1797. [The
School was conducted by Mr. Tull until 1877.]

First “ Independent” service in New South
Wales held here, by Mr. James Cover. 1798.

Instructions issued by Governor King to the
Rev. Samuel Marsden upon delegating to him
the general superintendence of the Police Con-
vict Settlement and Government Affairs at
Parramatta, September 28, 1800.

St. John’s Church, Parramatta, opened, April,
1803.

First R. C. Service held at Parramatta by
Rev. James Dixon, May 24, 1803.

Boatmen'’s fares to Parramatta arranged, July
6, 1833. [See Government Orders.]

The foundation stone of the Church of Eng-
land parsonage, Parramatta, laid by the daughter
of Rev. Samuel Marsden, May 5, 1816.

First Wesleyan Chapel opened in Macquarie-
street, Sydney, April 21, 1821.

Observatory built by Mr.
nomer, 1822.

Parramatta Show. First prize for best
thoroughbred colt awarded to Sir John Jamie-
son’s horse, “ Bennelong ” which afterwards won
many races on the turf of the colony, October 4,
1827.

School of Industry opened, July 1, 1829.

An Act was passed by the Legislative Council
of New South Wales to compel married men to
withdraw their wives from the female factory
at Parramatta or to maintain them after the
expiration of their service, September 14,
1829.

Daring robbery of St. John’s Parsonage (Rev.
S. Marsden). A quantity of valuable property,
and the communion plate of St. John’s Church
carried off. November 26, 1879.

Parramatta, completed,

Dunlop, Astro-

PARLIAMENTARY AGENT—PEDDER.

Annual conference with the aboriginals in the
Market Place, by Governor Darling, January,
1830.

Foundation of King’s School by the Home
Government; Rev. Robert Forrest first Head
Master, May, 1831. [Rev. W. B. Clarke,
Simpson, Troughton, Walker, H. Hobart, Thos.
Druitt, H. Armitage, and G. F. Macarthur
were the successive Head Masters since. The
present building was completed about the year
1836. The King’s School was closed from 1866
to 1869, and then re-opened by the present
Head Master.]

Lady Elizabeth Jane Bourke, wife of Sir
Richard Bourke, K.C.B., Governor of New
South Wales, died at Parramatta, aged 56. She
was buried in the Church of England cemetery,
Parramatta, May 7, 1832.

King’s School (present building) Parramatta,
opened, November 8, 1856.

Abbott, gaoler, was shot in the gaol, and
three prisoners made their escape, December,
1842.

Observatory closed, 1847.

Lady Mary Fitzroy killed December, 1847.

PARRY, Sir Edward.

Celebrated Polar navigator, arrived in Sydney
December 23, 1829.

Sir William Edward Parry, Arctic explorer,
and for some years commissioner of the Aus-
tralian Agricultural Company, died 1855.

PARDONS. Lieutenant King arrived in the
“ Gorgon” with his Majesty’s authority to grant
absolute or conditional pardon to a number of
convicts. September 21, 1791.

PATERSON, Lieutenant-Governor. Captain
Paterson, late Lieutenant-Governor, embarked
for England in the “ Britannia,” September 29,
1796.

PATERSON River;
1818.

settlement on, formed,

PATERSON, cColonel, succeeded Lieutenant-
Governor Foveaux. Colonel Paterson, as supe-
rior military officer at the time of Bligh's sus-
pension, was entitled to the office of Lieutenant-
Governor, and remarked in the proclamation
announcing his assumption that *“ Successive
causes had until that period protracted his
receiving the trust that devolved on him for the
time being.” January 9, 1809.

Colonel Paterson and lady embarked for
England, April 17, 1810.

PATTISON, Robert Lorn, Captain of the
“ Rose,” one of the first coasting steamers of
New South Wales, died October 10, 1877.
PEDDER, Sir John Lewis, Chief Jus-
tice of Tasmania, died, 1860.

Bart.,
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PEDESTRIANISM, &c.

Old Racecourse (Hyde Park) Sydney—Dicky Dowling: to
carry 14st. and run 50 yards, whilst another ran back-
wards and forwards same distance; Dowling won.
October, 1810.

Hyde Park—100 yards to be run by Lieutenant Ray-
mond, while Captain Glenholm rode the same dis-
tance; the Lieutenant won. July 24, 1811.

Parramatta Racecourse—Mr. T. Nicholls and Mr. J.
Lawson, 200 yards. The first trial resulted in a dead
heat; Mr. Nicholls won the run off. September 26,

1829,

Hyde Park—A 200 yards backwards race took place
between two amateurs, which was won by 3 yards in
one minute. August 13, 1830.

Parramatta Road—A man leaped over three horses,
January 15, 1832.

Great foot race at Campbelltown between Merritt and
Warby, two celebrated runners; both claimed the
victory. May 22, 1833.

Parramatta Road—Welch and Farrell, 100 yards. The
winner had a wooden leg and received 10 yards start.
May 5, 1834.

Parramatta Road—A gentleman, for a stake of £10 and
a dinner, undertook to run a mile in 5min. 30sec.; he
won by 3sec. March 31, 1835.

Parramatta Road—T. Wall and C. Hearne ran a 100
yards backwards race for £20; Hearne won; time,
15sec. May 4, 1835.

Hunt undertook to walk from Macquarie Place to Parra-
matta, against time—3 hours; time taken, 2h. 51min.
October 13, 1840.

Elizabeth-street—W. Sparkes and W. Burcher, 200yards
£20; Burcher won by 5yards. January 27, 2.

Parramatta Road—The famous Flying Pleman (King)
undertook to walk from Macquarie Place to Ireland’s
public-house, carrying 6st., in 3h. 20 min. He carried
aboy, making up the weight with shot, and won with
9 min. to spare. October 28, 1842.

St. Aubin's—Abraham Nicholls, of Scone, picked up 100
stones, yard apart, dropping each into a basket (about
5%miles). Time, 1 h. 422 min. December 26, 1844.

Petersham—One mile, between N. Dillon and a native
boy, latter receiving 20 yards start, and won easy.
January 24, 1845.

Windsor—Mad Arthur and Kurragong Sawyer to roll
from Freeman'’s Australian Hotel to Blanchard's Sign-
post; the sawyer won in 9 min. The same distance
was done immediately afterwards in 5 min. by Black
Bobby. It was very muddy. September 13, 1845.

Woolpack, Petersham—A wager was laid that a man
would go one mile without touching the ground, and
would not be drawn or ride; it was accomplished on a
bicycle. December 8, 1845.

Windsor—Thompson and an aboriginal (Neddy), £20,
100yards; Thompson won by afoot. December9,1845.

Cook’s River Road—Nap Dillon and Smith (the Flying
Tailor), 100 yards, £10 a-side; Dillon won by 14 yards.
March 8, 1847.

Hyde Park—H. Manuel and J. Farnell, 150 yards, £20;
Manuel won by 5 yards. April 8,1847.

Maitland—On a Friday the Flying Pieman was backed
to pick up 100 cobs of corn, yard apart, in 55 min.:
won by 2min. On the Saturday he walked 5 miles
for a wager—no time given; and on the Monday, at 3
o’'clock, he commenced to walk 192 miles in 48 hours,
the conditions being not to stop for a minute; three
men to watch him—one to keep tally, second to
keep a fire going, and the other asleep. At the end of
the first 24 hours he had accomplished 102 miles. He
failed in the attempt. August 27, 1847.

Maitland Racecourse—King, the Flying Pieman, success-
fully accomplished the feat of walking 192 miles in 48
hours; time, 46 h. 30 min. September 28, 1847.

Maitland—King successfully accomplished the great feat
of walking 1000 quarter miles in 1000 quarter hours,
at the back of the Fitzroy Hotel, November 8, 1847.

Maitland, “ Fitzroy Hotel”—Flying Pieman to perform
the following in 1 h. 30 sec., which he won by 45 sec.
Started at 3®9 p.m..—Ran a mile, 386-30; walked a
mile, 347-45; wheeled a wheelbarrow Y mile, 3%7-2;
2%minutes rest; drew a gig with a lady in it 2mile,
443-15; at 425 he commenced to walk backwards ¥
mile, 494-47; rest, 2¥%min.; picked up 50 stones,
443-30; now had 15% min. to perform 50 leaps,
4468-15. December 26, 1847.

Dungog—Flying Pieman wheeled a barrow one mile,
took 50 flying leaps, picked up 50 stones yard apart,
ran backward Yzmile; after this he carried a live goat
weighing 80lbs., 1%2mile in 12 min. January 8, 1848.

Dungog—Flying Pieman, 500 half miles in 500 half
hours, accompanied by his dog Faithful, which was
knocked up. February 28, 1848.

Singleton—Flying Pieman walked backwards Y2mile, 6
min; ran a mile, 7%2min.; wheeled abarrow 1 mile, 15
min.; 50 leaps, 2 ft. 6.in., 10 ft. apart, 6 min. 25 sec,;
50 stones, yard apart, 14 min.; walked a mile, 11 min,;
wheeled a cart¥mile, 20 min.; won by 8%min. The
whole was to be done in 90 min. He stopped 1 min.
45 sec. April 28, 1848,

Singleton—Flying Pieman to do 60 miles in 12 hours—
completed 50 miles in 11 hours 40 minutes; he walked
several yards over the measured mile. May 4, 1848.

Flying Pieman beat the coach from Brisbane to Ipswich
by one hour, carrying a carriage pole 100 lbs. weight.
October, 1848.

Parramatta—Ben Watsford and Tom New, 150 yards;
Watsford, 2 yards. December 11,

Hyde Park- Paddy Sinclair and Hoppy Meharty, 100
yards; Meharty by 6 yards. After the above the
latter ran a match with “ Little Billy the Tailor,”
which he won. January 3, 1849,

Hyde Park—M. Morrissey and E. Byrnes, 100 yards;
won by the latter by 6 inches. July 16, 1849.

Maitland—Mr. Hughes of Patrick’s Plains, to run 10
miles in 1 h. 20 min.; lost by 2minute. It was rain-
ing. November, 1849,

Waterloo Flats—M. Comerford and Nat Dillon, ¥mile;
Comerford won by 50 yards. July 1,

Hyde Park—Richards and Hutchmson latter 3 yards
start; Richards fell down. August 5, 1850.

Newtown—W. Sparkes and Hanslow, 200 yards; Hans-
low easy. January 3, 1853.

Cook’s River—Adelaide stag and W. Sparkes, Yamile;
stag won easy. January 17, 1843.

Neich's, Burwood—Adelaide stag and Mr. Watsford,
100 yards; Watsford by 3 yards. January 20, 1853.

Neich’s, Burwood—Two hours after the above, Adelaide
stag and T. Farnell, 150 yards; Farnell, 5 yards.
January 20, 1853.

Newtown—Adelaide stag and Hatfield, 200 yards, £100;
stag won. March 21,

Cook’s River—Eather and Hatfleld 150 yards, £50;
Eather easy. March 28, 1853.

Cook’s River—Adelaide stag and Farnell, of Parramatta,
200 yards, £200; Farnell, 2 yards. April 18, 1853.

Cook’s River—Eather and Farnell, 150 yards, £200;
Eather by less than a foot. April 25, 1853.

Cook’s River—Alcorn, of Maitland, and Eather, of
Windsor, 100 yards, £200; Alcorn, 2 yards. May 31,
1853.

Cook’s River—Alcorn and Farnell, 100 yards, £200;
Farnell, 2 yards. June 20, 1853.

Cook’s River—Alcorn and Farnell, 100 yards, £100;
Farnell, yard. June 21, 1853.

Farmer's Inn, Parramatta Road—W. Grigsby, walking,
running, and wheeling a barrow a mile, and picking
up 50 stones, yard apart; time, 47 minutes. Perry,
of Parramatta, ran a mile against time. July 21,

Maitland—G. Rutherford, of Parramatta, and T. Wise,
of West Maitland, 100 yards; Rutherford easy.
November 7, 1853.

Essendon—Mr. Manuel, of Victoria, and T. Farnell, of
N.S.W., 100 yards, £600; Farnell won by 3 yards.
November, 1853.

St. Mary's—Pictori stag and Charles Roberts, 100 yards,
£20; stag won. January 2, 1854.

Hyde Park—Dr. Watsford and Thompson, the former
laying £100 to latter’'s £50; Dr. won easy. January
16, 1854.

Parramatta—Rutter and Perry, 50 yards, £100; Rutter,
half yard. January 18, 1854.

Wilberforce—Oxley and Bushell, 100 yards, £20; Oxley
by one foot. May, 1854.

Goulburn—John Hill and Patrick Byrne, 100 yards,
£50; Byrne by 5inches. In a return match next day
Hill was the winner. April, 1854.

Hyde Park—Rutherford and The Stranger, 100 yards,
£50; Rutherford, 4 yards: time, 10 seconds. July 3,
1854.
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South Head Road—The elder of the Thomas Brothers,
undertakers, to walk from Spink’s public-house to the
Lighthouse and back in 3 hours; time, 2 h. 43 min.
The junior brother walked it the next evening in 2 h.
33 min. This was beaten the next week by 9 min.
Distance, about 13 miles. July, 1854.

Hyde Park—Great foot hurdle race, 150 yards, four
3 ft. 6 in. hurdles; won by Lindsay, of Windsor. July
31, 1854.

Parramatta—Rutherford and Schofield, 150 yards; won
by the former. Welsh and Rutter, 75 yards; was won
by Welsh. August 14, 1854.

South Head—Welsh and the Stag, six score yards;
Welsh, 1yard. August 19, 1854,

Hyde Park—Welsh and Eather, 100 yards, £50; Welsh
easy. August 28, 1854.

Hyde Park—Farnell and a Penrith boy, Farnell to carry
33 Ibs.; the boy just won. September 18, 1854.

Surry Hills Boundary Stone—Welsh and Farnell, £500
and championship, 100 yards; Welsh won easy.
October 9, 1854.

Hyde Park—Devonport and Farnell, 125 yards, £500;
Devonport by a breast. Three quarters of an hour
after, Farnell ran Rutherford, 150 yards; Farnell won.
October 23, 1854.

Homebush—Devonport and Farnell,
championship; Devonport by a yard.
1854.

Museum, Geelong—Williams backed to perform the fol-
lowing 8featsin dmin.:—1. Torun 100yards against the
best maninthe town. 2. To pick up 30 eggs, yard apart,
with his mouth, without touching the eggs or his
knees the ground. 3. To throw 20 56lb. weights over
his head. 4. To run 100 yards backwards. 5. To hop
100 yards. 6. To throw a 10lb. hammer 80 feet.
7.  To throw a 2Ib. quoit 140 feet. 8. To roll a coach
wheel ¥2mile. Time, 25 min. 30 sec. December, 1854.

Windsor Racecourse—Judd and Dalton, 150 yards, £100
a-side; Dalton, 3yards. January 15, 1855.

Parramatta Road—Dalton and Devonport, 150 yards,
£100, and championship; Dalton was never headed.
January 31, 1855.

Perth, Tasmania—J. Gibson, of Tasmania, and Mr. Best,
of Vlctorla champlonshlp of Tasmania and £200;
Mr. Best won. March, 1855.

Windsor—Devonport and Dalton, 150 yards; Devonport,
3yards; time, 17 sec. April 2, 1855.

South Head—Mr. Baker, an amateur, 8¥miles in 1 hour;
lost by 43 sec. March 3, 1855.

Flying Pieman to pick up 50 stones, yard apart, in 17
minutes; he won by 15 sec. April, 1855.

Homebush—Devonport and Dalton, championship and
£200, 150 yards; Devonport, easy, 17 sec. April 25,
1855,

125 yards, £100,
November 27,

Hyde Park—Messrs. Jones and Holman, to walk from
St. James' Church round the Park; Holman won.
Shortly after a Billy Humphries undertook to walk
from Market-strcet round in 20 min.; his time was
17%min. June 4, 1855.

Windsor—Dalton and Beasley, 50 yards; Dalton easy.
June 18, 1855.

Homebush—Devonport and a darkey, 300 yards over
hurdles. The pistol went off accidentally; the darkey
ran over the ground. July 9, 1855.

Wilberforce—Bushell and a darkey, 300 yards, £200;
darkey, 4 yards. July 16, 1855.

Canterbury—Mr. Baker against a horse, 50 yards; Mr.
Baker was beaten. August 20, 1855.

Yass—D. Douglass and J. Quigley, 150 yards; Quigley
easy. September 3, 1855.

Bendigo Camp enclosure—Devonport and Hayes, £400,
200 yards; Devonport, by a breast; time, 20 sec.
May, 1

Kissing Point—Dalton and Farnell,
Dalton, by 18 inches. March 17, 185

Ryde—Farnell and Rutter (the latter 3yards start), 100
yards, £100; Rutter, smallest possible win. April 13,
1857.

Randwick Road—Chamberlain and Murphy, 150 yards,
£50; Chamberlain easy. April 13, 1857.

Melbourne Cricket Ground—450 yards Steeplechase,
championship of St. Kilda and Brighton, between H.
Ryder and J. Were; Ryder, 10 yards. June, 1857.

Brisbane Road, Launceston—G. M'Kertchy and Thos.
Prosser, 150 yards, £20; Prosser, 2 yards; 17 sec.
July 23, 1857.

100 yards, £100;
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Liverpool—Martineer and Hall, 136 yards, £100; Marti-
neer 2 yards. March 29, 1858.

Domain, Sydney—Mr. C. R. Robinson and Mr. Alexander
Black, 100 yards, £200; both these gentlemen were
verging on 60 years of age. Robinson won easy. Sep-
tember 3, 1858.

Victoria Theatre, Ballarat—Allen M‘Kean commenced the
feat of 1000 miles in 1000 hours; finished on November
27, at 10 o'clock, with the greatest gameness, doing the
last mile in 222minutes, and successfully completing
the 1000 miles. September 19, 1858.

Armidale—J. Scholes and J. Jones, 3 miles, £20. Jones
fell down, and Scholes finished alone in a walk. Time
33 minutes. September, 1858.

Wowingragong course—John Robinson and William
Ragen, championship of the Lachlan and £300, 100
yards; Robinson by 2yards. September 15, 1858.

Barwon Park—Martineer and White, 100 yards, £200;
Martineer, 5yards. February 14, 1859.

Lyceum Theatre, Sydney—Allen M‘Kean commenced
1000 miles in 1000 hours, at 31 min. 21 sec. past 12;
on the 12th March he had 270 miles finished, when
there was no further news. February 28, 1859.

Government Paddock, Melbourne—Hammond and Mills,
£200, 200 yards; Hammond after a hard race. July
11, 1859.

Lower Araluen—J. P. Sweeny and W. Frost, 100 yards,
£200; ended in dispute. August, 1859.

Tasmania—W. Guest and Allen M‘Kean, the latter to
give one minute startin 5 miles walk; Guest easy.
Time 50 min. 37 sec. September, 1859.

Camp Reserve, Bendigo—Tom Moran and Joe Whitley,
200 yards, £300; Moran, 1yard. March,

Randwick—J. R. Clarke of George street, Sydney walked
round the Randwick course (1% mile) in 14 min.
10 sec.; Mr. Goyder wagered £5 that he would do the
same feat. He accomplished it in 13 min. 26 sec. He
had no training. July 28, 1860.

Punt Road, Richmond (V.)—Harry Sallars, of the P. R.
to receive 250 yards start from G. Moore, in a 4 mile
walk; Sallars gave up. October 30, 1860.

M. C. C. Ground—Charles Harrison, of Richmond, and
Mr. Mount, of Ballarat, a match at 100 and 140 yards
over hurdles, for the championship of Victoria; won
by Mr. Harrison. June, 1860.

Mudgee—W. Freeman and J. Webster, of Mudgee,
£100; Freeman won easily. August, 1861.

Bathurst—W. Freeman, of Bathurst, and John Webster,
of Mudgee, 100yards, £200; Webster, 3yards. October,

1861.

Copenhagen Grounds, Ballarat—Alexander Mount and
Harrison, three distances, viz.: 100 and 140 yards flat,
and 880 yards over 16 hurdles; Mr. Mount won the
100 yards; time, 10%sec.; Mr. Harrison the 140 easy
in 14 sec., and Mr. Mount the 880. December, 1861.

Penrith—Webster of Mudgee, and Single of Penrith, 100
yards, £400; Single, 2 yards. Time 11 sec. March 10,
1862.

Bourke-street—Rankin and J. Earp, 130 yards, £30; Earp
5yards. October 6, 1862.

Copenhagen Grounds, Ballarat—Mr. Harrison and Mr.
Mount for the amateur championship, 100 yards, 140
yards, and 660 yards over 12 hurdles; Mr. Harrison
won the 100 yards by a yard in 10% sec., and the 140
yards by 4 yards, in 13%sec. The 660 hurdle race
was a dead heat—Mr. Mount running over the ground.
December 2, 1862.

Lake Macquarie Road—Jones and Earp, 150 yards, £40;
Earp 3 yards. December 6, 1862.

Wangaratta—T. Cusack of Wangaratta, and T. Holmes of
Geelong, best two out of three at 150 and 300, and to
decide at 200 yards; £400; Cusack won the 150 in 15%2
sec., by ayard and a half, and the 300 by 8 yards in
32Vssec., December 22, 1862.

A. A. Company's Paddock, Newcastle—E. Jones of New-
castle, and J. Honeysett of Mudgee, 100 yards, £100.
Jones, 2 yards. January 8, 1863.

Elsternwick Road—G. Moore and G. Shaw; 7 mile walk,
£100; Moore won by 1min. 53 sec. Time1h. 3 min.
and 2 sec. September 14, 1863.

Double Bay—J. Earp and W. Malone, 120 yards, £40;
Malone, 3yards. Time, 11%sec. June 10, 1864.

Opening day of the Albert Cricket Ground, Redfern,
October 29, 1864.

Randwick—E. Jones and W. Malone, 155 yards, £200;
Malone, 3yards. Time 18 sec. March 11, 1865.
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Randwick—Braithwaite and Lennon, 120 yards, £50;
Braithwaite easy. December 14, 1865.

Double Bay—Braithwaite and Kelly, 200 yards, £50;
Braithwaite, 2 yards. February 9, 1866.

Liverpool—Braithwaite and Newtown 125 yards, £165;
Braithwaite, 3 yards. April 4,

Red House, Northcote (V). —George Moore, of Melbourne,
and William Payne of Ballarat, 7 miles championship
and £100; G. Moore easy. A mistake was made in
the distance; they walked 7 miles 1346 yards.
1h. 2 min. 7%sec. July 21,1866.

Red House, Northcotc—Mat Higgins, 10 milesin 59min.
35sec. September 22, 1866.

Albert Ground—Hincks and Leahart, I¥2mile walk £100;
Hincks easy. Time 12 min. 50 sec. ~October 6, 1866.
Albert Ground—Strettles and Grisdale, 4 miles, £50;
Strettles by 229 yards. Time 37 min. 50 sec. October

6

Time

Dunedin (N. Z.)—Wain of Dunedin, and Brown of Green
Island, for championship of Otago and £100; 1 mile.
Brown easy. October 19, 1866.

Albert Ground, Sydney—Mat Higgins, 5%miles in half
an hour; it was raining heavily; Higgins was beaten
by 1 min. 40 sec. December 1,1866.

Albert Ground—Hincks and Hamilton, 3 mile walk, £800
and championship; Hamilton by 55sec. Time 24 min.
48 sec. February 8, 1867.

Albert Ground—Mat Higgins and S. Manning to pick up
50 apples yard apart; Higgins won by 2, or 120
yards. Time 9 min. 58 sec. March 23, 1867.

Albert Ground—Young Austin to run 10 miles in the
hour. Time taken, 66 min. 15 sec. July 6, 1867.

Albert Ground—First 5 mile handicap, won by Mat
Higgins. Time, 29 min. 28 sec. July 13, 1867.

Albert Ground—Match against time, 19 miles in 2 hours
by Mat Higgins; he failed. Time 15 miles, 1 h. 36
min. 50 sec. August 10, 1867.

Albert Ground—Hamilton and Hincks, walk 1 mile, £30;
Hincks came in first but was disqualified. Time 6 min.
30 sec. August 17, 1867.

West Maitland—F. Mitchell and R. Bogg,
£60; Mitchell, 2 yards. August 31, 1867.

Albert Ground—Mat Higgins and M. Ryan, Y2 mile,
£50 Higgins 10 yards. Time, 53Ysec. September 21,

100 yards,

Red House Northcote—Mat Higgins and Cusack, 450
yards, Higgins easy. Time, 57 sec. February 28, 1868.

Wangaratta—Higgins and Cusack, three distances, viz.:
150, 200, and 300 yards. Higgins won the 200 in 23V
sec., and 300 in 36 sec. June 15, 1868.

Red House, Northcote—J. G. Harris, of Victoria, v.
Simon Hanrahan, of Sydney, 200 yards, £200; Harris
7yards. Time, 22 or 23sec.  August 1, 1868.

Red House, Northcote—J. G. Harris, (V.) v. W. Braith-
waite (N.S.W.), 150 yards, £400; Harris, 11 yards.
Time, 15%sec. August 8, 1868.

Mowbray Course (T.)—J. G. Harris (V.) v. R. Collins (T.)
150 yards, £400; Harris, 5yards. Time, 15%sec. Sep-
tember 28, 1868.

Albert Ground—First Sydney Athletic Cup won by Yeo-
mans, December 26, 1868.

Albert Ground—W. Baker v. W. Hamilton, 7-mile walk,
£110; Baker, 50 yds. Time, 1 h. 41 sec. November
9, 1869.

Albert Ground—W. Hamilton v. W. Baker, 7 miles—
£175. Baker gave up. Time, 56 min. 50 sec. De-
cember 17, 1869.

Melbourne—English pedestrians arrived at Melbourne:
Bird, Hewitt, and Topley. December 16, 1869.

Croxton Park—J. G. Harris v. Bolton, latter 5 yds.
start—150 yards—£200. Harris easily. Time, 15 sec.
December 17, 1869.

M. C. C. Ground—J. G. Harris and Frank Hewitt, 100,
200, 300, 440.—Hewitt won the 100 by 1 foot in 10%
sec., the 440 finished alone in 51%sec. The 300 was a
dead heat in 33%sec. Harris won the 150 by 4 yds. in
15Yssec., and the 200 by 3 yds. in 20%2sec. March 57,
1870.

Albert Ground—First appearance of Engllsh pedestrians
in New South Wales, April 18,

Albert Ground—G. Topley V. W Baker 7 miles, £200.
Baker, 300 yds. start. Topley won. Time, 57 min. 10
sec. May 7, 1870.

Friendly Societies Ground—F. Hewitt v. J. G. Harris—
300 yards, £200. Hewitt, 5 yards. Time, 30% sec.
June 23, 1870.
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Albert Ground—Mat. Higginsv. A. Pyke—150, 300, and
440 yards, £100.  Higgins won the 150 yards by a
yard in 15%sec., and the 300 by 2 yards, in 32%sec.
September 17, 1870.

Albert Ground—Hewitt v. Harris, 150 and 200 yards.
Hewitt won the 150 by Y2yard in 15%sec., and Harris
the 200 by a breast in 24%sec. October 5, 1870.

Albert Ground—W. Lyall and W. Baker, walk 2 miles,
championship. Baker gave up. October 22, 1870.

Albert Ground—H. Teddick and J. Wheeler, 1 mile,
£100. Wheeler easily. Time, 4 min. 58sec. Novem-
ber 9, 1870.

Christchurch, New Zealand—F. Hewitt, % mile, to beat

a certain time. Time taken, 1 min. 53%sec. (Fastest
half mile on record.) September 17, 1871.

Eastern Oval, Ballarat—G. Cronk v. W. Sansom, Yamile,
championship and £100. Sansom, 2 feet. Time, 2

min. 2-10 sec. February 2, 1874.
West Maitland—R. F. Watson v. F. Brown, 200 yards,
£200. Watson, 6 yards. April 4, 1874.
Hamilton—R. F. Watson v. G. Cronk,
Watson won in 50%sec. July 11, 1874.
Parkes—J. Applitt v. G. Thompson, 100 yards, £100.
Applitt easily. April 11, 1870.
Albert Ground—L. Pyke v. Henderson, 1m||e £100.
870.

Y mile, £200.

Pyke, 7 yards. Time, 5min. July 25, 1
Launceston—Bird, 10% miles in 56 min. August 29,
70.
Parkes—Applitt v. Baxter, 250 yards, £400. Applitt by

8yards. Time, 29 sec. December, 1874.

Narrandera—R. Williams v. T. Green, 100 yards, £100.
Williams, 8 yards. January 1, 1875.

Albert Ground—First Sheffield Handicap, prize £40;
won by H. Thompson, W. H. Morgan, second, and R.
Hill, third. January 26, 1875.

West Maitland—R. F. Watson v. J. M. Watson, 200 yds.,
£500. R. F. Watson, 4 yards. Time, 19 8-10th sec.
May 22, 1875.

Dunedin—W. Edwards to walk 70 yards—Burke to run
100, £80. Dead heat. June 12, 1875.

Auckland—Collins v. Delaney, 100, 150, and 300 yards.
Delaney won the first two. June 12, 1875.

R. F. Watson v. F. Hewitt, 200 yards, £400. R. F.
Watson, 1yard—20 1-10th sec. May 6, 1876.

Parkes—R. F. Watson v. J. Applitt, 200 yards, £400.
Applltt easy. Time,. 19% or 20%sec. November 4,

South Melbourne Ground—Hew'itt v. F. S. Davis, 100
yards, £200. Hewitt easy. November 8, 1876.

West Maitland—R. F. Watson v. F. S. Davis, 150 yards,
£200. Won by Watson by 9inches. Time, 14 6-10th
sec. January 13, 1877.

Richmond—C. Carver v. J. Griffiths, 150 yards, £200.
Carver won in 15 sec. August 15, 1877.

Longest hop, step, and jump in Australia done at Mort-
lake (Victoria) by a half-caste named Frank Clarke—
distance covered 42 feet 7¥zinches. December 26,1877.

West Maitland—R. F. Watson v. C. Carver, 200 yards,
£400. Watson easily. May 18, 1878.

West Maitland—R. F. Watson v. J. Applitt, 200 yards,
£400. Watson won by 6yards. Time, 20 sec. 1878.

W. Edwards to walk 110 miles in 24 hours, at Guild
Hall, Sydney, walked 102 miles in the specified time.
October 5, 1878. [He performed the feat in Bathurst
same year. ]

PEERAGE, COLONIAL.

Attempted Creation of. A committee,
consisting of Messrs. Charles Cowper, T. A.
Murray, George Macleay, E. Deas-Thomson,

J. H. Plunkett, Dr. Douglas, W. Thurlow,
James Macarthur, James Martin, andW. C.Went-
worth, appointed on the motion of W. C. Went-
worth, held its first meeting, Sydney, May 27,
1853. Fifteen meetings were called. Half the
members did not attend meetings. The Bill was
reported July 28, 1853. [It was almost univer-
sally condemned by the people, and a large
public meeting was called to oppose it. In the
advertisement convening the meeting were the
following paragraphs:— “ A committee of the






























PRESBYTERIAN.

Foundation-stone of a Scotch Church laid in
Melbourne by David Patrick, Esq., M.D. The
Rev. James Forbes was the resident minister.

January 22, 1842.

A separation in the Scots’ Church took place
ata public meeting of the Presbyterians, held
inthe Scots’ Church in Jamison-street, Sydney;
it was formally determined to renounce their
connection with the Synod of Australia, and all

State support.

February 22, 1842.
The Synod of Australia deposed Dr.

Lang,

he having formerly abandoned them in February

previous.

October 12, 1842.

Foundation-stone of St. Andrew’'s Presbyte-
rian College, Sydney, laid May 9, 1875.
Rev. Irvine Hetherington died at Melbourne,

July 5, 187
St. Andrews College,
22, 1876.

Sydney, opened, July

LIST OF CLERGYMEN.

New Hebrides.
Annand J.
Copeland J.
Mackenzie J.
Macdonald Daniel
Milne Peter ...
Neilson Thomas
Paton J. G....
Robertson Hugh A

fatt W ...

Michelsen

scar,

New South Wales.
Adam Rev. James, M.A..
Armstrung Rev. Andrew

Archlbald Rev. J. H..
Aspinall Rev. Arthur  Ash-
worth .
Auld Rev. John, M.A.
Ayling Rev. John
Bain Rev. William

Baker Rev. William ..

Bannatyne Rev. John .
Beg Wazir, M.D., LL.D.
Benvie Rev. James

Boag Rev. Robert, LL.
Bonthorne Rev. James, MA.
Cameron Rev. Archibald.

Cameron Rev. James, M.A ...
Collie Rev. Rober
Cosh Rev. James, M.
Coutts Rev. James, M.
Curtis Rev. Thomas J.
Dymock Rev. J. W..

Fitzgerald Rev. Patrick
wm. Forsyth,

Frazer Rev.
M.A

Fullerton Rev. James,
Gardiner Rev. Andrew, MA

Gardner Rev. William .
Geekie Rev. Arch. Cons-
table, D.D.

Gibson Rev. John
Gordon Rev. Thomas Achi-
son (C. and S.
Grant Rev. William, M.A.
Greig Rev. Colin R.. -
Grimm Rev. George, M.A..
Haussman Rev. John (with-
out charge) .
Hill  Rev. Thomas MA.
(Licentiate) .
Holland Rev. Edward
Innes Rev. James
(C. and S.)
Jarvie Rev. A. Milni

Mark,

Aneitum
Futuna
Efaté
Efaté
Nguna
Tanna
Aniwa
Eromanga
Tanna
Nguna

Penrith and St. Mary's

Tamworth

Cooma

St. Andrew’s, Forbes

Ashfield, Liverpool Road

Scone and Aberdeen

Hunter-street, Newcastle

Ordained Missionary, Two-
fold Bay

Manning River

Chalmer’s Church

West Maitland

Hinton and Morpeth

St. Stephen’s, East Maitland

Glen Innes

Richmond and Kurrajong

Newtown

Balmain

St. Andrew’s, Newcastle

Waterloo

Broughton Creek

Portland Head, Pitt Town,
and Windsor

Richmond River

Pitt-street, South
Glebe
Bombala

St. Stephen's, Bathurst
Dungog and Stroud
St. Andrew's, Newcastle

Shoalhaven
Hill End
Young

Balmain Mission Church
Dubbo

Wellingrove

St. David's, Ashfield

Johnstone Rev. Thomas___
M.A.

Kerr  Rev. Robert

(without charge)..
Kinross Rev. John, B.A.
Laing Rev. James Samuel
Laughton Rev. James B.,

Mackenzne ‘Rev.
coner C. and S.
Mackenzie Rev. William ___
Mackenzie Rev. Simon, M.A.
Macready Rev. Henry (C.
and S.) .
Macdougall
M'Ewen Rev. Alexander..
M'Gibbon Rev. John, LL.D.
M'Kinnon Rev. Roger .........
Malcolm Rev. Gavin (with-
out charge) ...
Milne Rev. James, M. A.

Peter Fal-

Mood Rev. Christopher John
B.A.

Moore Rev. David,
(without charge

Murray Rev. J.

Osborne Rev. Thomas .

Paterson Rev. Robert Smith

Ross Rev. Duncan.. .

Steel Rev. Robert, Ph. D.,
D.D.

(Licentiate) ...
Stewart Rev. Colin,

(without charge)..
Stirton Rev. Thomas..
Stuart Rev. John Anthony
Tait Rev. A. M..
Whlte Rev. William

M.A.

Whlte ‘Rev. James Smith,

Wllsnn Rev. John, M.A.

New Zealand.
Allsworth Rev. Ralph J
Barclay Rev. George.
Breach Rev. Moses S.
Brown Rev. George,
Bruce Rev. David ..
Burnett Rev. Henry B
Calder Rev. Patrick .
Campbell Rev. John.
Campbell Rev.

Ricarby
Carrick Rev.

Cree James Warwick..
Douglas Rev. Alexander Frost
Douglas Rev. Wm., M.A
Doull Rev James .
Duncan Rev. James .
Elmslie Rev. John, M.A
Frazer Rev. J.M...
Frazer Rev. Robert,
Galloway Rev. James

Hogg Rev. David
Horner Rev. W. Hal
Lindsay Rev. George..
Mackay Rev. John,
MacNicol Rev.

guson ...
Mark Rev. John
Mason Rev. Peter, B. A
M‘Ara Rev. Wm
M* Callum Rev.
M‘Gregor

Fielding...
M'Intosh Rev. Joshua, M.A.
M'Kee Rev. James..
M'Kenney Rev. R
M‘Lae Rev. Will
Moir Rev. John ..
Monroe Rev. George
Morice Rev. George ...
Neill Rev. Samuel James...

M.,
Robert Fer-

Rev.
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Armidale
Haslem's Creek

St. Andrew's College
Muswellbrook

St. John's, Orange

St. John's, Paddington
Bowenfells

Braidwood

Pitt-street, South
Grafton and Ulmarra

St. Paul's, Mudgee
Woolloomooloo

St. Peter's, St. Leonard's

St. John’s, Paddington
Wallsend and Lambton

Tutorial Institution

Parramatta
Taralga

Wi a
St. Stephen’s,
street.

Phillip-

<Sydney

Inverell

Wollongong

St. Andrew’s, Goulburn

St. Andrew's

-St. Andrew’s, Singleton
Kiama.

Waverley, W.
Geraldine, C.
New Plymouth, T.
Onehunga, A,
Auckland
Ashburton, C.
Nelson

Napier, H. B.

Omaru, C.

Auckland
Leeston, C.
Greymouth
Akaroa, C.

Waipowa, H. B.
Waipukurau
Pukekohe, A.
Timaru, C.
Tauranga, A.
Thames, A.

Papanui, C
Wiamate, C.
Otahuhu, A,

-Auckland

Katikati, A
Auckland

Oxford, C.
w.

Sefton, C.
Masterton, W.
Warkworth, Auc
Waiapu, A.
Wellington

Auc.

Hokitika
Thames, A.



——



PRESENTATION—PRINCESS CHARLOTTE BAY.

Presbytery of Beechworth.
Chiltern

Murdock A

Baker W. A.
M'Cutchan J.

Presbytery of Ballarat.

Adams Alex. (M.A.) Beaufort

Brunton D. S. Ballan
Campbell William .Carngham
Dick James Ballarat

Gray Elder (B.A.) .
Hamilton R. (M.A.)
Hastie Thomas.
Henderson W.
Hutchison W.
Inglis J. W..
Robinson C. (B.A.)
Souter F.
Steel J. B.
Steele John (M.A.)
Taylor Robert G
Walker Robert
Whan W. T. (M.A.)

Presbytery of Castlemaine.

Chambers J. S,
Griffiths J. (M
Hamilton S. A
Johnstone J. C. (
Kirkwood J

..Rochester, Corop
Tarnagulla

Ha

Echuca

Avoca

Lawson J. W Dunolly
Lewers R Eaglehawk
McArthur J Deniliquin
McCay A. R. B. (B.A.) Castlemaine
M'Nicol A Moulamei

Macdonald

Mathers Geurge Swan Hil

Nicol John Talbot

Nish James . Sandhurst

Robertson J. D. Wentworth

Ross W. (M.A. Taradale, Fryerstown
Roxburgh L Medderburn

Russell J.. Newstead

Smeaton James (M.A.) Maryboroug

Stoker A.. Golden Square‘ Sandhurst
Taylor J. W Maldon

Presbytery of Macedon and Werribee.
Armour J. Woodend and Newham
Kyneton
Tylden
Lancefield
Gisborne
R. Creek
Daylesford
-Redesdale

. C.
Webster W. (Missionary).

Presbytery of Gippsland.

Tarraville
Ramah Yack, Missionary
to the Aboriginals

Groundwater J
Hagernauer F. A

Sale

Bairnsdale
Roberts John Stratford
Tait Lithgow(B.. Maffra
Wilson J. G... Rosedale
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Presbyterian Clergymen not connected with any
Colonial Church (Victoria )

Matthew W Pleasant Creek
Geelong

St. Kilda.

FREE CHURCH OF SCOTLAND.

Tasmania.
Campbell Rev. Lachlan ___ Oatlands
Doctor Rev. Alex. (Mode- Sorrell
rat

Bothwell

St. Andrew’s, Launceston

Glen Gala and Swansea

Evandale and Upper Nile

Deloraine and Hagley

Chalmer’s Church, Launces-
ton

Scotsdale

Newtown

Michie Rev. Alex.. Kirklands and Eskdale

Nicholson Rev. W
(Emeritus) ...

Scott Rev. James

Storie Rev. James

Turnbull Rev. D.

Wardrop Rev. J. R...

St. John's, Hobart Town
St. Andrew's, Hobart Town
Campbelltown
Campbelltown and Macqua-

rie
Chalmer’s Church, Hobart
Webster Rev. R. Maclaren.. Town

PRESENTATION. Presentation of a silver
tea and coffee service and a purse of sovereigns
(total value £2,000), to Hon. J. S. Farnell,
M.L.A., by the people of New South Wales,
January 22, 1876. [See Bowen, Lady; Robin-
son, Hon. Lady; Exile, Constitution.]

PRESS, Liberty of the.

The liberty of the Press in the colony was
acknowledged by His Excellency Sir Thomas
Brisbane, by an official letter addressed by the
Colonial Secretary, Goulburn, to the editor of
the Gazette, October 15, 1824.

Threatened by Governor Darling, who was,
however, foiled by the firmness of Chief Justice
Forbes, 1826.

The Press threatened with a censorship if not
conducted in a more temperate manner, Feb-
ruary 27, 1828.

Newspaper reporters first allowed in the
Council Chambers, Sydney, June 6, 1838.

PRICE, John, Superintendent of Prisons at
Williamstown, Victoria, murdered by convicts,
March 26, 1857.

PRIMOGENITURE, Law of, done away with in
New South Wales by the Act 26 Victoria, No.
20. Reserved December 20, 1862. Assented to
July 21, 1863.

PRINCESS CHARLOTTE BAY, Caverns at.
Remarkable caverns, showing a variety of native
paintings on the wall, discovered here by Cap-
tain King. 1821.
























PROTECTION—RACING.

protection.

The owners and proprietors of land memor-
ialised the Governor and Legislative Council for
the prohibition of the use of sugar in brewing
andto make use of grain as a substitute. They
did not wish to see ardent spirits cheaper, but
thet by those means they would be enabled to
transfer the wealth to the colony instead of its
being drained by foreigners. They also memor-
alisedfor an import duty on corn, as their markets
were destroyed by importations from countries
that contributed nothing towards the revenue of
thecolonies. The result of these memorials was
that the question of protective duties opened a
discussion of more or less warmth for a consider-
able time, but without any definite results, 1831.

A petition for the protection and manufacture
of colonial tobacco, in the shape of an import
duty, presented to the Council, July 11, 1839.

Sir James M ‘Culloch introduced protective
policy into Victoria, 1865.

PROUT, J. S., artist, died in London, 1876.

PUBLIC DEBT OF AUSTRALASIA.
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Wool, the principal export of Queensland,
amounted to 33,901 bales, valued at £1,019,159:
wheat maize, coffee, tobacco, silks, preserved
meat, tallow, cotton, Dugong oil, and copper,
also appear in the lists of exports. 1866.

12,0001b. of arrowroot exported in 1866.

First Circuit Court opened at Townsville,
January 12, 1875.

First sod of Toowoomba waterworks turned,
September 4, 1876.

The Western Railway land sale realized
£26,771, exclusive of deed and survey fees at
Brisbane, November 20, 1877.

[See Aboriginals, Aquatics, Australia,
(Land Explorers, Navigators), Baptists, Banks,

Church of England,
Courts, Cricket,

Bushrangers, Con-

gregational, Fires, More-
ton Bay, &c.]

QUEEN'SWHARF. [See W harfs.]

R.
RACING.

Horse races at Parramatta (the first recorded in Aus-
tralia). The first race was between a horse called
Parramatta and another called Belfast. It was won
by the former The proceedings of the day were en
livened by cock-fighting, wheelbarrow racing, and
jumping in sacks. A publlcan gave enough calico
to make a chemise for a prize “ to be run for by three
vestals of the current order,” and the race caused
much amusement. April 30, 1810.

The first horse races held in Sydney, and established
principally by the officers of the 73rd Regiment, a piece
of ground being cleared for that purpose, to which the
name of “ race course " was applied, now called Hyde
Park. The Subscribers' Plate was, on the first day's
racing, won by a horse named Chase. The sports were
continued for three days, and were followed by a ball.
October 14, 1810.

Second Sydney races held at Hyde Park. The Sub-
scription Plate of 50 guineaswon by Mr. Bent's ch. g.
Matchem; the Two-year-old Sweep by Captain Ritchie’s
Cheviot. On second day the Ladies’ Cup of 50 guineas
was won by Colonel O'Connell’s Carlo, and the trophy
was presented to the winner by Mrs. Macquarie, the
wife of the Governor. On the third day the Magis-
trates’ Plate of 50 guineas was won by Mr. Williams's
Strawberry. August 12, 14, and 16, 1811.

The third Sydney races were held at Hyde Park.
Colonel O'Connell's bl. Carlo won Subscription
Plate; Mr. Lunden’s roan h. Strawberry the Ladies’
Cup; and Mr. Birch’sgr. c. Cheviot the Subscription
Purse of 50 guineas. August 17, 19, 21, and 22, 1812.

The fourth Sydney annual races took place at Hyde
Park. On first day, Colonel O'Connell's 3-year-old bay
colt Little Pickles won the 50-Guinea Plate; and on
the second and third day Colonel O'Connell was again
successful, winning, with Carlo, the Ladies’ Cup and the
50-guinea Subscription Plate. Aug. 16,18, and 19,1813,

The fifth Sydney annual races took place at Hyde Park,
May 31, 1819.

The 5|><th Sydney races at Hyde Park, September 11
and 12, 1820.

The sevenlh Sydneyannual races, Aug. 14,15, and 16,1821.
Races on acourse four miles from Sydney, March 17,1825.
Meeting to organise a Turf Club at Sydney, March 18,

1825; a second meeting was held, and His Excellency

Governor SirThomas Brisbane was announced asPatron

and Sir John Jamison as President. March 23, 1825.

First races under the newly-formed Sydney Turf Club
took place. Mr. Nash's horse Junius, which for long
afterwards retained the championship of the colony,
won his first race—Town Plate of £50, heats, twice

round the course. April 25 and 26, 1825,

The Sydney Turf Club held their second race meeting,

September 23, 24, and 25, 1825.
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Mr. G. T. Rowe’s b. h. Cooramin, aged (Higgerson), beat
Mr. Fraser's b. g. Tomboy, aged (Mitchell), £400, 1%
mile, 10st. 1lb. each; won at the post. Oct. 3, 1857.

Mr. G. T. Rowe's ch. g. Veno, aged (Higgerson), beat
Mr. Fraser's b. g. Van Tromp, aged (Mahon), £800, 3
miles, 10st. 1Ib. each, October 3, 1857.

Mr. Rowe’s Veno sold to Mr. Atkins, of N. S. Wales,
for £1,000, October 5, 1857.

Mr. J. Rowe's b. f. Lauristina, 4 years, 8st. 11lb. (Snell),
beat J. H. Atkinson's c. g. Veno, aged, 9st. 2lb.
(nggerson) 2miles, £2,000, Homebush course; time,

4min. 7¥sec. May 8, 1858.

Mr. G. A. Single’sc. g. Ben Bolt, aged, 9st. 5Ib. (Higgerson),
beat Mr. J. Yorke's b. m. Lauristina, 4 years, 8st. 11lb.
(Snell), Homebush; time, 3 min. 56 sec. Aug. 1, 1858.

Mr. G. T. Rowe’s b. g. Gratis, aged (Higgerson) beat Mr.
C. Obee's b. h. Chevalier, 4 years (Cutts), 2miles, £600,
weight for age; time, 4 min. 11 sec.; Homebush.
August 18, 1858.

Mr. Yuille's Flying Buck by Warhawk, 3 years, 6st. 5lb.
(Yeend), won Champion Sweepstakes, 3 miles; 18
started; time, 5min. 57sec. 1859.

Mr. J. Tait's Zoe, by Sir Hercules, aged, 9st. 3lb., (Ash-
worth), won Champion Stakes, 3 miles; 11 started;
time, 5min. 59 sec. 1860.

Mr. Town's Tarragon, by New Warrior, aged, 9st. 13lb.
(Higgerson), ran a dead heat with Mr. Tait's Volunteer;
time, 5min. 47 sec. Tarragon beat him in the run off;
time, 5min. 48sec.; 8 starters. 1866.

Great Ten-mile race at Wagga Wagga, for sweep, 5sovs.,
with 300 sovs. added; second horse to receive 50 sovs,
and third horse 10 sovs. from stake; won by Mr. H.
J. Bowler'sb.h. Australian, 5years, 11st.7Ib (Yeomans);
R. Grosvenor's g. g. Comet, 5 years, 11st. 2lb. (owner),
second, and W. J. Bowen's br.m. Riverina, aged, 11st.
5lb. (owner), third; Camel, Cotherstone, Bother'em,
Empire, Groongal, Trollus Glaucus, Jerry Sneak, and
Belham. Won by a length; time 23 min. 35 secs.
November 20, 1868.

Great Seven-mile Race at Cobargo, between Mr. J.
Jessop's Moses (1), Mr. W. M'Intosh’s Traveller (2), Mr.
J. M‘Gregor's Robin (3), and Mr. F. Clark’s Bismarck.
Moses won easily. Traveller beat Robin by a neck.
Time, 22 min. December 27, 1870.

The Spy (owner Mr. Harvey), performed the fastest two
miles on record, up to this time, in 3 min. 35%sec., at
Homebush, April 10,1871,

The celebrated racehorse Fishhook died at Woodstock,
aged 8 years, June 15,1871,

Great Race between Mr. Bloomfield's b. ¢. Dagworth, 4
years, by Yattendon—Nutcut, 9st. 5lb. (Donnelly), and
Mr. Cosgrove's b. c. Reprieve, 4 years, by Yattendon—
Gazelle, 9st. 5lb. (Yeomans), for the A.J.C. Plate, 3
miles; they ran a dead heat; time, 5 . 553Dsec.;
deciding heat Dagworth won by a neck in 5 min. 563D
sec. April 19, 1873.

Mr. J. Tait's b. h. Goldsborough by Fireworks—Sylvia,
won the A.J.C. Metropolitan, 2 miles, carrying 9st. 2lb.
(Ashworth); |me 3 min. 322Dsec., headlng 15 others
(fastest time on record), September 7, 1875. [Previous
to this the fastest two miles was the Diver's (C M
Lloyd's), at Wagga, in 3 min. 33%sec.]

Briseis won the All-aged Stakes in Sydney in 1 min.
43Bsec., which is the fastest time for a mile in the
colonies, April 21, 1876.

One hundred mile horse race run at Howlong, N.S.W.,
between the horses Viking and John Sullivan. Won by
Viking, having run 878 miles in little less than 8
hours, when John Sullivan gave up. June 27, 1876.

Mr. G. Pyers' Aldinga won the Launceston Gold Cup;
time, 3min. 39-5sec. February 7, 1878.

Mr. C. M. Lloyd's Swiveller won the Tasmanian Cup of

,000; time, 3min. 21sec. February 1, 1878.

Mr. J. Wilson's First King won the Australian Cup;
time, 4min. 2¥sec. March 7, 1878,

Hon. James White" sDemncrat won the Sydney Cup; time,
3min. 33 6-10sec. April 2

Mr. W. Filgate's Glenormlslon won the Adelaide Cup;
time, 3min. 43sec. April 25, 1878.

Winners of Principal Colonial Races.
Australian and New Zealand Champion Sweepstakes—(Three miles).

* After adead heat with Mr. Tait's Volunteer.

Time of deciding heat, 5 min. 48 sec.

The Maribyrnong Plate—(Five furlongs).

* Private watches made it 1 min. 5 sec.
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RACING.

The Oaks—(One mile and a half).

The Derby Stakes—( One mile and a half).

* Run on New Tear's Day.

The Victorian St. Leger Stakes—(One mile and three quarters and 132 yards).
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Launceston Champion Cap—(Three miles).

The Australian Cup—(Two miles twofurlongs).

* After two dead heats with Flying Dutchman, 6 years, 7 st. 6 Ibs. +51b. penalty.

The Ballarat Cup.

n 1861 and 1862 this race was styled the Great Metropolitan Goldfield Handicap; it was not run in 1863.
* Fell dead immediately o the racs +This year the distance was altered from two miles, two furlongs, forty-two yards, to two miles.
$ This year the distance was altered to a mile and three-quarters. § This year the distance was one mile and a half.

The A. J. C. Derby—(One mile and a half).
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The A. J. C. Queen's Plate—(Three miles).

* The Barb came in first, but was disqualified for not carrying his proper weight, - -+ After a dead heat with Reprieve.
+ The name of this race was this year altered to the A. J. C. Plate.

The Sydney Cup—(Two miles).

* Including 31b. penalty. + Including 2 Ib. over.

The Adelaide St. Leger—(One mile and three quarters and 132 yards).



RACING. 233

The A. J. C. Sires’ Produce Stakes.

* This year the race was altered from a mile to seven furlongs. + Carried 7 Ib. penalty.

Old N.S.W. Queen'sPlate.

OIdN.S.W. Leger.

The Ascot-Vale Stakes.

* Mr. Fisher's Fishhook, by Fisherman, came in first, but having gone inside a post was distanced
+ This year the race was altered from five to six furlongs.
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The Canterbury (New Zealand) Derby.

The Canterbury (New Zealand) Cup.

Note.—In the years 1860, 6L, and '62 the Cup Course was amile and a quarter; in 18634 the distance was a mile and three-quarters; in 1885it
was two miles; from 1866 to 70 it was three miles. The time of holding the Meeting was then changed from January to November, and in
November, 1870, the Cup course was made two miles and a quarter, and has so continued.

The Christchurch (New Zealand) Plate—(Two miles).
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The Hobart Town Cup.

* Distance reduced to one mile and three-quarters.

A. J. C. Queen's Plate—(Three miles).

A. J. C. Champagne Stakes.

* This race was seven furlongs long, but next year it was altered to five.

The Melbourne Cup-(Two miles).

* Including 3Ibs. penalty.  + Including 2 Ibs. over.
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The A. J. C. Metropolitan Stakes—(Two miles).

* Including 3lb. penalty.
The A. J. C. Champagne Stakes—(Five furlongs).

* This race was seven furlongs long, but the next year it was altered to five furlongs.

The A. J. C. St. Leger—(One mile and three quarters).

The Adelaide Cup—(Two miles).



RAFFLE'S BAY—RAILWAYS.

RAFFLE'S BAY.

Captain Barker founded settlement at Raffle’'s
Bay in 1823, but it was abandoned, 1826.

Captain Sterling, in H.M.S. “ Lucuss,” arrived
and formed a small settlement at Fort Welling-
ton, on the north-east coast of Raffle’s Bay, in
lat. 11° 14' S., long. 132° 24' E., June 7, 1827.

[Those colonists who had located in Raffle's
Bay (a few miles to the eastward of Port Essing-
ton, in Coburg Peninsula, North Australia) had
avisit from one of the Malay vessels having a
Dutch commander, with a crew of 14men. She
belonged to a fleet of 52 vessels which had left
Macassar in company, with the object to fish for
trepang. They annually visited the northern
coast of New Holland for that purpose. 1827.]

RAILWAYS.

New South W ates. The question of rail-
way construction first seriously occupied the
attention of the colonists. A numerous and in-
fluential meeting was held in Sydney, when Mr.
James Macarthur presided, and a committee of
leading colonists was appointed to collect infor-
mation on the subject of railways. Jan. 29,1846.

The first official duty Governor Fitzroy was
called upon to perform was to receive a deputa-
tion on the subject of railways for the purpose
of bringing certain recommendations relative to
the same under the attention of the Ministers.
August, 1846.

Sydney Tramroad and Railway Company
established, capital £100,000. Sept. 11, 1846.

An important meeting held in connection with
the contemplated railway, when a report was
brought forward which set forth that the com-
mittee had collected subscriptions, that surveys
had been effected for lines of railways, extend-
ing between Sydney and Goulburn and between
Sydney and the Hawkesbury and Nepean Rivers.
The survey embraced three several routes be-
tween Sydney and Bong Bong. January, 1848.

The first sod of the Sydney and Goulburn
Railway turned at Redfern by the Hon. Mrs.
Keith Stuart, daughter of the Governor, Sir C.
Fitzroy, in the presence of His Excellency and
about 10,000 people. July 3, 1850.

The first railway contract in the colony was
accepted. The work to be executed was a por-
tion of the line between Ashfield and Haslem’s
Creek at a cost of £10,000. March, 1851.

Railway from Sydney commenced. The “ Con-
cord” contract, 4%miles; contractor, Mr. Wil-
liam Wallis; Mr. Shields and Mr. Mais, the
first Engineers-in-Chief. May 1, 1851. [The
works were in a few months discontinued for
want of labour.]

Mr. Randle took a short contract between
Sydney and Parramatta, August 9, 1851.

500 railway labourers arrived from England,
August, 1852. Mr. Randle undertook the whole
line from Sydney to Parramatta, August, 1852.

The question of railway communication taken
up. A meeting was held in Sydney, at which
allthe wealthy and influential colonists attended,
and a resolution to the effect that in consequence
of the rapidly increasing prosperity of the colony,
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it became imperative on the inhabitants to adopt
a comprehensive system in the construction of
railways throughout the colony, was adopted.
January, 1854.

Hunter River Railway projected for connection
between Newcastle and Maitland. A company
formed at Maitland; capital £100,000. April 20,
1853. Work commenced, but was continued
only a year, when it was handed over to the
Government on July 30, 1854.

Sydney and Goulburn Railway Company
transferred to Government, September 3, 1854.

The carriages attached to a railway train ran
off the line at Haslem’s Creek; two passengers
were killed (one being Mr. Randolph J. Want,
solicitor) and two injured. January 10, 1858.

A collision occurred in Redfern tunnel, two
persons being injured, September 10, 1863.

A collision occurred between Homebush and
Haslem’'s Creek, between a goods train and a
passenger train following: one passenger injured.
October 25, 1864.

A collision occurred at Newtown; one pas-
senger was killed and several injured. Jan., 1868.

A collision took place at Redfern, several per-
sons being injured, September, 1868.

A collision took place between a passenger and
a coal truck at Newcastle; several persons
slightly injured. January 12, 1874.

Two platelayers were run over and killed at
Haslem's Creek, January 21, 1876.

Deniliquin and Moama Railway (private com-
pany) opened, July 4, 1876.

A collision took place at Redfern, when two
women were injured, July 30, 1877.

A collision occurred at Redfern, in which five
passengers were injured, November 5, 1877.

The Government of New South Wales accepted
tenders for the railway from Wagga Wagga to
Albury—Messrs. Cornell and Mixner, contrac-
tors—January 24, 1878.

Two trains collided at Emu Plains, near Pen-
rith, N.S.W.; three people were killed, the
engines thrown off the line, and the waggons
destroyed by fire. January 30, 1878.

Railway opened to Bathurst by Sir Hercules
Robinson: great demonstration by the people,
and a public dinner given at the School of Arts.
April 4, 1876.

The Great Northern Railway extension to
Tamworth opened by Sir H. Robinson. Octo-
ber 15, 1878.

George Perdue found guilty of manslaughter,
for the collision at Emu Plains, Feb. 19, 1878.

Date of opening to the principal stations in

New South W alesi—
Parramatta (S.W.), September 26, 1855.
Liverpool (S.), September 26, 1856.
East Maitland (N.), April 5, 1857.
Newcastle (N.), March 19, 1858.
Campbelltown (S.), May 17,1858.
West Maitland (N.), July 27, 1858.
Lochinvar (N.), July 2, 1860.
Blacktown (W.), July 4, 1860.
Rooty Hill (W.), December 12, 1861.
Branxton (N.), March 24, 1862.
South Creek (W.), May 1,1862.
Penrith (W.), July 7, 1862.
Menangle (S.), September 1, 1862.
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Singleton (N.), May 7, 1863.

Picton (S.), July 1, 1863.

Morpeth N) May 2, 1864.
Richmond (S.W.), December 1, 1864.
Mittagong (branch from Blacktown), March 1, 1867.
Weatherboard (W.), July 11, 1867.
Sutton Forest (S.), December 2, 1867.
Mount Victoria (W.), May 1, 1868.
Marulan (S.), August 6,1868.
Muswellbrook (N.), May 19 1869.
Goulburn (S.), May 27,

Bowenfels (W.), October 18 1869.
Wallerawang (W.), March 1, 1870.
Rydal (W.), July 1, 1870.

Aberdeen (N.), October 20, 1870.
Scone (N.), April 17, 1871.

Wingen (S.), August 1, 1871
Murrurundl (N.), Al r|| 5, 1872.
Locke's Platform (W) April 22, 1872.
Macquarie Plains (W.), July 1, 1872,
Raglan (W.), March 4,1873.

Kelso (W.), February 4, 1875.
Bathurst (W.

Bowning
Yass (S.), July 3, 1876.

Murrumburrah (S.), March 12, 1877.

Quirindi (N.), August 13, 1877.

Cootamundra (S.), November 1, 1877.

Orange (W.), April 19, 1877.

Junee (S.), July 6, 1878

Wagga Wagga (S.), September 3, 1878,

Tamworth (N.), October 15, 1878.

Breeza (N.), March 26, 1879.

New Zealand.

Auckland District, in the provincial district of
Auckland. The General Government have com-
pleted 141 miles of railway, and have consider-
ably more under construction.  Also 2 miles 68
chains from the Kawakawa mine to the shipping
place have been constructed, and 5 miles 31
chains more are under way. The Waikato rail-
way, which runs from Auckland southwards,
was opened for traffic as far as Newcastle
(Ngaruawahia), at the junction of the Waikato
and Waipa rivers, once the capital of the Maori
King, but now the site of a pretty and thriving
British township, 1877. The Waikato rail-
way opened to Ohapu, 1878. [The whole
southern part of Auckland, and a large portion
of the North is thus brought directly into easy
communication with the city by railway.] The
Maories refused to allow Government surveyors
to survey for the railway from Taranaki to
Wanganui (the connecting branches between
Auckland and Wellington), March 20, 1879.

Otago District—Lyttleton railway opened,
December 1, 1863.

Railway to Manaaru opened, Feb. 21, 1870.

Railway from Christchurch to Dunedin com-
pleted and opened at Dunedin, October, 1878.

Railways in New Zealand are open between
the following places:—Northern Island, Auck-
land to Ohaupo, passing through Newmarket,
Remuera, Drury, Rangariri, Huntly, Taupiri,
Newcastle, Hamilton, a distance of 94 miles;
Auckland to Onehunga, connecting Auckland
harbour with the Manukau, a distance of 8
miles, with a branch line from Riverhead to
Helensville, 16 miles. Napier (commencing at
the Spit or Port) to Kopua, a distance of 65
miles, passing Hastings, Waipawa, and Waipa-
karu. New Plymouth to Inglewood and Wai-
tara, 12 miles. Wanganui to Foxton, 88 miles.

RAILWAYS.

Wellington to Upper Hutt and Kaitoke, 27
miles. Southern Island—Bluff to Invercargill,
17 miles; Invercargill to Dunedin, 13 miles;
Dunedin to Omaru, 38 miles; Omaru to Tim-
aru, 53 miles; Timaru to Christchurch, 100
miles; Christchurch to Port Lyttleton, 7 miles,
with various branch lines on these routes.
Greymouth (West Coast) to Brunner, 8 miles;
Nelson to Foxhill, 20 miles, with numerous
short lines on the West Coast. The total length
of railway opened in New Zealand, 1,068 miles:
December 31, 1877.

Queensland.

First sod of Queensland railway turned at
Ipswich, February 24, 1864.

Firstrailway, Queensland opened July 31,1865.

First sod of the Rockhampton railway turned
by Governor Sir G. F. Bowen, at Rockhampton,
September 26, 1865.

A train proceeding to Warwick was blown off
the rails by a violent gale of wind (some passen-
gers were injured), January 27, 1875.

First sod of the Dalby and Roma railway
turned by Governor Cairns, June 6, 1876.

Mr. Gresley Lukin, proprietor of The Queens-
lander, organised an expedition to effect a flying
survey of the proposed transcontinental railway
from Blackall to Port Darwin, June 21, 1878.

Dates of Opening, and the Length in Miles, of tre
different Sections of Railway Lines opened for Traffic
from the commencement to December 31, 1877.

Note—-The opening of the. Ipswich Deviation has shartened tre
distance between Ipswich and Toowoomba by two miles: conseqently
the total length_travelled over between Brisbane and the present ter-
minal stations, S. and W. Railway, now stands at 238 miles.



RAILWAYS.

South Australia.

The railway from Adelaide to Gawler, a
distance of 25 miles, completed October 5, 1857.

Railway opened to Kapunda, August 3, 1860.

Wallaroo railway commenced, Jan. 17, 1862.

TheVictorHarbour railway opened, Aug.4,1862.

Railway to the Burra opened, Aug. 29, 1870.

Glenelg railway opened, July 14, 1873.

Sir W. D. Jervois turned the first sod of the
Port Augusta Railway, being the first instal-
ment of the transcontinental line, Jan. 28, 1878.

Port Augusta line, first section opened to
Gordon's, May, 1879.

Dates of Opening of the different sections to the principal
Stationsfrom the commencement to December 31, 1877.

lég;lote—The total cost of the South Australian railways to Dec. 31,
404, The maximum speed on the 5ft. 3in. gauge is
B miles per hour; and on the 3ft. 6in. gauge, 17%miles per hour.]

The following lines were completed and opened
for traffic during the year 1878:

Burraand Hallett 18Yamiles.

Kapunda and North West Bend (Rlver

Murray 55% ,,

Port Wakefield and Kadina 34m. 44chns.

Gladstone and Jamestown.. 19 miles.

[The first two being extensions of the trunk line are con-
structed on the 5ft. 3in. gauge; the other two are con-
structed on the 3ft. 6in. gauge.]

The following contracts have been let and are
in various stages of progress, viz..—
Port Augusta to Government Gums Vlgs%miles,
Kadina & Barunga Gap, with its extension 3 3 ,
Rivoli Bay and Mount Gambier 51,,
Harnley Bridge and Balaklava 22%
Making a total of 305 miles. ines are being
constructed on the 3ft. 6in. gauge.

The following railways have been authorised
during the Parliamentary session, 1878-9:—
Hallett to Terow 20m. 44chns.
Terowie to Pichi- 93 miles with
Branch to Jamestown . 21m. 76chns.
Adelaide to Nairne 33 miles.

Tasmania.

First sod of Launceston and Western Railway
turned by H.R.H. Prince Alfred, Jan. 15, 1868.

First train on the first Tasmanian railway
started August 19, 1869.

The Mersey and Deloraine Railway opened
January 1, 1871.

The L. & W. Railway opened Feb. 3, 1871.
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Victoria.

Railway from Melbourne to Sandridge com-
menced, January, 1853.

Geelong and Melbourne Railway incorporated,
February 8, 1853.

Melbourne and Geelong Railway works com-
menced, September 20, 1853.

Melbourne and Hobson's Bay Railway opened,
September 14, 1854.

Melbourne and St.
May 13, 1857.

Geelong and Melbourne railway opened, June
25, 1857.

Melbourne and Suburban railway commenced,
July 1, 1858.

The Melbourne and Williamstown, Hobson's
Bay (private company) railway opened, January
17, 1859.

The Victorian Railway department took pos-
session of the Melbourne and Geelong line from
the original company, September 4, 1860.

St. Kilda and Brighton railway opened, Decem-
ber 21, 1861.

Railway extension to Castlemaine opened,
October 15, 1862.

Victorian Government purchased the exten-
sion railway, June 27, 1867.

First sod of Castlemaine and Maryborough
railway turned, September 7, 1872.

First colonial-made locomotive delivered to
the Victorian Government, February 6, 1873.

Railway from Melbourne to Wodonga, on the
Murray, opened, November 19, 1873.

Maryborough and Dunolly railway opened,
October 6, 1874.

Geelong and Colac railway began, October
23, 1874.

First sod of the Gippsland railway turned,
March 11, 1875.

First sod of the Perth and Hamilton railway,
Victoria, turned by Governor Sir George F.
Bowen, April 27, 1876.

Experiment of running railway trains with
carriage doors unlocked first tried on Williams-
town line, January 15, 1877.

A disastrous accident happened to a goods
and passenger train on the Echuca line, near the
Epsom racecourse. Flood waters had unsettled
the ballast, and the engine ran off the line over
the embankment; 38 of the goods trucks were
smashed, none of the passengers being seriously
hurt. February 13, 1877.

Serious accident occurred at Spencer-street
terminus; nine of the passengers received severe
injuries. June 11, 1877.

Opening celebration of Portland and Hamilton
railway, January 9, 1878.

The Government commenced the construction
of the Oakleigh line without the sanction of the
Legislature, February 19, 1878.

The Gippsland railway from Oakleigh to Sale,
a distance of 119 miles, formally opened, March
1, 1878.

Messrs. Lyell and Munro, M.L.A’s., arranged
terms for the purchase by the Government of
the Hobson’s Bay railway, for the sum of
£1,320,820, June 25, 1878.

Kilda railway opened,
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The Government of Victoria obtained a ma-
jority of 42 in favour of the purchase of the
Hobson's Bay railway. The Opposition voted
with them. July 24, 1878.

Messrs. Topham, Angus, and Smith's tender
of £58,977 accepted for the construction of the
Geelong and Queenscliffe line, August 9, 1878.

Messrs. J. P. Higgins and Co.'s tender of
£48,868, accepted for the South Yarra and Oak-
leigh line, September 13, 1878.

Sale (Gippsland) and Melbourne
joined at Oakleigh, April 2, 1879.

railway

Dates of Opening, and Length in Miles, of the dif-
ferent Sections of Lines opened to the Principal
Stations of Victoria, from the commencement to
December, 1878.

Note.—The number of miles open in Victoria, up to December 31,
1878, was 931 The broad gauge used, viz., 5 feet 8 inches.

W estern Australia.

First sod of the Geraldtown railway turned
by Governor Weld, November 22, 1874.

Total Length of Railways Open and in course of
Construction throughout Australasia.

Total Expenditurefor, in Australasia, to Decem-
ber 31, 1877.
New South Wale:
New Zealand
Queensland..
South Australia
Tasmani
Victoria..
Western Australi

.£8,570,000
6,675,781

£36,608,765

RAILWAY BRIDGES and VIADUCTS.

Over the Hunter at Singleton, N.S.W. (N.)
length, 400 feet.

Over the Hunter at Aberdeen (N.); length
480 feet; cylinders sunk 20 feet below ordinary
level of water; height, 41 feet above ordinary
level of water; cost, £25,000.



RAILWAY CURVES—RELIGION.

Overthe Macquarie at Bathurst (W .); 480ft. in
length; cast iron cylinders 9 ft. in diameter, sunk
14ft belowordinary level of water inriver; height
above ordinary water level, 35 ft.; cost £32,000.

Over the Nepean at Menangle (S.); 498 feet
inlength; height of bridge above level of water
inthe river, to under side of girders, 65 feet;
length of approaches from Sydney side, 978 feet,
and on southern side, 432 feet; cost, £100,000.
Opened for traffic, July 11, 1867.

Over the River Nepean at Penrith (W .), 35 miles
fromSydney, is constructed for a double line, and
carriesthe Main Western Road and a single line of
railway. It consists of three openings of 186 ft.
cdearspaneach, and one span of 127 ft. The larger
openings have two main girders of the box form,
each 594 ft. in length, of an extreme depth of 13
feet, and placed 25 ft. 6 in. apart in the clear.
Theroadway is carried on wrought-iron cross gir-
cers 18 in. deep, and placed 3 ft. apart centre and
centre, and covered with 3 in. planking through-
out. The span of 127 feet has also wrought-iron
girders of the box form, 135 feet in length and 10
feet in depth. The rails are 49 feet above the
ordinary level of the river. Cost, £110,000.

Over Murrumbidgee at Wagga Wagga (S.),
total length over main channel, 636 feet; cast
iron cylinders, 9 feet in diameter, and sunk 34
feet below ordinary level of water in the river;
work commenced, 1878.

Over the Macquarie River at Wellington
(W.); length, 477 feet, or, including abutments,
648 feet; work commenced, 1878.

Wollondilly River, N.S.W., 122 miles from
Sydney (S.); 616 feet in length.

Wollondilly River, 127 miles from Sydney
(S.); 614 feet in length; rails 46 feet above or-
dinary level of water.

Boxer's Creek viaduct, 133 miles from Sydney
(S.); 206 feet in length; 46 feet above ordinary
water level.

Midwarree Creek viaduct, near Goulburn (S.);
858 feet in length.

Barber's Creek viaduct, 111 miles from Sydney
(S.); 340 feet in length.

Picton viaduct, (S.) 53 miles from Sydney;
276 feet in length; 78 feet in its extreme height
from foundations to rail level.

Knapsack Gully viaduct, 38 miles from Sydney
(W.) 388 feet in length; greatest height, 126
feet, from foundation to level of rails.

Over the Murray River at Echuca;
£40,000; opened, March, 1879.

Over Brisbane River at Oxley; cost, £36,000;
opened, 1875.

RAILWAY CURVES and GRADIENTS.
The smallest curve on the New South Wales
line is eight chains, on the Western Line. The
steepest gradient, 1 in 30, is also on the Western
Line. In Victoria the steepest gradient is 1 in
30, on the Wangaratta and Beechworth Line.

cost,

RAILWAY GAUGES. New South Wales, 4 ft.
8%in.; New Zealand, 5 ft. 3 in., 4 ft. 8in., 3 ft.
6 in.; Queensland, 3 ft. 6 in.; South Australia, 5
ft. 3in, 3ft 6in; Tasmania, 5ft. 3in.; Vic-
toria, 5 ft. 3 in.
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RAILWAY TUNNELS. The longest tunnelsin
New South Wales are—The Mount Clarence
tunnel, Western line (88%miles from Sydney), 539
yards in length; Liverpool Range tunnel, 126
miles from Newcastle (Northern line), is 528
yards in length; the Picton tunnel (Southern
line, 54 miles from Sydney) 198 yards in length;
the Gibraltar tunnel (Southern line, 79 miles
from Sydney), 572 yards in length. In Victoria,
the longest tunnel is the Mount Elphinstone
(Echuca line), 418 yards in length. The Big Hill
tunnel, on the same line, is 413 yards in length.
In Queensland, the Victoria tunnel, S. W. line,
is 26 chains in length. [See Zig Zag.]

RAYMOND, James, was Postmaster-General
of New South Wales from 1829 till his death,
which took place at Orwell House, Macleay-
street, Sydney, May 29, 1851.

REBELS, Irish. Arrival in the settlement of
New South Wales of a large number of Irish
rebels, amongst whom were the Rev. Henry
Fulton, C.E.; Rev. Father Harold, R.C.; Capt.

Wm. Henry Alcock; Dr. O’Connor; Joseph
Holt (better known as General Holt), 1799-1800.

RECEVEUR, Pere Le, the naturalist of the
“ Astrolabe,” Captain M. de la Perouse, arrived
with French expedition at Botany Bay, January
24, 1788; died there of wounds received in an
encounter with the natives at the Navigators’
Islands, February 17, 1788.

REGISTRATION SYSTEM of Births,
Deaths, and Marriages. Mr. W. H. Archer
first put into operation in Victoria a system of
registration for legal and statistical purposes
more scientifically comprehensive and minute
than had ever been adopted by any nation, July
1, 1853. [It has been imitated by other States
and the Registrar-General of England and the In-
ternational Statistical Congress of Brussels have
republished Mr. Archer’s schedules as models.]

RELIGION.

Four Church of England Bishops were conse-
crated at Westminster Abbey, three of them
were for Australia, June 21, 1847.

State-aid to.

The discontinuance of the system of State
endowments for religious purposes was mooted
in the Legislative Council, N.S.\W. A numer-
ously attended meeting was held in Sydney,
when a petition was adopted to the Council,
praying that it might refuse the proposal of
the Governor-General to supplement the esti-
mates by an additional grant of £17,000 for
ecclesiastical purposes, and to take measures to
abolish State endowments. The House, how-
ever, voted the additional sum, 1854.

A supplementary grant of £14,000 for the
support of public worship was struck out of the
estimates, N.S.W ., 1858.

Abolition of State-aid to religion
South Wales, July 21, 1863.

Abolition of State-aid Bill passed in Victoria,
1869.

in New
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RELIGIOUS DENOMINATIONS in Australasia, in 1871

Approximate Estimate in 1878. (Population, about

2,500,000.)
Religion.

Church of England
Roman Catholics
Presbyterians
Wesleyan Methodist:
Congregationalists or Independents...
Baptists ...
Primitive Methodists
Other Methodists
Lutherans and Gel :
Christians,—Brethren and Disciples.
Calvinists, or Calvinistic Methodists.
Friends
Unitarians.
Catholic Apostolic Church.
Greek Church
Israelites or Chi
Mormons or Latter Day Saints.
Jews or Hebrews...
Moravians or United Brethren
Pagans, Mahomedans, Chinese.
New Jerusalem Church.
Bible Christians ...
Methodist New Connection .
Free Presbyterians
Church of Christ.
No sect .
Unspecified.
Other Protestants
Other Catholics
Other Persuasions
Objected to state religion.

Estimated
Number.

989,537

(Population, about 2,000,000).

RELIGIOUS FANATIC. Andrew Fisher, of
Nunawading, Victoria, better known as the
“ Nunawading Messiah,” at the head of 100
followers, declared himself the Messiah. He
was a charcoal burner, and took— his sect being
polygamous—three sisters as his wives, June
21, 1871.

RENTON, John, who had been eight years
with the natives of the Island of Malaysa, was
rescued by the schooner “ Bobtail Nag,” August
18, 1876. [See Aborigines.]

REVENUE.

William MacPherson, Collector of Internal
Revenue, New South Wales, arrived, October
11, 1829.

Revenue of Australasian Colonies for year
ending December 31, 1877:—

Revenue. Population.
New South Wales 5,748,245.... 645,994
New Zealand 408,348
Queensland 195,092
South Australia 231,383
Tasmania 106,204
Victoria 4,723877 849,870
Western Australia . 165,413 .... 27,579

Total ... 17,799,311.... 2,464,470

REYNOLDS, Chartes, a successful sheep-
breeder, accidentally killed near the Paterson
River, N.S.W ., Sept., 1871.



RICHARDSON—RIFLE

RICHARDSON, Sir John Larkins Cheese,
member of Parliament and Speaker of the Pro-
vincial Council, New Zealand, died, Dec. 16, 1878.

RICHMOND, N.S.W. Richmond and other
places in the Hawkesbury district (Pitt Town,
Wilberforce, and Castlereagh), received their
present names December, 1810.

RICHMOND, R iver, discovered, August, 1828.

RIFLE ASSOCIATION or New South W ales
established, October 5, 1860; held first Meeting
at Randwick, September 26, 27, 28, 1861.

RIFLE MATCHES.
First Meeting of N.S.W. Rifle Association at Randwick.

MATCHES.
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INTERCOLONIAL.
New South Wales v. Victoria.

Fora Challenge Shield, to be won three years in succession.
First Match.—Shot at Melbourne, 10 members aside;
distances 200, 300, 500, 600, 700, 800, and 900 yards.

Victoria, total number of points scored.. 1431
New South Wales,,
New South Wales thus wmnlng by 64 polms

New South Wales representatives were Dickson, Hellyer,
Lynch, Sharp, Wyndham, Campbell, Rayner, Strong,
Windeyer, and Webb.

Victorian representatives wereM‘Naughton, Sleep, Frost,
Wright, Peterson, Douglas, M‘Ewen, Templeton, Cole,
and Redcliffe. November 3, 1862.

Second Match, shot at Sydney.
New South Wales, total number of points.. 1758
Victoria B 1712
New South Wales wmnlng by 46 polnts

New South Wales representatives were Campbell, Strong,
Rayner, Roberts, Hordern, Phillips, Sharp, Brownlow,
Wyndham, and Dickson.

Victorian representatives were Couchman, M‘Clure, Tem-
pleton, Fawcett, Sleep, M‘Naughton, Middlemiss, New-
lands, M‘Cartney, and Cole. October 15, 16, 17, 1863.

Third Match, shot at Sandridge, Victoria.
Victoria, total number of points scored.. 1921
New South Wales,, K

Victoria winning by 17 points.

Victorian representatives were Couchman, Sargood,
M'Naughton, M‘Cartney, Cole, Templeton, Douglass,
Middlemiss, Rede, and M'Ewen.

New South Wales representatives were Sharp, Lynch,
Richards, Rayner, Slade, Dickson, Smith, Strong,
Brownlow, and West. November 14, 15, 16, 1864.

Fourth Match, shot at Paddington, N.SW.
Victoria, total number of points scored.. 2126
New South Wales " 2201
New South Wales winning by 75 palnts

Victorian representatives were Rede, Cole, Fawcett,
J. R., Fawcett, J. W., Middlemiss, M‘Cartney, John-
son, Rainsford, Mumby, Douglas. September 14, 15,
16, 1865.

Fifth Match, shot at Sandridge, Victoria.
New South Wales, total number of points.. 2203
Victoria 2113
New South Wales wmnlng hy 90 pomts
Representatives of New South Wales were Slade, Linsley,
Wickham, Rayner, Brownlow, Lynch, Dickson, Hor-
dern, Sharp, and Strong.
Representatives of Victoria were Fawcett, W. J., M'Clure,
Templeton, Macartney, Johnson, Lacey, M'Naughton,
Mumby, Rede, and Walker. December 6, 7, 8,1866.

Sixth Match, shot at Paddington, N S.W.

New South Wales, total number of polnts 2442
Victoria 2375
New South Wales wmnlng by 67 polnts and thus gaining

Shield.

Representatives of New South Wales were Rayner,
Bushelle, Compton, Lynch, Gee, Slade, Linsley, Smith,
Beaumont, and Brownlow.

Representatives of Victoria were Fawcett, M'Naughton,
Walker, Watson, Mumby, Christopherson, Templeton,
Couchman, M'Clure, and Lacey. Dec. 26, 27, 28, 1867.

Mr. J. Bushelle, of the New South Wales Team, won
the championship, December 23, 1867.

Seventh Match, shot at Sandridge Butts (Victoria).
Victoria, total number of points scored.. 1156
New South Wales,, . 1119
Victoria winning by 37 points.

Victorian representatives were King, Wardill, Watson,
Templeton, Draper, Lacey, Sleep, and Miles.

New South Wales representatives were Slade, Brownlow,
Maddocks, Cooper, Lynch, Gee, Strong, and Bushelle,
November 12, 1873.
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Eighth Match (Military Rifles), shot at Sandridge, Victoria
New South Wales, total number of points.. 1586
Victoria " " 1521
New Zealand .. 1483

Majority for New South Wales over VIIE\I‘UZ”a 65

November 13,1873

Ninth Match (Military Rifles), shot in Melbourne.

Victoria, total number of pulnts scored 2025
New South Wales

Victoria winning by 82 pmms "November 11, 1875.

Tenth Match, shot with Match Rifles in Melbourne

Victoria, total number ufpoinls scored.. 1229
New South Wales . 1182

Victoria winning by 47 points, November 13, 1875.

Eleventh Match, shot at Paddington, N.S.W.

Martini. Henry. Total.
Victoria. . 2256 2201 .. 4457
New South Wales 2 1 4 0 2151 .. 4291

Victoria winning with both weapons

RIOTS.

An insurrection of prisoners, 250 strong, and
armed with muskets, broke out at Castle Hill,
near Parramatta. They were defeated in 15
minutes by Major Johnston, of the N.S.W.
corps, with 24 men. 67 insurgents fell in the
field, and 10 were tried and hanged. March 4,
1804.

A serious disturbance took place between the
military and the lower class of the inhabitants
of Sydney, the former treating with disdain and
insult the native youth of the colony and the
prisoners; and a crisis was eventually brought
about by a party of soldiers armed with blud-
geons and bayonets rushing into the cottages of
some of the citizens and dangerously wounding
a number of persons. The consequence was that
the soldiers were disarmed and not allowed to
go abroad after sundown.  1825.

Another disturbance between the military
and citizens occurred at Sydney, when one
civilian was killed and two wounded. Three
soldiers were tried, in connection with the oc-
currence, for manslaughter, and one of them was
found guilty. 1828.

A collision between the police and some
seamen of H.M.S. “Favourite,” then in port, oc-
curred in Sydney. About 50 of the sailors had
leave of absence for 48 hours; a disturbance
took place between them and some civilians in
the theatre; after a severe struggle a great
number of persons were taken to the lock-up,
amongst whom were 10 of the man-of-war’s
men. Next morning all but two were dismissed.
These were remanded to their ship, but instead
of being conveyed there they were taken to the
watch-house. Their mates, hearing of the cir-
cumstance, went with about 300 of the town
mob, to the watch-house, in Cumberland-street,
where they put to flight the officers and made a
wreck of the building, releasing such prisoners
as were confined there; they then proceeded
to St. James’s watch-house, where they acted in
a similar manner, and attempted the same at the
chief lock-up, at the corner of George and

RIOTS.

Druitt streets, but without effect. The military
were called out, the Riot Act was read, and the
mob not dispersing, blank cartridges were fired,
but no heed being taken of it, and an inclination
to violence being manifested, the military fired
some rounds of ball. The mob then dispersed,
but not until one man was shot, who died the
next day. September 6, 1841.

Capture of the Eureka Stockade, Ballarat,
Victoria. In consequence of dissatisfaction
among the diggers at the imposition of a heavy
license fee, resistance was offered, and a serious
riot took place. December 3, 1854. [The miners
of Ballarat were headed by Peter Lalor, as com-
mander-in-chief, Frederick Vern, a Hanoverian
by birth, Carboni Raffaello, an Italian, Alfred
Black, James H. M ‘Gill, Curtain, Lesman,
Kenworthy, John Lynch, J. W. Esmond, and
J. B. Humffray. The number of diggers who
took part in defending the stockade was about
200. The military and police numbered 276.
Of these there were 117 men of the 40th Regi-
ment, under command of Captain Wise, Lieuts.
Bowdler, Hall, and Gardyne; 65 men of the
12th Regiment, under command of Captain
Queade and Lieutenant Paul; 70 mounted
police under command of Sub-inspectors Furnley,
Langley, Chomley, and Lieutenant Cossack;
and 24 foot police, under Sub-inspector Carter.
The attack was made at dawn on Sunday morn-
ing, and was led by Captain Thomas, assisted
by Captain Pasley, R.E. The engagement lasted
25 minutes. The rebels fought well; 22 were
killed, 12 wounded, and 125 taken prisoners.
The loss of the Queen’'s forces was, one killed
and 12 wounded. Captain Wise, who. was
severely wounded, died a few days afterwards.
Lalor, who fought well, fell within the stockade,
and lost his right arm in the engagement. He
however, escaped, and Government offered £200
reward for his capture, £500 reward for the
capture of Vern, and £200 reward for the cap-
ture of Black.] [See The Time,”
(Lalor, Hon. Peter).]

Brutal onslaught on the Chinamen of Lambing
Flat, and “ roll-up” of the diggers, amounting to
3,000 strong. They perpetrated many acts of
violence and robbery, as tearing the goods and
tents and maiming the Chinese in a fearful
manner; June, 1861. The police proceeded to
the spot, and a collision took place between
them and the diggers. Troops were sent from
Sydney under Colonel Kempt. July, 1861.

W. Lupton, a digger, who was mortally
wounded at Lambing Flat, during the affray
with the police, was interred with military
honours by his fellow diggers, July, 1861.

The military ordered to the place to quell the
riot. Royal Artillery, 2 officers and 42 men;
Infantry, 7 officers and 123 men; Police
(mounted), 21. The Hon. Charles Cowper,
Premier, proceeded to the Flat. July, 1861.

Ten of the Lambing Flat rioters were tried at
the Goulburn Circuit Court, and acquitted.
September, 1861. [William Spicer afterwards
convicted and imprisoned in Berrima Gaol for
taking part in the riot.]

“Men of
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Riot amongst the female inmates of the (refor-
matory) Industrial School at Newcastle, Janu-
ary 7, 1871.

Rev. Mr. Portus lectured in the School of
Arts, Ipswich, on Martin Luther. The Roman
Catholics attacked the Hall, and Captain Town-
ley, P.M., read the Riot Act; several persons
were severely injured. November 12, 1874.

Riot between Custom House officials and em-
ployes of Stevenson and Sons (soft-goods mer-
chants), Flinder’s Lane, Melbourne, Apr. 15,1876.

A disturbance created in Hyde Park, Sydney,
onaccount of Pastor Allen’s preaching, March
10, 1878.

The Hyde Park (Sydney) rioters committed
for trial, April 4, 1878.

The Hyde Park riot case terminated by the
conviction of two prisoners, the Attorney-Gen-
eral not praying for judgment. May 29, 1878.

A disturbance took place at the Association
Cricket Ground, Sydney, on the occasion of the
return match between the New South Wales
eleven and the Gentlemen of England. The
mob, objecting to the Umpire for the English
team, refused to allow the play to proceed. Feb.
8, 1879. The play was stopped but resumed
on the Monday following.

RIOU, captain Edward. H.M.S. “Guar-
dian,” 44 guns, Captain Edward Riou, having
on board a large stock of provisions for the
colony of New South Wales, struck against an
iceberg to the S. and E. of the Cape of Good
Hope, and was so much injured that the greater
part of her valuable cargo was thrown over-
board; most of the passengers and crew left her
in five boats, when they thought she was sink-
ing. Riou remained with his ship but gave
them despatches for the Admiralty, and en-
treated that the country would protect and
provide for his sister. December 23, 1790.
[Four of the boats were never heard of;
the third, after great privation, reached the
Mauritius, but, meanwhile, the *“ Guardian”
was fallen in with by a French frigate, towed
into Table Bay, and the gallant Riou was saved
to perish by a more glorious death, having been
afterwards killed at Copenhagen.]

RIVERS.

The Hunter, discovered by Lieutenant Short-
land, 1797.

Lieutenant - Colonel  Paterson, Lieutenant
Grant, and Mr. Harris visited the Hunter River,
landed, and named Coal Island, Colliers’ Island,
Mangrove Creek, Green Hill, Schank’s Forest
Plains, Mount Anne, Mount Elizabeth, King's
Ranges, Mount Harris, Mount Grant. Mr.
Barralier surveyed portion of the Hunter River.
June 14 to July 17, 1801.

The Macquarie, New South Wales, named by
G. W. Evans, December, 1813.

The Hastings, New South Wales, discovered
by Oxley, 1818.

Penal settlement formed on the Hastings at
Port Macquarie, 1822.
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The Castlereagh discovered by Oxley, July,
1818.

The Alligator,
King, 1818.

The Brisbane, explored and named by Oxley,
1822.

The Goulburn, discovered by Lawson, 1823.

The Murrumbidgee, discovered by Captain
Currie and Major Ovens, June 1, 1823.

The Murray crossed by Hamilton Hume and
party, November 17, 1824. [A monument on
the banks of the river, at Albury, has been
erected “ by the inhabitants of the Hume River,
in honour of Hamilton Hume,” in commemora-
tion of the event.]

The Goulburn crossed by Hume and Hovell,
December 3, 1824.

The Bogan discovered by Sturt, 1829.

The Bogan traced by Dixon, 1833.

The Glenelg discovered by Mitchell, July 31,
1835.

The Richmond discovered, 1842.

The Dawson explored by Leichhardt and
party, 1844.

The Albert discovered by Wickham and Stokes,
1844.

The Bogan reached by Mitchell, 1845.

The Burdekin discovered by Leichhardt, 1845.

The Mackenzie discovered by Leichhardt, 1845.

The Burdekin reached by Leichhardt Search
Expedition, under A. C. Gregory, 1856.

The Murrumbidgee ascended by Captain Fran-
cis Cadell, in the steamer “ Albury,” September,
1858.

The Maitland discovered by Mr. F. Gregory,
1861.

The Lyons discovered by Gregory, 1861.

The Ashburton discovered by Gregory, 1861.

The Goulburn navigated from Echuca to Sey-
mour by the steamer “ Bunyip,” April 30, 1878.

The Mary named, in honour of Lady Mary
Fitzroy, wife of Sir Charles Augustus Fitzroy.
1854.

Length of

North Australia, explored by

New South Wales

Miles Miles
Darling, from Bourke MIntyre. . . . 50
to Murray Junction 1,000  Warrego. . . 103
Lachlan. . . 700 Macquarie. . . 750
Murrumbidgee.. 1,30  Hawkesbury.. 330
Murray. . . . 2,400  Hunter. . . . 300
Namoi. . . 600 Shoalhaven. . . 260
Bogan. . 450 Clarence. . . . 240
Gwydir. . 445  Macleay. . 190
Barwon. . . . 510 Richmond. . . . 120
Castlereagh. . . . 365  Manning. . . 100

Victoria

Yarra Yarra 90 Avoca 130
Goulburn. . . 230 Hopkins. . . 110
Glenelg. B 205 Wannon. . . 105
Loddon. . . . 150 Ovens. . . . 100
Wimmera. . 135

No records are obtainable of the lengths of the rivers in
South Australia, West Australia, Queensland, Tasmania,
or New Zealand, which are referred to in other portions of
this work. [See Australian Land Explorers, for dis-
coverers and origin of names of rivers.]
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Table of distances on the Murray.
Miles.

Total—Albury to the sea mouth, at Lake
Alexandrina, whers the Murray empties
itself into the sea .. 13!

The great river next in importance is the Murrumbidgee,
1350 miles in length. It enters the Murray 700 miles above
the mouth of the latter. The Murrumbidgee is navigable,
except in dry seasons, up to the township of Gundagai,
670 miles above its junction with the Murray.

Tablte of Distances on the Murrumbidgee.

Miles.
Gundagai to Wagga Wagga § S 5
Wagga Wagga to Yarragundry. . . . 23
Yarragundry to Yiorkibitto. . . . . . 48

Yiorkibitto to Grong G ron g
Grong Grong to Narrandera. . . .
Narrandera to Yanco or Bedithera. . . . 11
Yanco to Yanco Station
Yanco to Gojelderie
Gojelderie to Tubbo.
Tubbo to Cararbury
Cararbury to Currathool
Currathool to Burrabogie
Burrabogie to I1lilliwa..
Iilliwato H ay

Hay to Toogambie
Toogambie to Maude
Maude to Lachlan Junction. . . . . 44
Lachlan Junction to Balranald..
Balranald to Canally .
Canally to Weimby, Murray Junction. 38

Total distance from Gundagal to Murrum-
bidgee Junction...... ..670

The Darling joins the Murray 500 miles from the sea.
The Darling is a very long river, and receive a very large
number of streams in its course. Its length is estimated
to be 2,200 miles. Steamers ply to Fort Bourke, nearly
1,000 miles from the junction with the Murray, and they
frequently go to Brewarrina, and occasionally to Walgett.

Table of Distances on the Darling.
Miles.
From Junction of Darlmg with Nlurray to Kin-
chega. 30!
Kinchega to Menindie.
Menindie to Pammemeroo
Pammemeroo to W ilcannia.

Wilcannia to Fort Bourke (nearly). . . . 500
Total distance from Murray Junction to Fort
Bourke 1000
ROADS.

A road was first made from Sydney to Liver-
pool, February 22, 1814. [Previous to this it
was only a bush track for equestrians and pedes-
trians, but not for vehicles.]

A road was constructed and opened over the
Blue Mountains, January 21, 1815. [It was
constructed in the short space of 6 months, by
convicts, who volunteered, on condition of re-
ceiving emancipation when the work was com-
pleted. Mr. Wm. Cox, J.P., of Windsor,
superintended the construction of the road.]

A route from Richmond to the Bathurst road,
over the Blue Mountains, discovered and subse-
quently surveyed, May, 1823.

ROBBERIES. [See Crimes.]

ROBINSON, Hon. Lady

Gold and Diamond bracelet, presented by
the young Ladies of Sydney to Lady Robinson,
March 1, 1879.

Diamond necklet and afternoon tea-service of
silver-gilt, presented by the Ladies of New South
Wales, to Lady Robinson, Sydney, March 8,
1879.

ROBINSON, sir Hercules G. R.,, G.C.M.G,,
[See “ Men of the Time,” (Robinson, Sir
Hercules).]

ROCKHAMPTON, Queensland.
Made a port of entry, October 8, 1858.
The first sale of Rockhampton Town allot-
ments took place November 17, 1858.
Rockhampton proclaimed Municipality, De-
cember 15, 1860.
First Circuit Court held April 6, 1863.
Lighted with gas, December 17, 1874.

“ROLL-UP,” a term applied by the miners
in the various Diggings in Australia, when sum-
moned from labour, or amusement, to attend a
mass meeting for a special purpose. The term is
now more general in application.

ROMA, Queensland,
May 25, 1867.

proclaimed Municipality

ROMAN CATHOLIC.
The Rev. W. Harold (the parish priest of Reculla, near

Dublin, Ireland) with other persons who had taken
part in the Irish rebellion, arrived in New South
Wales, 1799.

The Rev. Father O'Neil also sent out for participating in
the rebellion in Ireland, arrived 1800, received an early
pardon, and was recalled, 1802

The First mass (it is believed) was performed at a house
in Harrington-street, Sydney, by a priest who accom-
panied the French surveying vessels * Géographe” and
“ Naturaliste,” that arrived in the Colony in 1802.



ROMAN CATHOLIC. 249

Rev. Mr. Dixon who had been sent out in 1800, for
taking part in the Irish insurrection, received permis-
sion to perform Divine Service, April 12, 1803. [The
permission was given by Governor King to this
emancipated R.C. Clergyman to exercise his clerical
functions.]

A Government order appeared, calling on all professing
the Roman Catholic religion throughout New South
Wales to attend at Government House, Parramatta,
on April 20, 1803.

Regulations for the services published in the Sydney
Gazette, April 21, 1803.

First Meeting for Roman Catholic Worship in Australia.
The Rev. James Dixon R. C. Clergyman, held Divine
Service in Sydney, May 15, 1803.

First Roman Catholic Service held in Parramatta, May
24, 1803. [Rev. James Dixon left the Colony, 1808.]
The Rev. Jeremiah O'Flynn, in the position of Arch-
Priest, the first Catholic Clergyman authorised by his
Church, arrived on August 3rd, 1817, in the “ Duke of
Wellington,” but not having the formal permission
from the Imperial authorities for performing the
functions of his religion, he was ordered to depart, and
he left accordingly, November 14, 1817. [The matter
was brought before the House of Commons, the result
being, that at the instance of Lord Bathurst, two
Catholic Chaplains, duly accredited with adequate

salaries, were immediately sent out to the Colony.]

Rev. J. J. Therry, and Rev. Phillip Connolly arrived in
the Colony, 1820.

A large meeting of the Roman Catholic inhabitants (the
Rev. Phillip Connolly presiding), was held in the Court-
house, with a view to devise measures for a suitable
Catholic Church, when St. Mary's Cathedral was origi-
nated at the meeting, July 1,1820. [Protestants as well
as Catholics subscribed liberally, and when the resour-
ces of individuals began to fail, the Governor stimu-
lated their zeal by promising to give from the public
coffers a sum equivalent to that which should there-
after be subscribed]

Rev. Phillip Connolly first Roman Catholic Chaplain of
Van Diemen’s Land, landed there, March, 1821

The foundation stone of St. Mary's Cathedral, Sydney,
laid by Governor Macquarie, October 20, 1821.

First R. C. School established in the Colony, 1822

Rev. Daniel Power arrived, N SW., 1826.

Rev. J. V. Dowling arrived N.S.W., 1829.

Rev. William Ullathorne, D.D., arrived in New South
Wales, February, 1832.

Rev. John M‘Encroe (afterwards Archdeacon) arrived
in the Colony with the appointment of Roman Catholic
Chaplain, 1832.

Right Reverend John Bede Polding, Bishop of Hiero-
Ceesarea and Vicar-Apostolic of the Australian Colonies,
arrived in the Colony of New South Wales, September
13, 1835; his inauguration took place at St. Mary's,
September 20, 1835.

St. Mary's Cathedral consecrated by Archbishop Polding,
June 29, 1836.

General meeting of Roman Catholic community called by
placards to take into consideration a speech of Mr.
Justice Willis, at the Diocesan dinner, in which he
alleged that the Roman Catholic religion was idola-
trous; resolutions embodying a vote of censure were
passed upon the Judge. July 29, 1838.

Dr. Ullathorne, the Roman Catholic Vicar-General, re-
turned to the Colony by the ship “ Francis Spaight.”
He was accompanied by three Priests and five Sisters of
Charity. They were the first of this order who
arrived in the Colony. December 30, 1838.

Roman Catholic Missionary Society established in New
Zealand, 1838

Rev. Phillip Connolly died in V.D.L., 1839.

The foundation stone of St. Francis’ Roman Catholic
Church, Melbourne laid, October 4, 1841.

The first peal of bells in the Colony, arrived for St.
Mary's Cathedral, 1842,

Dr. Polding returned to Sydney, in the ship * Templar,”
March 9, 1843.

First peal of bells in the Colony of New South Wales
heard from tower of St. Mary's Roman Catholic Cath-
edral, January 1, 1844.

The foundation stone of the Roman Catholic Church of
St. Patrick laid by the Archbishop of Sydney, August
25, 1840, and dedicated March 17, 1844.

The Guild of St. Mary and St. Joseph established in
Sydney, June 8, 1845,

St. Francis’s Church, Lonsdale-street, Melbourne, opened
October 4, 1845.

St. Patrick’s Church in Sydney opened, 1849.

St. Patrick’s Cathedral, Melbourne, commenced. [Ex-
treme length, 345 feet; the two towers, 226 feet in
height; lantern tower and spire, 330 feet; width of
nave, 76 feet; transepts, 160 feet.] 1858.

St. Mary's Cathedral destroyed by fire, June 29, 1865.

Foundation stone of St. Mary’s New Cathedral laid by
Archbishop Polding, assisted by the Roman Catholic
Bishops of Maitland, Bathurst, Goulburn, and Enos,
December 8, 1868.

Roman Catholic Cathedral, Armidale, opened February
2, 1872

Dr. Reynolds, Roman Catholic Bishop of Adelaide, conse-
crated, November 2, 1873,

New Cathedral at Goulburn, opened; the Archbishop
of Sydney, three Bishops and twenty Priests present
November 17, 1872.

Coadjutor-Archbishop Vaughan, R. C. C., arrived in
Sydney, December 16, 1873.

New College opened at Goulburn, N S.W, Feb., 1,1874.

Melbourne declared an Archbishopric, Right Rev. J.A.
Goold, first Archbishop, May 4, 1874.

St. Stephen’s Cathedral, Brisbane, opened by Archbishop
Vaughan and other Bishops, May 17,1874.

Decoration of Hon. P. A. Jennings with order of St.
Gregory the Great at St. Mary’s, Sydney, June 29,
1874.

Rev. Dr. Cani presented with a purse of 450 sovereigns
upon leaving Brisbane to visit Europe, November 3,
1874.

Installation of Right Rev. Dr. O'Connor, Roman Catholic
Bishop of Ballarat, January 20, 1875.

st. John's College, Sydney, reopened; inaugural address
by Archbishop Vaughan, April 7, 1875

Installation of Right Rev. Dr. Crane, Roman Catholic
Bishop of Sandhurst, Victoria, May 13, 1875.

New Hall, H. C. Guild, opened in Sydney, by Archbishop
Vaughan, October 16, 1876.

Sacred Heart Presentation Convent, Sydney, opened by
Archbishop Vaughan, November 10, 1876. (The
Bishops of Maitland, Goulburn and Bathurst, were
also present.) November 10, 1876.

Death of Archbishop Polding, March 16, 1877. [Public
Funeral was accorded to this distinguished prelate,
after the usual lying-in-state, during which the
chamber were the remains lay was thronged by
masses of visitors. The funeral was one of the largest
ever witnessed in N.S.W.; 20,000 persons present.]

Archbishop Vaughan invested with the pallium and
other insignia of his office as Archbishop of Sydney,
at St. Mary's Cathedral, January 13, 1878.

The Very Rev. Elzear Torregiani, Superior of the Capu-
chin Monastery at Lower Park-road, Peckham, nomi-
nated to the Bishopric of Armidale, Australia, 1879.

List of Clergymen.
Archbishops and Bishops.
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Archdiocese of Sydney.

Ambrosoli, Rev. A
Athy, Rev. M E
Birch, Rev. P
Callachor, Rev. H. B
Cassidy, Rev. P. M
Carroll,
Carroll, . P
Colletti, Rev. Dr..
Cunningham, Rev. J
Curr, Rev. B
Collins, Rev. J..
Collingridge, Rev. C. P. F .
Dalton, Rev. J
D'Arcy, Rev. M
Dillon, Rev. G. F
Dwyer, Rev. M. G
Fitzpatrick, Rev. J. P
Flanagan, Very Rev. Dean
Forde, Very Rev. Dean...
Fleming, Rev. J
Foley, Rev. J.
Garavel, Rev. J. M
Garvey, Rev. J. J.
Gillett,Very Rev. A. W. St. John's College, Sydney
Gough, Rev. M. St. Joseph’s, Newtown
Hallinan, VeryRv. Dr. (Dean) Manly Beach

Hanley, Very Rev. Dean.... Penrit

Hayes, Rev. J Kiama

Healy, Rev. P Bega

Hewitt, Rev. P Appin and Picton
Heuze, Rev. C St. Patrick’s, Sydney
Joly, Very Rev. C. M.. Villa Maria, Hunter's Hill
Keating, Rev.T. W Bombala

Kelly, Rev. J Lane Cove River

Kelly, Rev. W Lane Cove River
Kennedy, Rev. Lane Cove River
Keoghan, Rev. M.. Kiama

Kenny, Very Rev. Dean _ St. Leonard's
Lemanant des Chesnais,RV St. St. Patrick's, Sydney
Lynch, Very Rev. Monsignor Campbelltown

Leonard, Rev. T Sacred Heart, Sydney

St. Vincent's, Conv't, Sydney
St. Francis’ Sydney
Hartley
Moruya
St. Benedict's, Sydney
Mount Carmel, Waterloo
St. Patrick’s, Parramatta
St. Thomas', Petersham
Camden
Subiaco, Parramatta
Sacred Heart, Sydney
St. Mary’s, Sydney
Lane Cove River
Shoalhaven
St. Augustine’s, Balmain
Rosebank, Fivedock
St. Joseph's, Newtown
St. Xavier's, Wollongong
St. Mary’s, Sydney
St. Francis’, Sydney
St. Patrick’s, Sydney
St. Charles, Waverley
Woollahra

Luckie, Rev. E Liverpool

M*Auliffe, Rev. J St. Gregory’s, Queanbeyan
M‘Carthy, Very Rev. Dean.. Sydney

M'Carthy, Rev. C. Concord

Mahoney, Rev. P
McGuinn, Rev. D
Meuriare, Rev. Z y unter’s Hill
O'Brien, Very Rev. Dean.. St. Benedlcls Sydney
O'Connell, Very Rev. Dean Windsor

Phelan, Rev. J... Braidwood

Pollard, Rev. John St. James’, Forest Lodge
Petre, Rev. A. W. Dapto

Quirk, Rev. Dr.. Pyrmont

Quirk, Rev. D. P Cook’s River

Rigney, Ven. Archdeacon.. St.Patrick’s, Parramatta
Riordan, Rev. W ... Berrima

Roche, Rev. J. P Campbelltown

Ryan, Rev. P...
Sheehy, Rev. Archpriest
Sheridan, VeryRv.Dean,V.G. St. Francis’, Sydney
Sheridan, Rev. J St. Mary’s, Sydney
Slattery, Rev. P. Cooma

Taylor, Rev. W. G St. Mary’s, Sydney
Tresallet, Rev. J. M... Villa Maria, Hunter’s Hill
Vaughan, Rev. John St. John's College, Sydney
Walsh, Rev. E.. Araluen

White, Very Rev Dean. Armidale

Young, Rev. P.. St. Bridget's, Sydney

St. Mary’s, Sydney

Diocese of Armidale.

Davies, Rev. John Inverell
Doyle, Rev. J. J Armidale
Doyle, Rev. J. H Rocky Mouth
Kelly, Rev. James Glen Innes
Keenan, Rev. M. Tenterfield
O'Connor, Rev. P. J Armidale

O'Riordan, Rev. J...
O'Sullivan, Rev. J
Reid, Rev. W.....
Schurr, Rev. Abbe
Sheehan, Rev. M..
Quirk, Rev. J.

Inverell

Casino
Richmond River
Macleay River

Diocese of Bathurst.

Bolger, Rev. L St. Ignatius’, Bourke
Byrne, D D., Very Rev. J. SS. Michael and John's
P., Ad . Cathedral, Bathurst

Casey, Rev. James St. Patrick’s, Rockley

D'Arcy, Rev. D. J. ..St. Lawrence's, Forbes

Davoren, Rev. P. St. Joseph’s, Orange

Dunne, Rev. J. St. Bridget's, Dubbo

Enright, Rev St. Mary's, Mudgee

Horan, Rev. J. J St. Stanislaus’ College,
Bathurst

St. Francis’, O'Connell Plains

Huggard, Rev. James..

Kelly, Rev. James... St. Joseph’s, Orange

Kelly, Rev. Patrick
Long, Rev. M..

St. Ignatius’, Bourke
St. Joseph’s, Orange

McCarthy, Rev. Denis.. Carcoar
McGrath, Rev. D.. St. Francis Xavier's, Went-
worth

Meade, Rev. M...... St. Stanislaus’, College,
Bathurst

.. St. Bridget's, Dubbo

..Sacred Heart, Wattle Flat

St. Lawrence’s, Forbes

St. Mary’s, Mudgee

Immaculate Conception,
Carcoar

SS. Michael and John's
Cathedral, Bathurst

..St. Charles' Seminary,
Sacred Heart, Bathurst

Immaculate Conception,
Carcoar

Sacred Heart, Hill End

St. Patrick’'s, Wellington

Murphy, Rev. P........
Nugent, Rev. W......
O'Donnell, Rev. James
O’Donovan, Rev. J.
O'Dwyer, Rev. J

Riordan, Rev. P....

Ryan, Rev. J...

Ryan, Rev. Phillip

Ryan, Rev.
Walsh, Rev. T J. (Adm

Diocese of Goulburn.

Very Rev; Dr. McAlroy, V.G. Albury

Bermingham, Very Rev. Dr. Wagga Wagga

Butler, Rev. Richard Wagga Wagga

Burke, Rev. P St. Patrick's College, Goul-

burn
Carr, Rev. Richard J. Yass
carrol, Rev... Goulburn
Dunne, Very Rev. Gundagai
Dunne, Rev J. Burrowa
Finnigan, Rev. H . Young
Gallagher, Rev. J. St. Patrick’s College, Goul-

burn

Hanley, Rev. T.. Albury
Keating, Rev. L Goulburn
Kieley, Rev. R Corowa
Long, Rev.J Burrowa
McCarthy Rev. E Young
McGrath, Rev. W . Wagga Wagga
O'Dwyer, Rev. T. A Goulburn
O'Dwyer, Rev. D .... Gundagai
O'Dwyer, Rev. J Deniliquin
O'Connell, Rev. T. Deniliquin

O'Keeffe, Rev. P Yass
Slattery, Rev. M Corowa
Twomey, Rev. C Tumut
Walsh, Rev. Martin Albury
Walsh, Rev. Denis Thomas.. Goulburn

Diocese of Maitland.

Corcoran, Rev. P. J.. Morpeth
English, Rev. Thomas. Newcastle

English, Rev. Denis Gunnedah
Finn, Rev. P Murrurundi
Fontaine, Rev. C singleton
Foran, Rev. M Branxton

Hand, Rev. P.
Maher, Rev. Thomas
Matthews, Rev. M

West Maitland

Sacred Heart College

McCormack, Rev. Thomas.. Quirindi

McGrath, Rev. M Scone

McGrath, Rev. E Sacred Heart College
McGrath, Rev. A Tamworth

McGough, Rev. M
Murray, Rev. M
Murphy, Rev. J.
Murtough, Rev. F
Nealon, Rev. T. A
O'Keeffe, Rev. P

Manning River
West Maitland
Dungog
Muswellbrook
Raymond Terrace
Lambton
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Maryborough

Singleton O'Reilly, J
Brisbane

East Maitland O'Quinn, James (

New Zealand.

Binsfeld, Nicholas Rangiora, C.
Carew, Denis Reefton, N.
Chastagnon, Stephen. Thames, A.
Chataigner, John Baptist___
Chervier, John Claudius__ Lincoln, C.
k Wellington
. Oamaru, O.
Crowiey. Tlmothy Lawrence, O.
Donovan, Jeremiah Lyttleton
Ecuyer, Joseph Greymouth
Fauvel, Louis Termuka
Forest, John Napier

Fynes, H. J. (Vicar General)  Parnell, Auc.
Gavin, Anthony.. Nelson
Ginaty, Lawrence Christchurch

Golden, John
Goutenoire, John
Grange, John . Auckland
Halbwacks, Anlhony Carterton, W.
Hallum, Stephen.. Auckland
Higgins, Thomas.. Invercargill
Kearney, Matthew. Wellington
Kehoe, Thomas Coromandel, O.
Kenigan, Patrick Napier
Kirk, Charles Wanganui
New Plymouth
Dunedin
Lenihan, Thomas Milton, O.
Mackay, John.. Queenstown, O.
M'Caughy, Michael Cumara, W.
M'Donald, James D Drury, A.
M'Donald, Walter . Auckland
M'Guiness, Patrick. Wellington
M'Namare, John.. Christchurch
Mahony, William Nelson

Martin, Aime
Michel, Peter
Moran, Patrick (Bishop). .
Morean, Delphine Fielding, W.
ODwyer, John Auckland
OHara, Michae Otaeuhu, A.
O'Leary, Patri Invercargill
O'Mahony, Janies Nelson
O'Reilly, Patrick.. Coromandel, A.
O'Reilly, Jeremiah Wellington
Paul, James.... Onehunga
Pertius, Eugen Hawera, I.
Pezant, John Blenheim
Redwood, Franci Wellington
Reigneir, Euloge Meeanee, H. B.
Riordan, Patricl Howick
Rolland, John Louis Ahaura, A.
Sauzean, Augustine Blenheim, M.
Sheehan, John Dunedin
Walsh, Michael Ophir, O.
Yardin, Francis Hutt, W.
Queensland.
Ahern, John J Brisbane
Breen, James Brisbane
Bucas, P. . Mackay
Byrne, D. J ) Dalby
Capra, Brisbane
Comerford James.. Rockhampton
Connolly, J. P Nanango
Davadi, J Stanthorpe
Roma

T

.Charters Towers
Ipswich
Gympie
Warwick
Bowen
Mackay

Rockhampton
Brishane

V
OConneII Thomas.

Newcastle Rossolini, C.

Newcastle Scortechini, B.

Tamworth Walsh, W. M.. ownsville
Merriwa

Vicariate Apostolic of
Cani, Very Rev. Dr. (in

charge) .
De Romanio, Rev. Cherubin
Fabias, Rev. Luigi..
Tanganelh Very Rev Tarr

nuinius ...

South A
Reynolds, Right Rev. Dr.
(Bisho .

Prendergast

Russell, Ven. Archdeacon..

M Cormack Rev. Wllllam

Peters, Rev. Jos

Tappmemer Rev Jnseph
S.J

Rischeur, Very Rev. A., S,
Peters, Rev. Joseph, S.J.

Ryan, Rev. Michael ..
Allcock Right Rev. Abbott

Fox, Rev. James, 0.S.B.
Maher, Rev. James. .
Hennessey, Rev. Michael..
Kennedy, Rev. William..
Quinland, Rev. James..
Murphy, Very Rev. Dean
Kehoe, Rev. Patrick .
Nevin, Rev. R. B
Unsworth, Rev.
Pock, Rev. Joseph
Kreissell, Rev. Joseph,
Karlinger, Very Rev. Sigis-
mond, S.J. (Rector)
Polk, Rev. Joseph...
Steele, Rev. Anthony
Rascheur, Rev. —
Herden Rev. Rogalski Leo

OBrlen Rev. Thos.
Hager, Rev. Matthias
Pallhuber, Rev. J. E
Neiber, Rev. J. V.,
Attended, from Adelaide at
present
Byrne, Rev.
O'Brien, Rev.
Attended from Adelaide

Northern Queensland.

Cooktown

Cooktown
Cooktown

Hodgkinson

ustralia

Adelaide

St. Patrick’s, Adelaide

Salisbury
North Adelaide
Bowden

Norwood

Hectorville
Port Adelaide

Gawler

Gurnock
Marrabel
Kadina

Mount Barker
Mount Gambier
Penola

Port Augusta

Manoora
Kooringa

Seven-hill College

Georgetown

St. Yorke's Peninsula

Willunga
Morphett Vale
Marion

Tasmania.

Murphy, Most Rev. Daniel,
D.D. (Bishop of Hobart
Town). .

Beechinor, Rev. M. J

Dunne, Very Rev. W. J..

Woods, Rev. C. P

Hennerbry, Rev. P. R.

Hennebry, Rev. P. R

Butler, Very Rev. T. 3
D.D. (Dean).

Gleeson, Rev P.

Gleeson, Rev. P

Holehan, Rev. J.

O'Callaghan, Rev. M.

Noone, Rev J

Hogan, Rev.

Walsh, Rev. EF

M'Kernan, Rev. J. J..

Marum, Ven. Archdeacon..

Gilleran, Rev. M. W.

St. Mary's Cathedral, Hobart

St. Joseph’s Church, Hobart
Town

" New Town, &c.

Launceston

George Town & Piper's River
Richmond,

Stanley, Emu Bay, &c.
Torquay and Forth
Westbury

Deloraine

Longford, Evandale, Carrick
Campbell Town, Ross, &c.
Oatlands, Bothwell, Tunnack
Pontville, Kempton &c.
New Norfolk, Glenora, &c.
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Franklin
Honeywood
Port Esperance
Southport
Port Cygnet
Brune Island
Gordon

The Snug
Absent, Rev. D. F. X. Beechinor.

Murphy, Rev. J..

O'Regan, Rev. M. J....

The Church of Rome numbers in Tasmania 32 places of

worship, 12,000 attendants, and 80 Sunday schools,
with 263 teachers, and upwards of 3,000 scholars.

A rchdiocese of Melbourne

Aylward, Rev. P. St. Patrick’s

Bixio, Rev. Fathe St. Patrick’s College
Donahy, Rev. P.. St. Patrick's
Fltzpalrlck Very Rev. J.. gt patrick's
Lordcn Rev D St. Francis
Murphy, Rev. F., S.J. St. Patrick’s College
Nulty, Rev. C., SJ St. Patrick’s College

O' Meara, Very Rev. Arch- st

: . Francis

priest .. 3
Quinn, Rev. D. St. Francis
Watson, Rev. M, SJ. St. Patrick’s College
Allen, Rev. H., O.S.A Castlemaine
O’'Donoghue, Rev. P
O'Hea, Very Rev. Dean. Coburg
Gough, Rev. M...
Quigley, Rev. P. Daylesford
Barret, Rev T Duneed
Carey, Rev. M :
Quilter, Rev. W Elstemwick
O'Connell, Rev. -
O'Driscoll, Rev. J.. Emerald Hill
Finn, Rev. W. M
M'Kenna, Rev. M
Slattery, Very Rev. Arch- Geelong

deacon
OCaIIaghan Rev T.J Gisborne
Ellis, Rev. R.
Mullins, Rev. M. Gcljdon
Horan, Rev. J.. Heidelberg
England, Very Rev. Dean Hotham
Moran, Rev. P. Keilor
Farrelly, Rev. M. f
Maddock, Rev. S. Kilmore
Geoghegan, Very Rev. Dean
Nelan, Rev. D. Kyneton
O'Reilly, Rev.
Cahill, Rev. T.

S.
Clancy, Rev. J., S.J
Daly, Rev. O., S.J
Hughes, Rev. W., S.J
Nolan, Rev. E., S.J..

St. Xavier's College, Kew

Walsh, Rev. P. Mansfield
Hegarty, Rev. J. Meredith

Richmond
O'Carroll, Rev. M. Sale
Corbett, Very Rev. D 5
Quirk, Rev. W. H St. Kilda
O'Brien, Rev. W.

Tarraville

Hayes, Rev. W.
O'Callaghan, Rev. W

Diocese of Ballarat.

Hayden, Rev. T.. Ararat
Cleary, Very Rev. ‘DeanR. J.
O'Donohue, Rev. J. O. Ballarat
Moore, V. G
Herbert, Rev. J. J Belfast
Casterton
Clunes
Colac
Creswick
O'Farrell, Rev. Hamilton
O'Sullivan, Rev. J. D Horsham
Meade, Rev. R Inglewood

Meade, Rev. M. .. Mortlake
Moore, Rev. P. D. Smythesdale
Fitzgerald, Rev. J. F. Stawell
Dwyer, Rev. M.. St. Arnaud
Shanahan, Rev Warrnambool

Slattery, Very Rev. Dean..

Diocese of Sandhurst.

Roche, Rev. J.
Scanlon, Rev. T Benella
Tierney, Very Rev. Dean.. Beechwcrth
O'Connor, Rev. M... ight
Heydon, Rev. Vandel Chlllel’n
M'Gilkendy, Rev. J. J.
Carolin, Rev. T. P Echuca
Roche, Rev. J. Heathcote
Kearns, Rev. .
Kennedy, Rev. — Nagambie
Backhaus, Very Rev. Dean
D.D., V.G
O'Connell, Rev. R
Davy, Rev. O. Sandhurst
Neville, Rev. O.S.A,
ST.B
Egan, Rev. J. T Wangaratta

Western Australia.

Gibley, Very Rev. Matthew
(Vicar General) . -Guildford

Dooley, Rev. Timothy .Freemantle
O'Reilly, Rev. John .

Gibney, Rev. Patrick .Bunbury
Brady, Rev. Hugh. .Newcastle
Martelli, Rev. Canon .Greenbough
Lectille, Rev. Archdeacon .Geraldton
Doney, Rev. Bernard Albany
Matthew, Rev. F. .New Norcia

Salvadoe, Right Rev.
doe (Bishop)..

Martinez, Abbott Bernard’

Coll, Abbott Emilan..

Native Mission

Convents.
New South Wales. 37
Victoria 31
Queensland 19
South Australia 8
New Zealand 12
Western Australia 3
110

Bathurst.

Sisters of Mercy.

Immaculate Conception. Bathurst

St. Joseph's .. Carcoar

St. Matthew's . Mudgee

St. Joseph's .. Orange
Schools.

St. Joseph’s .Bathurst

St. Joseph's .Wattle Flat

erman Hill
. Borenoire

St. Joseph's
St. Joseph's

St. Joseph's .Evans Plains

St. Francis's O'Connell Plains
St. Joseph's .Lincoln

St. Joseph's .Rockley

Maitland.

College of Sacred Heart, “ Monte Pio,” West Maitland.

A Roman Catholic institution for the deaf and dumb is
established in connection with the Dominican Convent
at Newcastle.

A female Catholic school is established at West Mait-
land.

The Convent of the Sisters of Mercy at Singleton have
charge of school for female Catholics.

Sydney.

Camperdown
North Shore
Sydney

St. John’s College...
St. Ignatius's College
High School..
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Denominational Schools.

S. Palrlcks Sydney

s N
Sr. Pa(nck' Parramatta

Convents.

Benedictines Convent Subiaco
& Vincent's Convent Sydney
St Vincent's Hospital "
St Scholastica’'s Convent. "
St Mary of the Angels. Five Dock
Sisters of the Good Samaritan Balmain
St Mary's (Star of the Sea).. Wollongong
St Joseph's ) Windsor
St Patrick's . Sydney
Sisters of Mercy St. Leonards
Sistersof Mercy Parramatta

School, Orphan.
Orphan School at Parramatta, wholly supported by

Government.
Brisbane.
All Hallows Conven Brisbane
S Joseph's Conven South Brisbane
Christian Brothers’ Convent.. Brisbane

Orphan School.

S Vincent's Orphanage___ Brisbane

School.

St Anne’s Industrial Brisbane

Sisters of Mercy.

Brisbane
Nudgee

All Hallows.
St Vincent'

St Ann's Brisbane

St. Mary's Ipswich

Our Lady Toowoomba
St. Bridget's...... Rockhampton
Our Lady of Lourdes. Warwick

St. Joseph's Stanthorpe
St. Columba's Dalby

The Diocese of Brisbane was divided by a line running
due west from Cape Hinchinbrook, and on the west by
South Australia, and north to Cape York; this was
called the Vi iate of Queensland. The decree order-
ing this division was dated January 27, 1877.

Sisters of St. Joseph.

outh Brisbane
- Helidon

St. Joseph's lear Gympie
Our Lady of Maryborough
St. Joseph’s . Gladstone
St. Joseph's Mackay
St. Joseph's .. . Townsville
St. Teresa's . Bundaberg
St. Joseph's .Bowen

Melbourne.

College.

St. Patrick’s Melbourne

Schools Orphanages.

Roman Cathollc, for Boys.. Emerald Hill
for Girls.. "
" .. Geelong
” for Boys. s
Convents.
Melbourne

Convents
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Western Australia.
Orphanage Schools.
The Sisters of Mercy have charge of a school at Perth.
The Sisters of Mercy have charge of a school at York.
There is an Orphanage for girls at Subiaco, three miles
from Perth, attached to the Sisters of Mercy.
Catholic Young Men's Society established at Perth.
Society of the Children of Mary in Perth, Freemantle,
and York.

ROSS, Lieut.-Governor, who arrived in the
“ First Fleet ” sailed for England in the Gorgon,
December 18, 1791.

ROYAL STANDARD displayed for the first
time in Australia, June 4, 1803.

RUSHCUTTERS’'BAY,PortJackson, N.SW.
[See Aboriginals, Outrages against.]

RUST IN WHEAT [See Agriculture.]

S.

SAFES, Fire Proof. Result of a trial of
Milner's and Wearne's fireproof Safes (Wearne
being a colonial manufacturer), given by the
judges in favour of the latter. [The trial took
place at the Haymarket, Sydney.] June 17,
1871.

SAILORS’ HOME, Sydney, established, May
18, 1839.

SALMON.

Alexander Black reported on the feasibility
of introducing salmon into Tasmania, 1860.

The first salmon caught in Tasmania, Dec. 4,
1873. [To Mr. J. A. Youl, C.M.G., and Sir
Robert Officer, much credit is due for the intro-
duction of salmon into Tasmania.]

The Californian salmon imported by Sir
Samuel Wilson to Victoria, Nov. 19, 1877.

Upwards of 28,000 of the Californian salmon
ova imported by Sir Samuel Wilson hatched out
at Ercildoune, Nov. 29, 1877.

Salmon fry deposited in the head waters of
Yarra, some having previously been placed in
the streams in the Cape Otway Ranges, Decem-
ber 19, 1877.

SALT. First salt made in New South Wales
from sea water at Point Maskeleyne (Dawes’
Battery), May, 1790.

SAMOA. Colonel Steinberger, an American,
arrested at Samoa by order of Captain Stevens
of H.M.S. Barracouta. A fight with the
Samoans, loss of life resulting. Feb. 28, 1876.

SANDHURST, Victoria, proclaimed a munici-

pality, April, 1855.
SAWYER, Right Rev. Dr.

[See “ Men of the Time,” (Sawyer, Right
Rev.)]

SAXE-COBURG. Their Serene Highnesses
Prince Phillip and Prince Augustus of Saxe-
Coburg (cousins of Queen Victoria), visited
Sydney, N.S.W., October 22, 1872.
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SCHOLARS attending public
schools in Australasia—

and private

SCHOOLS.

First school in Sydney, in Rev. Mr. Johnston's church,
opened, Feb. 18, 1793. [When the church was burnt,
the school was held in the Court-house. The first
teachers were W. Webster, W. Richardson, and
Susannah Hunt.] J. M‘'Queen, first school-master at
Norfolk Island, 1793.

There were three schools in New South Wales, Dec., 1797.

Rev. Mr. Johnston had 200 children in attendance at his
school, 1798.

School established on the Hawkesbury, and 2d. per
acre levied by the Government on the landholders
there to support the teacher, 1804.

Mr. Crook advertised the first boarding school in Aus-
tralia in 1808.

A free school established in Sydney, February 24, 1810.

A school for the education of young aboriginals estab-
lished at Parramatta, May, 1816. [Many of them were
given up by their parents, and placed under tutors;
the school continued to be well attended until the
aboriginals had so far decayed that few were left.]

The foundation of the Georgian School-house in Castle-
reagh-street, Sydney, was laid by Governor Macquarie,
March 20, 1820. [It was designed for the education of
the children of the poor, and built to accommodate 500

The National School system introduced to the Colony
of N.S.W. by the Rev. T. Reddall, August 1, 1820.

First Roman Catholic school in New South Wales estab-
lished, 1822.

Rev. Thomas Reddall appointed Director General Public
Schools, New South Wales, August 18, 1824.

Sydney Free Grammar School founded, Dr. Halloran
Head-master, November 17,1824.

Infant School first established in New South Wales by
Rev. Richard Hill, December 16, 1824. [This, the
first infant school in Australia, was opened through
the efforts of Saxe Bannister, the Attorney-General,
and Mr. Hill.]

The School of Industry established by Lady Darling,
March 9, 1826.

An infant school established at Parramatta under the
care of Mr. and Mrs. J. F. Staff, December, 1827.

The King's School, Parramatta, was opened, January 16,
1832,

Normal Institution, founded 1835.

Australian School Society began operations in the colony,
under the guardianship of Rev. Mr. Mansfield, 1836.

St. James's Grammar School, founded 1839.

The Governor in Council proposed a plan of public
instruction for the Colony, and inserted a sum of
£3,000 on the Estimates for carrying the same into
effect, 1839. [A Public School was to be built in
Sydney, and two others in two of the principal towns
inthe interior. The “ Irish National System of Educa-
tion” was proposed, and was shortly afterwards estab-
lished in the Colony.]

De{\acl)wminalional School system in the Colony established,

The National School system adopted in New South
Wales, there being 26,000 children in the Colony, 1844.

Denominational School Board appointed, under which
all that related to religious teaching was entrusted to
the resident clergyman of the Denomination to which
each school belonged. There were 27 schools and
2,596 scholars. 1848.

The Model National School, now called the Fort-street
School, near Fort Phillip, Sydney, founded, 1849.

The National School Board, under Lord Stanley's sys-
tem of Education, constituted, 1851.

Church of England Grammar School, Melbourne, opened,
April, 1858,

Church of England Grammar School, Geelong, opened
June, 1858,

Ipswich Grammar School opened, September 25, 1863.

Foundation stone of the Brisbane Grammar School
laid by H.R.H. Prince Alfred, February 29, 1868.

Presbyterian Ladies’ College, Melbourne, inaugurated;
head master, Professor Pearson, January 11, 1875.

Foundation stone of new Public School laid at Wagga
Wagga, by Sir Alfred Stephen, C.J., October 2,1871.

Grammar School for Girls opened at Brisbane, May 15,

75.

SCHOOLS IN AUSTRALASIA.—1878.

High Schools. Many of these are called
colleges. The principal in New South Wales
are—the Sydney College (founded June 26, 1830)
formally opened by W. T. Cape, January 19,
1835; Sydney Grammar School since 1854;
the King's School, Parramatta (founded January
16, 1832); Moore College (C.E.), Liverpool;
Wesley College, Newington. In Victoria the
principal are—the Melbourne Grammar School
(C.E.); St. Patrick's College (R.C.); Scotch
College (Presbyterian); Wesley College, and
Geelong Grammar School.  In Queensland the
Ipswich Grammar School, the Brisbane Grammar
School, and the Toowoomba Grammar Schools
are the principal. In  South Australia, St
Peter’s Collegiate School (C.E.), was established
in 1848; and Prince Alfred Wesleyan College
in 1867. In Tasmania the principal are Horton
College, High School, Hutchin’'s School, and
Church Grammar School.  In New Zealand the
principal are the Auckland, Wellington, and
Otago High Schools.

SCHOOLS OF ART.

There are nearly 70 Schools of Art in New
South Wales, having property to the value of
£100,000, and a membership of over 6,000 per-
sons, 1879.

Sydney Mechanics’ School of A rts, founded
in 1833, was the first institution of the kind
in Australia. It was established by a band of
Scotch mechanics, assisted by Governor Bourke
and Revd. H. Carmichael, A.M. The first
secretary was Mr. Robert Band, and the first
treasurer Mr. Peter Gardner. Number of mem-
bers on the roll in 1878 was 2365, and 350 students
attended the Classes. A motion for the founding
of aTechnical orWorking Men’sCollege, proposed
by Mr. E. Dowling, was adopted at the annual
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meeting, February 4, 1873, but its inauguration
did not take place until the new buildings, the
erection of which cost £8,000 (£2,000 of which
was given by Government), were completed,
1879. £1,000 is annually granted towards pay-
ing professors and lecturers for this part of the
institution. The principal branches of technical
education in which instruction is given are:—
Agriculture, architecture, chemistry, domestic
economy and cookery, engineering, geology,
mineralogy, mining and metallurgy, navigation,
physiology, and other applied sciences.

During the first 25 years of its existence the
Rev. H. Carmichael, Dr. George Bennett, W.
T. Cape, J. Rae, Dr. L. Leichhardt, Archibald
Michie, Dr. Nicholson, Judge Therry, Arthur
ABeckett, Richard Windeyer, D. H. Deniehy,
Dr. Woolley, Sir W. Denison, and a host of
other able men occupied the platform of the
School of Arts lecture hall.

The first apartments used for the School of
Arts were in the Surveyor-General's Office on
Church Hill, lent for that purpose by Major
Mitchell, the president of the institution. 1833.

List of Presidents.

Major Mitchell 1833 to 1837
Major Barney. 1838 to 1843
Charles Nicholson, M.D., M. 1844 to 1851

Arthur A'Beckett
Col. Sir Thos. L. Mitchell
G. K. Holden .

Dr. Woolley, D.C.L
N. D. Stenhouse, M.A
W. C. Windeyer, M.A

1852 to 1854
1855
1856 to 1865
1866
1867 to 1873
1874 (still in office)

SCOTCH MARTYRS.

The so-called “ Scotch Martyrs " were named
Muir, Palmer, Skirving, Gerald, and Margarot;
they were convicted in Edinburgh for “ leasing-
making” i.e. libelling the Government, August,
1793, and were sentenced to transportation to
Botany Bay, January, 1794; they embarked Feb.
10, and arrived in Sydney, with the exception
of Gerald (who arrived a few months afterwards),
September, 1794; Mr. Gerald, a man of great
ability, and of most amiable and refined man-
ners, purchased a piece of land at Farm Cove,
now part of the Sydney Botanic Gardens, one of
the most beautiful spots in Australia; he culti-
vated this little plot of ground as a garden, and
when he died was, in accordance with his ex-
pressed wish, buried there, in 1796.  Mr. Skir-
ving only survived Mr. Gerald three days. Mr.
Margarot survived his period of exile, went
home in 1810, gave important evidence on the
state of the colony before a Select Committee of
the House of Commons in 1812, and died in
1813.

[See “ Men of the Time” (Muir; also
Palmer).]
SCOTT, Rev. Thomas Hobbes (afterwards

Archdeacon), arrived with Commissioner Bigge,
as Secretary to the latter, September, 25, 1819.

SCULLING. [See also Aquatics.]
E. C. Laycock beat M. Rush, champion course,
Parramatta River, £200 aside, April 12, 1879.
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SEAL, Great. lllegal affixing of.

The escheated lands of John Tawell [see
Crimes] were restored to trustees for the benefit
of his widow and children. George Cooper
Turner, Civil Crown Solicitor, was appointed
agent for the trustees of the lands, &c., in New
South Wales; he sold the land in 1849 and
absconded to San Francisco. The Governor of
New South Wales, Sir William Denison, in op-
position to the advice of his ministers (Hon.
Charles Cowper being Premier), affixed the great
seal of the colony to the grant of land to the
trustees of Mrs. Tawell, January 21, 1861; Sir
Charles Cowper and colleagues resigned on the
same day, but at the request of Sir William
recalled their resignation on the eve of the
Governor's departure.

SEAL OF THE COLONY.

The war ship Gorgon arrived with the Seal of
the Colony, Sept. 21, 1791.  [On the obverse of
this Seal are the King's Arms, and on the mar-
gins, the Royal titles; on the reverse a repre-
sentation of convicts landing at Botany Bay,
received by Industry, who, surrounded by her
attributes, a bale of merchandise, a pickaxe and
shovel, is releasing them from their fetters, and
pointing to oxen ploughing, and a town rising
on the summit of a hill, with a fort for its pro-
tection; the masts of a ship are seen in the bay;
in the margin are the words “ Sigillum Nov.
Camb. Aust.,” and for a motto “ Sic fortis
Etruria crevitthe Seal is of silver, and weighs
40 ounces.”]

New Territorial Seal arrived in the Colony,
November 14, 1817.

“ SECOND FLEET.”
[See New South W ales, Settlement of.]

SEPARATION.

The Colony of New South Wales divided into
three districts—the northern, comprising all the
country in the vicinity of Moreton Bay; the
middle, comprising New South Wales proper;
and the southern, consisting of the newly-settled
district of Port Phillip.  1840.

A meeting held in Sydney for two purposes—
one to oppose the separation of Port Phillip into
a separate colony, the other, to take measures
to introduce uniformity into the system under
which the public lands of the colony were appro-
priated, and a petition to the Queen was adopted
for that purpose. 1841.

A counter-petition was adopted in support of
the measure for separation of Port Phillip from
New South Wales, by the inhabitants of Port
Phillip, on the grounds that Port Phillip was
discovered by a naval officer; that it had been
twice abandoned after it had been colonised in
connection with New South Wales; that it was
the inhabitants of Van Diemen's land who
formed a permanent settlement in that district;
and that the discoveries of Hume and Hovell
were followed by no particular result by New
South Wales. 1841
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The subject of the separation of Port Phillip
from New South Wales again mooted in that
district, and at an anti-transportation meeting
there, the petitioners hinted that if the land
fund of Port Phillip were applied exclusively
for the advantage of the district, there would be
no lack of immigration, and, consequently, of
labour.  1847.

A despatch received relative to the separation
of Port Phillip from New South Wales with a
view to its erection into a distinct colony; the
despatch mentioned that New South Wales
would be divided into two colonies, the northern
part to retain its name, and the southern to be
called Victoria. 1848.

Great rejoicings at Port Phillip in consequence
of the intelligence of the separation of that dis-
trict from New South Wales; the people of
Melbourne suspended business for four days,
during which time every demonstration of rejoic-
ing, thanksgiving in churches, royal salutes, pro-
cessions, illuminations, fireworks, and games,
were indulged in. July 1, 1851

First public meeting held in Brisbane in
favour of separation, July 8, 1851.

Meeting held at Moreton Bay for the purpose
of petitioning the Home Government for separa-
tion from New South Wales, 1853.

Despatch received from the Home Government
announcing the intention of erecting Moreton
Bay into a separate colony, September, 1857.

The London Gazette announced the separation
of Moreton Bay and its erection into a separate
colony under the name of Queensland, January
3, 1859.

SEPARATION and FOUNDATION DAYS.
New South Wales foundation, Jan. 26, 1788.
New Zealand foundation, January 29, 1840.
South Australia foundation, Dec. 28, 1836.
Queensland separation from New South Wales,

December 10, 1859.

Tasmania foundation, February 16, 1804.
Victoria separation from N.S.W ., July 1, 1851.
Western Australia foundation, June 1, 1829.
[Note.—The above table does not agree in one
or two particulars with another given on page
10, because events of equal importance occurred

on both dates, but this list is the one officially
recognized.]

SETTLEMENT. First settlement of Austra-
lind attempted, December 17, 1840.

Settlers. A term applied to those families
who settled on the lands of the interior of Aus-
tralia and New Zealand.

The First Settlers on the Land in Aus-
tralia. The following are the names of the
first settlers on the land, the date of settlement,
and the quantity of land granted to them in
Australia. Many of their descendants are still
in the neighbourhood of Parramatta—

Free Settlers. Phillip Scheffer, superin-
tendent of convicts; date, 30th March, 1791,
quantity of land granted, 140 acres; place, on

the north side of the creek leading to Parra-
matta. Robert Webb and William Reid,
marines; date, 30th March, 1791; quantity of
of land, 60 acres each; place, on the north side
of the creek leading to Parramatta.

On the 5th April, 1791, the following persons,
sailors or marines, were granted 60 acres of land
each at Norfolk Island, by the Governor of New
South Wales. Many of the descendants of
these original settlers also are still in the colony
of New South Wales—Robert Watson, John
Drummond, James Proctor, Peter Hobbs, Owen
Cavanough, James Painter, William Mitchell,
William Hambly, Charles Heritage, Samuel
King, William Mitchell, Thomas Bramwell,
Thomas Bishop, John M ‘Carthy, Laurence
Richards, John Munday, Thomas Chipp, Wil-
liam Strong, James M'Manis, Thomas O’'Brien,
Richard Knight, Abraham Hand, William
Dempsey, Thomas Scully, John Barrisford,
James Redmond, William Tunks, Thomas Half-
penny, William Standley, John Gowen, Thos.
Dukes, James Williams, Daniel Stanfield, John
Roberts, William Sims, John Foley, Patrick
Connell, Thomas Spencer, and John Scott.

Convict Settlers. The first convict settler
had 30 acres of land granted to him on the 30th
March, 1791, on the south side of the creek
leading to Parramatta, and opposite to Phillip
Scheffer’'s.  On the 18th July in the same year
a number of other persons received grants of
land from 20 to 60 acres each, at distances two
miles to four miles west and north-east of Parra-
matta, and some had each 10 acres allotted them
at Norfolk Island.

First Settler in Port Phittip. In Decem-
ber, 1828, Mr. William Dutton visited Portland
Bay in the schooner “ Madeira Packet,” on a
sealing voyage. He was one of a boat’s crew that
landed at Blacknose Point, and remained in the
neighbourhood until the middle of January,
1829. Again, in July, 1829, Mr. Dutton visited
Portland Bay in the schooner “ Henry,” Captain
M'Lean, on a sealing voyage. He was captain
of a boat’s crew which landed at Whaler's Point,
or Single Corner (the present site of Portland),
where he remained sealing, and built a house
and lived in it. The third time, in March, 1831,
Mr. William Dutton again visited Portland Bay
in the schooner “ Henry,” then commanded by
Captain Griffiths. The vessel anchored off Black*
nose Point. Mr. Dutton landed, and occupied
for some months the house he built in 1829. He
then left in the schooner “ Elizabeth.” And the
fourth time, in November, 1832, Mr. William
Dutton again visited Portland Bay, and resided
there until March, 1833. He subsequently re-
turned to Portland in command of the schooner
“ Henry,” and established a whaling station,
erected buildings, and grew vegetables for his
own use.

SHEEP.

29 sheep arrived in Australia in the “ First
Fleet,” January, 1788.

[See Stock.]
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The Port of Sydney declared a free port by order of the
Lords Commissioners of the Admiralty; under this
privilege vessels of foreign nations were allowed to
land and warehouse cargoes for exportation. 1883.

Sydney Streets—

Victoria-street
Brougham-street
Judge-street
Duke-street
Dowling-street
Forbes-street
The above six streets were so named by the late Sir
James Dowling. He first opened them in consequence
of their being on his own land. Victoria-street was so
named after Queen Victoria, Brougham-street after
Lord Brougham, Dowling-street after himself, and
Forbes-street after Sir Francis Forbes. 1834.

Some land sold in Sydney at the rate of £10,000 per
acre, 1834.

Mr. John Stephen elected President of the Patriotic
Association, 1835.

The Proprietary Sydney College opened under the
superintendence of Mr. W. T. Cape, 1835.

Sydney Gas Light Company established April 13, 1836.

Australian Museum established 1836.

Bishop Broughton arrived June 2, 1836.

Great fall of snow near Sydney, known as “ Snowy
Monday,” June 28, 1837.

The aqueduct from Botany to Sydney, which was com-
menced in 1827, was completed in 1837. [The length of
the tunnel was 12,000 feet, its average depth five, and
its width four feet. The total cost of the aqueduct
was £22,000. The work was done entirely by convict
labour, which was estimated to be two-thirds less than
free labour.]

Victoria Theatre opened March 17,1838.

The Sydney Botanic Gardens thrown open to the public
April 30, 1838.

The first show of the Floral and Horticultural Society
took place September 19, 1838,

Foundation stone of Christ Church
1840.

Foundation stone of Trinity Church laid June 23, 1840.

Gas first used for lighting the shops, and the Company
gave a brilliant illumination on Church Hill on the
occasion, May 24, 1841.

Government House first occupied and especially fitted
up for the celebration of Her Majesty's birthday,
May 24,1843,

Prisoners for debt first removed from Carter's Barracks
to Darlinghurst gaol, December 31, 1843,

The owner of an unlicensed still in Sydney fined £500,
1843,

Great distress prevailed in Sydney amongst the working
classes for want of employment. £1,000 was voted by
the Council for the purpose of sending a portion of the
unemployed into the interior. 1843

First peal of bells heard in Australia ushered in the new
year from the tower of St. Mary's (R.C. Cathedral),
January 1, 1844,

The foundation stone of the first Bethel Chapel was laid,
April 24, 1844

Street robberies prevalent in Sydney—Mr. Noble mur-
dered in his own bed by three ruffians, who were after-
wards executed for the crime. 1844,

The first meeting of the subscribers to the Sydney Dis-
pensary, after its extension as an infirmary, when Drs.
Macfarlane and Fullerton were elected the first physi-
cians, and Messrs. Nathan and M’Crae the first surgeons
of that institution. March 26, 1845.

A great scarcity of water experienced, when it was sug-
gested that water should be conveyed from the Nepean
River by means of an aqueduct, 1850.

Port Jackson became a free port by an Act abolishing
harbour dues, entry and clearance fees, and lighthouse
and water police dues, 1852

Foundation stone of Sydney Exchange laid by Governor
Fitzroy, 1853.

The works for the defence of the harbour commenced at
Pinchgut (now Fort Denison), Lady Macquarie's chair,
and other places in the harbour, 1853.

The American steamer “ Golden Age " arrived in Sydney,
January 6, 1854.

Bangquet in honour of St. Patrick’s Day, March 17, 1854.

‘Woolloomooloo.

laid January 1,

Sydney Exchange, costing £25,000, opened by Sir Thomas
Denison, December 30, 1857.

Public Soup Kitchen established in Sydney, June 12,1867.

Foundation stone of Sydney Town Hall laid by H.R.H
Duke of Edinburgh, April 4, 1868.

A number of ladies and gentlemen t the foundry of
Messrs. P. N. Russell and Co., to witness the casting
of a large bell for the new Post Office, August 12,1871,

Foundation stone of Protestant Hall laid by Bishop
Barker, November 9, 1875.

The foundation stone of the new Crown Lands Offices laid
by Hon. T. Garrett, Minister for Lands, October 7,1878.

The Botany main burst and caused a water famine in
Sydney for two days, 1878.

Parliamentary dinner given to Alderman Macarthur,
M.P., of London, November 29, 1878.

T.

TAMAR, River, Tasmania, discovered and
named by Admiral d'Entrecasteaux and Captain
Huon Kermondee, April 20, 1792; traced and
named by Colonel Patterson, 1806. [The whole
of the Tamar river, as far as its junction with the
North and South Esk rivers, was formerly called
Port Dalrymple.] [See Dalrymple, Port.]

TARIFF. A despatch from Lord Kimberley,
objecting to the complex tariff between the
Australian colonies, received July 13, 1871.

TASMAN, captain Abel Jansen, a skilful
Dutch navigator, sailed from Batavia on a
voyage of discovery, August 14, 1642.

TASMANIA (originally van Diemen's Land,
until 1854,) discovered by Tasman, November
24, 1642. [Tasmania is situated between the
parallels of 40° 30" and 43° 33' south latitude,
and 144° and 148° meridians of east longitude,
and divided from Australia by Bass's Straits:
length 170 miles, breadth 160 miles, area
15,751,500 acres, or with lakes and islands,
16,778,000 acres, or 26,215 square miles.]

Frederick Hemskirk Bay, so named, by its discoverer,
Tasman, in honour of a stadtholder (chief ruler) of the
Netherlands, December 1, 1642.

Marion Du Fresne, in the “ Mascarion,” arrived off the
west coast of Van Diemen’s Land, March 3, 1772.

Captain Fobias Furneaux, in H.B.M. “ Adventure,”
made the West Cape, and anchored in D'Entrecasteaux
Channel, March 9, 1773,

Captain Cook, with H.M.S. “ Resolution” and “ Dis-
covery,” made the S.W. cape of Australia, and, after
steering eastward, anchored in Adventure Bay, Jan-
uary 24, 1777.

Captain Bligh, in the * Bounty,” anchored in Adven-
ture Bay, and, having landed, planted there a number
of European fruit-trees, 1788.

Admiral Bruni D’Entrecasteaux, in the “ Recherche,”
and Huon Kermondee, in the “ Esperance,” visited
Tasmania and discovered D’Entrecasteaux Channel and
the Riviére du Nord 1792.

The Huon River, named after Huon Kermondee a
Frenchman, who commanded the “ Esperance,” 1792.

Captain Tobias Furneaux, in H.M.S. “ Adventure

visited Tasmania, and gave it as his opinion that no
strait existed between the island and New Holland,
but “ a very deep bay.” 1793.

The Duke and Duchess of Clarence” ship anchored
in Adventure Bay under the command of Commodore
John Hayes, who named the Derwent (Riviére du
Nord of D’Entrecasteaux,) 1794.

Bass and Flinders discovered the entrance of the river

Tamar, November 3,1798.
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Flinders and Bass explored Tasmanian coast, and named
Port Dalrymple in honor of Alex. Dalrymple, of
the Admiralty, November, 1788.

Bass and Flinders entered the Derwent River on
December 7, proceeding as far as Sullivan's Cove, the
present site of Hobart Town, having established the
fact of the insularity of Van Diemen’s Land. Decem-
ber 23, 1798.

Bass anchored his sloop, the “ Norfolk,” in Port Jack-
son, having established the fact of the insularity of
Tasmania, and the Governor of New South Wales
named the passage “ Bass's Straits,” January 12, 1799.

Bass left the Derwent, and returned to Sydney, January
3,1799.

His Majesty the King of England’s right to Van
Piemen’s Land established by proclamation, and the
directions given to Lieutenant John Bowen, of H.M.S.
“ Glatton,” to form an establishment on the island,
he assuming the title of Commandant and Superin-
tendent, March 29,1803.

Lieutenant Bowen sailed in the “ Lady Nugent” to form
asettlement in Van Diemen’s Land, June 23, 1803.

First settlement formed in Van Diemen's land by
Lieutenant Bowen, Surgeon, Jacob Mountgarret, three
soldiers, and ten male and 6 female prisoners, who
settled on the left bank of the Derwent, at Restdown or
Risdon Cove, having left Sydney in the schooner * Lady
Nelson” on June 23. August 10, 1803.

Arrival (in the * Ocean”) at Sullivan's Cove (Hobart
Town), Derwent River, of first detachment of Port
Phillip settlers (who had abandoned that place as unfit
for habitation) to form new settlement in Tasmania
under charge of Colonel Collins, as Lieutenant-Gover-
nor. The site chosen by the party was Sullivan’s Cove,
called Hobart Town, in honour of Lord Hobart, head of
the Colonial office. January 30, 1804.

Officers of the New Settlement.

Rev. R. Knopwood, Chaplain.

E. Bromley, Surgeon Superintendent.

W. Anson, Colonial Surgeon.

M. Boden

W. Hopley

P. H. Humphrey, Mineralogist.

Lieutenant Fosbrook, Deputy Commissary-General

G. P. Harris, Deputy Surveyor.

John Clark
Wm. Paterson

Lieutenants Sladen, Johnson, and Lord, with 44 marines,

in charge of 367 convicts.

Assistant Surgeons.

Superintendents of Convicts.

Arrival of the second vessel at Hobart Town, February
16, 1804.

Launceston named by Colonel Paterson, October, 1804.

Yorktown, the second establishment in Van Diemen's
Land, settled by a small party of prisoners who were
despatched from Sydney, October, 1804,

Fight between soldiers and natives; 40 of the latter

Arrival of the settlers who had abandoned Norfolk
Island. They called the place they settled on New Nor-
folk and Norfolk Plains. 1805.

The Tamar River traced and named by Colonel Pater-
son, 1806.

Convict establishment removed from Yorktown to a
new settlement named Launceston, 1806.

First communication opened in nine days between
Launceston and Hobart Town, by Lieutenant Laycock
and party. 1807.

First post office established in Hobart Town, April 25,
1809.

The site of George Town (now Launceston) marked out
by Governor Macquarie, November, 1811,

Governor Macquarie and Mrs. Macquarie arrived from
Sydney on a visit to Hobart Town. The Governor
travelled overland from Hobart Town to Launceston,
and marked out the site of George Town, Port Dal-
rymple.  November 23, 1811.

Lieutenant-Colonel Geils, 73rd Regiment, Command-
ant of Tasmania, February 7, 1812

The temporary church at Hobart Town blown down,

1812.

First Supreme Court held in Hobart Town, January
23, 1814,

Major Abbot, one of the officers of the old N.S.W.
corps, sent from Sydney to Van Diemen’s Land as
judge advocate, 1814.

Macquarie Harbour, Tasmania, discovered, June 14,
1816.

Lieutenant-Governor’s Courts, consisting of the deputy
judge-advocate and two other persons, opened, 1816

Hobart Town Gazette published by Andrew Bent, 1816

Foundation stone first permanent church, St. David's,
laid by Lieutenant-Governor Thomas Davey, at Hobart
Town, February 19, 1817.

First sale of cattle held in Van Diemen’s Land, October
3, 1817

Government House, Hobart Town, finished, October
4, 1817,

First Sunday-school opened, May, 1818.

The first circuit court in the colony was held in Hobart
Town, Mr. Justice Field presiding, December, 1818.

Rev. John Youl arrived, 1818.

In the third year of Sorell's administration £20,000
was obtained for wheat, and £1,000 for salt meat ex-
ported to Sydney. At the end of 1871 there were 170,000
sheep, 550 horses, 35,000 head of cattle, and 5,000 swine
in the colony. 1820-21.

The *“ Emerald,” first emigrant vessel, arrived from
England at Hobart Town, March 18, 1821.

Governor Macquarie visited Tasmania for the second
time, April 24, 1821. He left Tasmania June 29, 1821.

Promissory notes issued ad. lib. in Tasmania, July
12, 1821.

Rev. Archibald Macarthur, first Presbyterian clergy-
man, preached first sermon at Hobart Town, January
12, 1823.

St. David's Church (named St. David's in honour of
first Governor), Hobart Town, consecrated by Rev. S.
Marsden, 1823.

Chief Justice J. L. Pedder arrived in Hobart Town
with a charter, 1824.

An agitation for the separation of Tasmania from
New South Wales, 1824.

Names of the first Executive Council ~ Colonial Sec-
retary, Dudley Montague Perceval; the Chief Justice,
John Lewis Pedder, Adolanis; W. H. Humphrey and
Jocelyn Thomas. The members of the Legislative
body: William Henry Hamilton Humphrey and
Edward Curr. December 3, 1825.

Tasmania proclaimed independent of New South Wales,
December 3, 1825.

A separate Government established. Governor Dar-
ling called at the island and formally proclaimed its in-
dependency. The Lieutenant-Governor of Van Die-
men’s Land being subordinate to the Governor of New
South Wales, who retained the title of Governor in
Chief: in all other respects the separation was com-
plete. An Executive and Legislative Council were
called into existence, January 9, 1826.

A settlement formed at Circular Head, under Mr.
Edward Curr, for the “ Van Diemen’s Land Company.”
The Company received a grant of about 25,000 acres on
the north-east coast of Tasmania from the Government
of George IV. 1826

Crown Lands leased January 5, 1828.

Proclamation issued proclaiming martial law against
aboriginal natives, November 1, 1828.

The King's Orphan School, Newtown, near Hobart
Town, formed under the management of Mr. R. W.
Giblin, 1828.

Mr. Thomas Kent discovered the virtues of Mimosa
bark extract, and received asa reward 10,000 acres of
the richest land he could find in Tasmania, 1829.

“ Cyprus,” Government vessel, seized by convicts and
taken to the South Seas, August 9, 1829.

Extraordinary attempt made by Governor Arthur of
Tasmania, to catch and pen up in Tasman's peninsula
the aboriginal population of the island. Upward of
3500 (including 300 soldiers) white persons turned out
for the exciting operation of clearing Tasmania by
means of a cordon across the island. The attempt
proved a total failure; only two na s were captured,
and the total cost of the expedition amounted to
£35,000. 1830.

The first conveyance between Hobart Town and Laun-
ceston started, June 19, 1832

Tasmania appointed place of transportation for natives
of New South Wales, and persons ar in the
colony free, after being convicted of a first offence, 1832
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First Independent Church opened by Rev. F. Miller,
1832,

First Temperance Society established by Messrs. Back-
house and Walker, 1832.

Rev. Robert Knopwood, M.A., first Clergyman in Tas-
mania, died, November 8, 1836.

The last of the Tasmania aboriginals (300) transferred
from the main land to Flinders Island, by the instru-
mentality of Mr. George Augustus Robinson, 1837.

Convict Population.

1824 1832
1825 1833
1826 1834
1827 1835
1828 1836
1829 1837
1830 1838
1831

Tasmania formed into a separate bishopric, August 27,
1842

Dr. Nixon installed as first Bishop of Tasmania, June
27, 1843

Christ's College, Van Diemen’s Land, commenced October
10,1846,

Heavy fall of snow at Hobart Town, November 22,
1849

Cricket Match between Melbourne and Tasmania, won
by the latter, February 22, 1851

First election of Tasmanian Legislative Council, Octo-
ber 24, 1851

Transportation ceased, February 10, 1853.

John Mitchel escaped, July 20, 1853

Name of Van Diemen’s Land altered to Tasmania on
address of Legislative Council, 1854.

Gas first used in Hobart Town, March 12, 1857

Tasmanian building stone used in building the Mel-
bourne Post office, 1862,

Duke of Edinburgh visited Tasmania, December, 1869

Public cemetery, Hobart Town, opened July 22, 1872

Hobart Town waterworks opened February 23, 1876.

Tasmanian Prisons, Early.

Brickfield. Marie Island.
Bridgewater. Picton
Brown's River, Oyster Cove.  Port Arthur.
Macquarie Harbour. South Port.

TAXATION.

Table showing the Taxation in the Australasian
Colonies.

TELEGRAPHIC.

A proposal for the establishment of electric
telegraph between Sydney and Melbourne
started, 1845.

Telegraph first used in New South Wales,
December 5, 1851.

Electric telegraph construction commenced
in Victoria, November, 1853.

The first electric telegraph put in operation in
Victoria was between Melbourne and Williams-
town, March 3, 1854.

TAXATION—TELEGRAPHIC.

[It was opened in the presence of Lieutenant-
Governor Latrobe, members of the Legislative
Council, and others, at the telegraph office,
William-street. Mr. McGowan was appointed
Superintendent of Telegraphs.]

The first telegraph in South Australia was
from Adelaide to Port Adelaide; distance about
9%miles. Opened February 18, 1856.

The first line of telegraph between Melbourne
and Adelaide opened, July 19, 1856.

Telegraphic communication established in
Tasmania, August 2, 1857.

Telegraphic communication between Sydney
and Liverpool, New South Wales, completed,
December 30, 1857.

First telegraphic message, Sydney to Liver-
pool, in N.S.W., sent by Mr. E. C. Cracknell,
January 26, 1858.

Telegraphic communication between Mel-
bourne and Adelaide established, July 19,
1858.

Telegraphic communication established be-

tween Sydney, Melbourne, and Adelaide,
October 29, 1858.
Telegraph to Kapunda, South Australia,

opened, May 11, 1859.

First telegram between Tasmania and Victoria,
September 30, 1859, but proved a failure.

Cable laid from Cape Otway to King's Island,
and thence to Tasmania, 1859; proved a failure.
1860.

First New Zealand telegraph office opened,
July 1, 1862.

Telegraph line opened from Brisbane to
Rockhampton, Queensland, April 6, 1864.

Telegraph line opened to Townsville, March
15, 1869.

The new Electric cable from Tasmania to
Victoria laid, April 27, 1869.

First message through Bass' Straits cable,
May 1, 1869.

Telegraphic communication established be-
tween Perth and Freemantle, West Australia,
June 21, 1869.

Overland telegraph commenced inthe Northern
Territory, South Australia, September 15, 1870.

The shore end of the cable between Port
Darwin and Banjoewangie laid at the former
place, November 7, 1871.

The first telegram came through stating that
communication with Java was complete, Novem-
ber 20, 1871.

Telegraph line between Normanton, Gulf of
Carpentaria, and Brisbane opened, January 3,
1872.

Telegraph line to Normanton officially opened,
June 4, 1872.

First cable message from England received
in Melbourne, July 2, 1872.

Cable communication with England by the
construction of the South Australian telegraph
line to Port Darwin, October 22, 1872. [The
contract for the construction of the overland
line was let in three divisions. From Port
Augusta inlat. 31¥2 S. tolat. 27°, the line is 512
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miles in length, and Mr. E. M. Bagot was the
contractor for this portion of the work, and he
erected the first pole on October 1, 1870; the
next portion, from lat. 27° to lat. 1980, is 612
miles in length, and it was undertaken by the
Government; and the third portion, extending
from lat. 1980toits completion, 629 in length,
was entrusted to Messrs. Darwent and Dalwood,
who planted the first pole on September 15,
1870. The total length of the wire from Port
Darwin to Adelaide is 1,976 miles. After en-
countering extraordinary difficulties, the work
was completed through the ability and energy
of Mr. Todd, Superintendent of Telegraphs,
South Australia. The Overland Telegraph,
which cost £370,000, was placed in connection
with the cable laid by the British Australian
Company, between Singapore via Java to Port
Darwin, October 22, 1872.]

First through telegram received in Adelaide,
S.A., by the overland wire, October 22, 1872.

[Intercolonial Conference held in Sydney,
September, 1874. The Governments of New
South Wales, Victoria, South Australia,
Queensland, New Zealand, Tasmania, and
Western Australia were represented.  Various
questions were considered but no agreement
arrived at in reference to cable duplication,
which was the principal subject for decision.
The delegates were New South Wales, John
Robertson, Alexander Stuart, and J. F. Burns;
Victoria, J. S. Anderson and Robert Ramsay;
Western Australia, A, Frazer; Queensland, S.
W. Griffith and C. S. Mein; New Zealand,
George Maclean.]

Cable from Sydney to New Zealand, shore end
laid at La Perouse, Botany, N.S.W .,Feb. 5,1876.

Cable communication between Australia and
New Zealand established, February 20, 1876.

Telegraph opened Sydney to Manly Beach,
July 1, 1876.

Telegraphic communication between Adelaide
and Eucla opened, July 13, 1877.

Completion of the overland telegraph to Eucla;
2,046 miles of line available between Adelaide,
South Australia, and Perth, Western Australia,
December 1, 1877.

5,163 miles opened, and 1,031 miles authorized
and in progress in December, 1877.

Intercolonial Cable Conference commenced its
sittings at Melbourne, May 9, 1878.

The London Times published first intelligence
of the New Caledonia massacre simultaneously
with the Sydney Evening News, through the
agency of S. W. Silver and Co., July 12, 1878.

The Cable Conference adopted its report, May
18, 1878. [The principal resolution authorized
New South Wales and Victoria to enter into an
agreement for a second cable from Rangoon from
Singapore direct to Banjoewangie, and thence to
Port Darwin, avoiding the Java land line, foran
annual subsidy not exceeding£32,400, payablefor
20 years. Government messages to be issued to
Port Darwin at a reduction of 50 per cent., and
Press messages at a reduction of 75 per cent. The
delegates consisted of Graham Berry for Vic-
toria, J. F. Burns for New South Wales, J. P.
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Boucaut and Charles Todd for South Australia,
and C. S. Mein for Queensland. The arrange-
ments were made with Colonel Glover, of
Eastern Telegraph Company, who was examined
by the Conference.

The Hon. J. F. Burns paid a visit to New
Zealand in relation to the second cable, and
succeeded in inducing the Government of that
colony to join inthe contract, June, 1878.

The route and length of cable and land lines
are as follows between London and Adelaide:

London to Land's End (overland) 320
Land's End to Gibraltar Via Lisbon (c: 1,250
Gibraltar to Malta (cable) 981
Malta to Alexandria (cable ) 819

Alexandria to Suez (overland wire). . . 224
Suez to Aden (cable) .
Aden to Bombay (cable).
Bombay to Madras (overland w ire)
Madras to Penang (cable) .
Penang to Singapore (cable).
Singapore to Batavia (cable)
Batavia to Banjoewangie (overland wire). . . . 480
Banjoewangie to Port Darwin (cable).
Port Darwin to Port Augusta, South At
land wire) .
Port Augusta to Adelaide

Total length of cable. . . 9,146
Total length of overland W|re 3,424
Total.... ...12,570

From Port Augusta the overland wire stretches
to Sydney, N.S.W ., a distance of 650 miles.
The connection here takes place with New
Zealand, the submarine cable commencing at
Botany Bay, and terminating at Wakapuaka, a
distance of 1,150 miles. From Wakapuaka the
overland wire is carried to White's Bay (88
miles), thence by cable to Wellington (41 miles),
from which centre all the towns and cities of
New Zealand are communicated with.

Overland Telegraph Line—Stations and Distances.

From Adelaide to Beltana . 355 miles
. " StrangwaysSprlngs 545 "
. 636 ,,

Charlotte Waters. . . . 804
Alice Springs. . . . 1036 ,,

" ,, BarrowsCreek. . . . 1207 "
Tennant's Creek. . . . 1354
Powell's Creek. . . . 1467
Daly Waters. .
Katherine "

Pine Creek
Shackle [7 miles from Yam
Creek 1

in Australasia.

Lengths opened

Number of miles of Telegraph Lines opened
December 31, 1877:—

New South Wales
New Zealand
Queensland.
South Australia.
Tasmania
Victoria .
Western Austr.

Total. . .
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TEMPERANCE.

Grand festival given by Mr. George Allen,
Mayor of Sydney, at the Victoria Theatre; it
was attended by 1,000 members of the Total
Abstinence Societies, and as many more of all
classes of the community. 1845.

N.S.W. Alliance instituted, Feb. 26, 1857.
Number of pledged members to date, 14,600.

Foundation stone of Temperance Hall laid by
Miss Denison, July 15, 1858.

Sons of Temperance formed in N.S.W., May
31, 1864; accumulated funds, £25,280.

New Temperance Hall opened in Sydney,
August 12, 1872.

It is calculated that there are 60,000 temper-
ance members in Australia.  1879.

TEMPERATURE.

The mean temperature of the soil in Melbourne,
as derived from observations taken during a
number of years by means of a thermometer
on the surface slightly covered with earth, but
fully exposed to the action of the sun andwind;
also the mean temperature of the bulb at various
depths, and the mean temperature of the dew-
point, are given as follow for the four seasons
and for the entire year
Mean Temperature of Soil and Dew-point at Melbourne.

TEMPLARS. The Independent Order of Good
Templars established a lodge at Queensland,
February 19, 1873, and in N.S.W ., March, 1873.

THAKOMBAU (CACOBAU).

Ex-King of Fiji, arrived in Sydney, N.S.W .,
with his sons Ratu Timothy and Ratu Joseph
Celau, November 29, 1874.

Thakombau left Sydney for Fiji, Dec. 21, 1874.

THANKSGIVING.

Public thanksgiving for the break-up of the
drought, which was protracted and destructive,
November 12, 1829.

Thanksgiving day in N.S.W. proclaimed for
recovery of Prince of Wales, February 27, 1872.

THEATRES.

The debtor's room in the Sydney Gaol used
as a theatre, 1826.

Victoria Theatre foundation stone laid with ma-
sonic honors, Sep. 7,1836; opened March 26,1838.
[Mr. Arabin as Othello, and Mr. Spencer, lago.]

Signor Dalle Case opened a temporary theatre
in Hunter-street, Sydney—designated it the
“ Olympic.” January 26, 1842.

TEMPERANCE—THEATRICAL STARS.

City Theatre, Market-street, Sydney, opened
by Messrs. Simmons and Belmore, May 20, 1843.

Queen’s Theatre, Queen’s-street, Melbourne,
opened with the play of the Honeymoon, May
1, 1845.

Princess’s Theatre, Melbourne, opened, 1854.

Olympic Theatre, Melbourne, opened, 1855.

Old Theatre Royal, Melbourne, opened, 1855.

Prince Bartolo-meo (first Fijian entertain-
ment) appeared at Victoria Theatre, May 30,1857.

Prince of Wales Theatre, Melbourne, opened,
1858.

Professor Bushell (first electro-biologist)
appeared at Victoria Theatre, August 15, 1859.

Prince of Wales Theatre, Sydney, destroyed
by fire, October 3, 1860.

Haymarket Theatre, Melbourne, opened, 1863,
burnt, September, 1871.

Prince of Wales Opera House,
burnt, January 6, 1872.

New Theatre Royal, Bourke-street, Melbourne,
burnt, March 20, re-opened, November 9, 1872.

Opera House, Melbourne, opened, 1872.

New Theatre Royal opened at Wellington,
N.Z., February 13, 1873.

Theatre Royal (built on the site of the old
Prince of Wales Theatre), Castlereagh-street,
Sydney, opened December 11, 1875.

Academy of Music, Melbourne, opened, 1876.

Theatre Royal, Adelaide, opened April, 1878.

[See Drama; also Music.]

THEATRICAL STARS.

Gustavus Vaughan Brooke born at Hardwick
Place, Dublin, April, 25, 1818; was intended
for the bar, but abandoned it for the stage, on
which he made his first appearance, at the age
of fifteen, during Easter week of 1833, per-
forming the part of William Tell at the Theatre
Royal, Dublin. After the visual dramatic
educational career in the British provinces, he
performed in London, at first principally at the
Surrey and Saddler’s Wells theatres, provoking
much adverse criticism from the press, com-
bined with sound advice, which he judiciously
followed, at the same time devoting his atten-
tion to aclosestudy of alarge round of characters,
till his style became so improved and matured
as to stamp him as one of the leading actors of
the day. He arrived in Melbourne in 1855,
whither his reputation had preceded him, and
played several engagements there as well as in
Sydney, and the leading cities of Australia.
He was considered to be the greatest Shake-
sperian actor of hisday; andincertain characters,
as well as in Irish comedy, was without a rival.
He was drowned when returning to pay another
visit to Australia in the “London,” in the Bay
of Biscay, Jan. 10, 1866. Mr. Brooke was married
to the no less celebrated actress Avonia Jones.

John Gordon Griffiths was born in Shropshire,
England, in August, 1810, and shortly after
leaving school joined a dramatic company. He
became a member of the celebrated McKay's
company, and was next with Mr. Alexander,
of Glasgow. It was with these managers that
he obtained that intimate knowledge of lowland

Sydney,



THROSBY—TICHBORNE.

manners and language which made him so
successful in Scottish dialect parts.  After
leaving Scotland he played in London, where he
met Mr. Joseph Wyatt, of the Victoria Theatre,
Sydney, who induced him to come to Australia.
He arrived in Sydney early in 184-2, and opened
in the character of Hamlet. He met with a
most determined opposition, which almost drove
him from the stage, but he secured the favour
of his enemies by an extraordinary study and
performance of Coriolanus. The management
of the Victoria Theatre was entrusted to him,
and in 1855 he became manager of the Prince of
Wales Theatre. He retired after a short time,
and took up his residence at the “ Pier Hotel,”
Manly Beach, where he died, March 4, 1857.
His representation of the characters of lago and
Falstaff are by many considered to have been
unequalled in Australia.

Francis Nesbitt McCron, better known as
Francis Nesbitt, was born in Manchester,
England, in 1809. He was educated by a
clergyman, near Cork, Ireland, and selected the
profession of surgeon. Becoming weary of
hospital experiences, he determined upon the
stage as the scene of his future labours.  After
travelling through England, and filling aleading
engagement with Mr. Alexander, of Glasgow,
his friends persuaded him to leave the stage, and
he returned to Ireland in 1840. At the end of
that year he eloped with a young lady, the
daughter of an old and respectable family, and
married her. He arrived in Port Jackson,
January 7, 1841, bringing letters of introduction
to Governor Gipps and others. Unable to obtain
employment in commercial houses, he applied to
the manager of the Victoria Theatre, who refused
an engagement; he then joined the police, but
never went on duty, for as soon as the circum-
stance became known to his friends they induced
the manager of the Victoria Theatre to allow
him to appear. His first character was Pizarro.
From that time until his death he held un-
disputed sway. He left Sydney in 1843, and
took a tour round the colonies, and in 184-8 he
sailed for San Francisco, where, after a success-
ful season, he went to the gold diggings. He
returned to Sydney in 1852, and after perform-
ing a short time went to Victoria, and whilst
acting in Geelong in William Tell, was carried
from the stage in an almost insensible condition,
and conveyed to the hospital, where he died,
in 1853, aged 44 years. He was buried in the
cemetery at Geelong, where Mr. G. V. Brooke,
in 1856, placed a monument over his grave.

Charles Horace Frisbee Young was born in
the City of Doncaster, April 5 1819. His
parents followed the profession of the drama,
and it was with them he studied until he made
his first bow to a London audience in the
character of Little Pickle in the Spoiled Child,
and Young Norval, in the tragedy of Douglass,
and subsequently in the character of Noah
Claypole, in Oliver Twist. He spent four or
five years at sea, on the coast of England, in the
navy and mercantile marine. In 1843 he arrived
in Australia as second officer of a ship, and
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meeting there his sister, Mrs. G. H. Rogers,
wife of G. H. Rogers, comedian, this decided
his future career, and he determined to remain
and follow the fortunes of the drama. His first
appearance was made at Hobart Town, at the
Victoria Theatre, in the character of Michael, in
William Tell. He became lessee of the Queen's
Theatre, Melbourne, in 1851, having for a
partner Mr. J. P. Hydes. In 1857 he returned
to England and performed at the Strand,
Saddler's Wells, the Royal Lyceum, and finally
at St. James’ Theatre. He left England, May
28, 1861, and arrived in Melbourne, August 18,
1861, appearing at the Theatre Royal as Squire
Wannop, in A Friend in Need. He performed
also at the Prince of Wales Theatre, in Sydney,
and was leading comedian when that theatre
was destroyed by fire. He died at his residence,
William-street, Sydney, January 29, 1874. As
a “ low comedian,” he was one of the finest
representatives that ever appeared on the stage,
his Beppo and like characters being unrivalled.

THROSBY, CHARLES. Appointed medical
officer at Castle Hill, and a magistrate of the
territory of New South Wales, October 18, 1802.
Discovered Throsby's Country Bong Bong, 1817.
Returned from a highly successful tour of dis-
covery, April, 1821.

TICHBORNE, Sir Roger Charles Doughty,
alias Orton.

As the history of this extraordinary character
presents so many features of interest to the
people of Australia, where he resided for many
years of his life, the following narrative, from
his own arrigavic, will be considered as useful
for reference:—

“ 1 resided with my parents at Paris from the
date of my birth until the year 1845, when |
was brought over to this country, and was
shortly afterwards placed at Stoneyhurst College,
Lancashire, where I received my English educa-
tion.

“ In the month of July, 1849, | was appointed
cornet, and subsequently lieutenant, in Her
Majesty’s 6th Dragoon Guards (Carabineers). 1
joined that regiment in the month of October,
1849, at Dublin, where it was then quartered,
and remained on duty with the regiment from
the month of October, 1849, until the month of
January, 1853 (except during temporary leave of
absence). | retired from the regiment in the
month of February, 1853.

“ During my vacations from college, and while
on leave of absence from my regiment, I usually
resided, from the year 1845 until | left this
country to travel in foreign parts, as hereinafter
mentioned, with my uncle, the said Sir Edward
Doughty, at Tichborne Park, the family seat of
the Tichbornes; and | was in the habit of
shooting over the Tichborne estates and hunting
in that neighbourhood, and I gave up much of
my time to field sports and the management of
horses.

“ 1 left my regiment with the object of travel-
ling for some years in distant parts, and in the
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first instance | determined to proceed to South
America. In the month of March, 1853, | took
passage on board a ship bound for Valparaiso,
where | arrived in due course, and from that
time until the month of April, 1854, | travelled
from place to place in various parts of South
America.

“In the month of April, 1854, the ship
‘Bella,’ of Liverpool, Captain Birkett, master,
was at the port of Rio de Janeiro, and learning
that she was bound, and shortly intended to
leave that port, for New York, | took my
passage by the ‘Bella' for that city. The
‘Bella’ left the port of Rio on the morning of
the 20th day of April, 1854, with myself on
board, and proceeded on her voyage. To the best
of my recollection and belief, when she left Rio
the crew of the 'Bella’ (including the captain)
consisted of about seventeen persons, | being
the only passenger on board.

“*All went well until the fourth day after the
‘ Bella’' had left Rio, and was far out of sight
of land, but on the morning of that day the
mate reported to the captain that she had
sprung a leak, and all hands were instantly set
to work at the pumps, and every effort was
made to save the ship, but without effect.
Very shortly after the mate had reported the
leak, it became apparent that the vessel was
fast filling with water, and the captain an-
nounced that all further efforts to save the ship
were useless, and that all on board must instantly
take to the boats.

“The ‘Bella’ carried a longboat on deck,
and two smaller boats, one of which was slung
from the davits on each quarter. One of the
small boats was stove in and rendered useless,
but the crew succeeded in safely lowering upon
the sea the long-boat and the other boat, which
was the larger of the two small ones, herein-
after referred to as the ‘second boat’; and,
stowing some provisions and casks of water
into the boats, I, and to the best of my recol-
lection and belief, eight of the crew, gotinto the
second boat, and the captain, and to the best of
my recollectionand belief, the restof the crew, got
into the longboat, and immediately pushed off
from the ‘Bella,” and the ship ‘Bella’ soon
afterwards sank.

“ The captain, who had in the longboat the
ship’s charts, ordered that the second boat
should keep in sight of the longboat, which she
did for two days, but in the night of the second
day a high wind and storm came on, and the
boats were soon out of sight of each other, and
the longboat was not again seen by those in the
second boat. The man who had the command
of the second boat then determined to let her
drift with the wind. On the morning of the
fourth day, after the ‘Bella’ had sank, the
crew of the second boat descried a ship in the
distance, and used every means to reach her and
to attract notice, and for that purpose ared
flannel shirt, which one of the crew of the boat
wore, was attached to an oar and hoisted as a
signal. Ultimately a signal was made in reply,
and the crew of that boat rowed to the ship,

TICHBORNE.

and | and the whole of the crew on board the
second boat were thus saved after we had been
three days and nights at sea in an open boat.

“ 1 was in a very exhausted state when | was
rescued, and | was for some time seriously ill on
board the ship that saved me, but | was landed
at the port of Melbourne, in Australia, about
the end of July, 1854.

“1 had saved nothing from the ‘Bella,’
except the clothes | wore, and when | landed at
Melbourne | had no means whatever there for
my support.

“ On the first day | landed the captain of the
ship which brought me to Melbourne took me to
an office, which I believe was the Custom-house,
and had a conversation with some person there
as to what should be done for me; but nothing
was arranged except that I should be allowed to
sleep on board the ship that night, which I ac-
cordingly did. Before returning to the ship the
captain and | together called at an office and
made inquiries for the purpose of ascertaining
how I could get apassage to England, but with-
out any useful result. 1 learnt that Melbourne
was then in a very unsettled state, in conse-
quence of the gold mania; that the crews of
ships, as they arrived, very frequently deserted
for the gold diggings; and that there was, con-
sequently, great difficulty in procuring a passage
to England. There were a great number of
ships then in the port unable to start for want
of hands.

“ On the day after I first landed at Melbourne
I was strolling about the town, and went into
a yard called Row's yard, situate in Bourke-
street, Melbourne, where a large number of
horses were being sold. | was much attracted
by what was taking place, and a person, whom
| afterwards discovered to be Mr. William
Foster, an extensive stockkeeper, of Gipps-
land, spoke to me, and, after ascertaining that |
was a good rider, offered to take me with him to
Gippsland, where there was good hunting and
shooting.

“ I accepted such offer, and for family reasons
I assumed the name of Thomas Castro (after
that of a friend named Don Thomas Castro,
whose acquaintance | had made at Mellipilla, in
Chili), and I continued to use, and was known
in Australia by, the name of Thomas Castro,
until shortly prior to my return to England, as
hereinafter mentioned.

“ 1 immediately afterwards left Melbourne
with Mr. Foster and his horses, and proceeded
to Mr. Foster’s station, at Boisdale, in Gipps-
land, on the Avon River, nearly 300 miles
from Melbourne, where | remained about 19
months. Mr. Foster then gave me charge of
the Dargo station, in the Australian Alps, about
115 miles further inland, where | remained
for about 18 months, and then returned to
Boisdale, when, after staying for about three
months, | travelled about and remained at vari-
ous places, as in the 38th paragraph of my said
bill mentioned.

“ On the 29th day of January, 1865, | inter-
married with Mary Ann Bryant, spinster. |
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property under deed wishes to have it placed
under the Act he takes his deeds, which are his
title to the property, to the office. The deeds
are carefully examined by the solicitors to the
Lands Titles’ Commissioners; and if there is no
difficulty, and after all due publicity is given
and precautions taken topreventfraudormistake
a certificate is issued, and the old deeds are can-
celled. From the moment the land is brought
under the Act and a certificate is granted, the
title of the person holding the certificate
becomes indefeasible, unless it has been fraudu-
lently obtained; and he can hold the property
against the world.

“Provision is made for errors that may possibly
occur, by which persons may be damnified or
deprived of their property. Even though a
wrong may have been done, yet an innocent
holder of a certificate cannot be dispossessed of
his property. But to compensate persons who
may through error or fraud have been deprived
of their property, an assurance fund has been
created by a percentage of one half-penny in the
pound being levied on all property brought under
the Act. This fund now amounts to between
£30,000 and £40,000, and all the claims that
have been made upon it during the seventeen
years the Act has been in operation do not
amount to £300, which is a sufficient proof of
the carefulness exercised in the examination of
old titles before the certificate is issued in the
first instance.

“Since this Act came into operation all land
grants issued from the Crown have been regis-
tered under it, and a large amount of property
formerly held under deed is now registered.
Confidence in the Act has gradually grown up.
The lawyers very soon withdrew active opposi-
tion, and the simplicity of the scheme com-
mended it even to the legal mind. Up to the
close of 1874 the value of the property brought
under the operation of the Act, including land
grants, was £9,260,186. The benefit to the
community of having a cheap, simple, and ex-
peditious method of dealing with land is incal-
culable. Mr. Dudley Field, the well-known
American jurist, who was recently on a visit to
his daughter, the wife of Governor Musgrave,
of South Australia, expressed his great admira-
tion at the simplicity of our Real Property Act,

TOWN HALL—TRADE.

which was much in advance of any system of
dealing with real estate with which he was
acquainted. The Act has been amended more
than once, to render it more workable, but its
essential principles have been jealously guarded.

‘* Soon after it was set into healthy operation
Mr. Torrens obtained leave from the Government
of S.A. to visit the neighbouring colonies at their
request to explain and help to initiate this Act,
and now all the colonies have adopted the Tor-
rens's Act of registration of title. The principle
of the Act has also been accepted by the first
jurists at home, where several attempts have
been made to get it into legal operation. Lord
Westbury’'s Act was a step towards it, but it
had some serious defects which have prevented
itbeing a success.  There is no doubt that it is
much easier to introduce the system into new
colonies where titles are easily traced, than into
old countries where, during the lapse of genera-
tions, they have become complicated.”

TOWN HALL.

Adelaide. Foundation stone laid by the
Governor, Sir Dominick Daly, May 4, 1864;
opened June 20, 1865. Cost £25,000.

Brisbane, cost £28,000; opened 1865.

Melbourne. Memorial stone laid by Prince
Alfred, November 29, 1867; opened August 9,
1870. [Length of great hall, 175 feet; width,
5 feet; height of tower, 140 feet. Organ largest
in Australia; 4,500 pipes; cost £7,000.— Total
cost, £100,000.]

Sydney. Foundation stone of the Town Hall
laid by Prince Alfred, 1868; opened July 1,
1875. Cost £80,000.

TRACTION ENGINE. The *“ Mageathon,”
traction engine, reached Goulburn, after a six
months journey. January, 1861. [The bad
state of the roads, owing to heavy and continu-
ous rains, was said to have caused the delay.
B. H. Palmer was the owner.]

TRADE. The “ Philadelphia,” Captain Patrick-
son, was the first trading brig which ever
entered Port Jackson. She came from Phila-
delphia, North America, and carried a large
stock of goods, which were quickly disposed of
by the captain at a high profit. Nov. 1, 1792.

Table showing the Trade of Australasia and New Zealand.
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The following return of the writs for the
election of the representative members of the
first Legislative Council of the Colony were
published in the Government Gazette of October
29. 1851:—

Governor La Trobe appointed, subject to Her
Majesty’s confirmation, the following non-elec-
tive members to the Legislative Council, being
one-third of the total number, November 3,
1851.

Official

William Foster Stawell.. Attorney General.

William Lonsdale. . . . Colonial Secretary.

Charles Hotson Ebden.. Auditor General.

Redmond Barry. . Solicitor General.

Robert William Pohlman Master-in-Equity.

Non-Official.
Alexander Cunningham Wallace Dunlop.
Charles James Griffith.
William Clarke Haines.
James Hunter Ross.
Andrew Russell.

The first Legislative Council
Victoria:—

(elective) of

The first Legislative Assembly under respon-
sible Government:—

Circuit Courts for the first time appointed to
be holden at Geelong and Portland, March 18,
1852.

The “ Nelson " boarded in Hobson's Bay and
8,183 ozs. of gold stolen, April 2, 1852.

The local Government determined to have a
guard-ship stationed in Hobson’s Bay, April 9,
1852.

£160 per ton paid for cartage of stores to Ben-
digo, 100 miles from Melbourne, June 16, 1852.

The “ Chusan” (first steamship from England)
arrived in Hobson's Bay, July 28, 1852.

Hugh Culling Eardley Childers nominated
Auditor General of Victoria in place of C. H.
Ebden, resigned, October 26, 1852.



286

H. C. E. Childers appointed Collector of
Customs in Victoria in place of Mr. Cassells,
resigned, December 14, 1853.

Registration of Births, Deaths, and Marriages
Bill passed, January 11, 1853.

The Western Market, Melbourne, destroyed
by fire, January 23, 1853.

New Registration system first put into opera-
tion by Mr. Archer, July 1, 1853.

The private escort between Mclvor and
Castlemaine attacked and the gold stolen, July
20, 1853. The robbers of the Mclvor escort
captured, three weeks after the robbery, August
11, 1853. Trial and conviction of the Mclvor
escort robbers, September 18, 1853.

The 40th Regiment (Colonel Valiant) ordered
to Bendigo gold-field, September 2, 1853.

The marines from H.M.S. “ Electric " landed
to do duty at the gaol and Government offices,
September 3, 1853.

The 99th Regiment arrived at Melbourne from
Van Diemen’s Land, September 15, 1853.

First bills of mortality for Melbourne pub-
lished by Mr. Archer, acting Registrar-General,
October 24, 1853.

Great fire in Collins-street, Melbourne, Octo-
ber 28, 1853.

According to the latest computation, the area
of Victoria is 88,198 square miles, or 56,446,720
acres. The whole continent of Australia is esti-
mated to contain 2,983,264 square miles, and
therefore Victoria occupies about a thirty-fourth
part of its surface. 1879.

[See Constitution,
Partiamentary, &c., &c.]

Courts, Mineralogy,

VINES.

First grape vines planted in Australia, at
Parramatta, November, 1791.

The first vineyard in Australia was at Camden
Park, belonging to Mr. Macarthur, the first im-
porter of sheep, 1816.

The Agricultural Society lent its aid to en-
courage the growth of the vine, which began to
draw general attention in 1823.

Mr. Skene Craig introduced the grape vine
into Victoria, 1836. [His vineyard was planted
in Collins-street West, Melbourne.]

Six German vine-dressers brought to N.S.W.
by Sir Wm. Macarthur, 1839.

[See W ine.]

VITAL STATISTICS.

Proportion of Males to Females

Males. Females.
New South Wales. 347,869 281,907
New Zealan 225,580 173,495
Queensland 113,883 73,217
South Australia. 117,208 108,469
Tasmania 55,633 49,851
Western Austral; 16,166 11,155
Victoria .. 467,741 393,046

Note.—It will be seen by the above table that the
greatest disproportion exists in Queensland.

VINES—VITAL STATISTICS.

Death Rate in Australia and A ustralasia,

1873 to 1876.

Number of Deaths per 1,000 of Mean Population.

Year.
: . Australia with Tasmania
Continent of Australia. and New Zealand.

1873 14«43 140
1874 1593 1586
1875 1968 1843
1876 1742 1687

1699 1644

Note.—The death rate in the United Kingdom averages.
21«6 per thousand of the population during these years.

Death Rates in European Countries,

1865 to 1875.

Number of Deaths per 1,000 of Mean Population.

Excess of Births over Deaths in Austra-

1873 to 1876.

tasian Colonies,

Excess of Births over Deaths.

Colony.

Mean of
Four
Years.

1873. 1874. 1875. 1876.

per  per per per per
cent.  cent.
New South Wales----- 182 156 109 108 134
New Zealand. 2

Queensland. 154 128 63 99 104
South Australia 170 124 84 132 123
Tasmani 103 49 82 77
Victoria 144 119 5 97 106

Western Austral



VOLUNTEERS.

Excess of Births over Deaths in European

Countries.

Population of Australia and Australasia,

1876.

British Dominions—Area and Population.

Order of Colonies in reference to equality
of Sexes.
South Australia.
Tasmania.
Victoria.
New South Wales.

New Zealand.
Queensland.
Western Australia.
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According to the figures in the previous table, there were
on the Continent of Australia at the end of 1876 nearly two
millions of inhabitants, and in Australasia, including not
only the continental colonies but also Tasmania and New
Zealand, there were more than two million four hundred
thousand. The exact numbers, as well as the proportions
of the sexes and of persons to the square mile, were as
follows:— Populati

ion
"t the

Square Mile.
2025
3804

New South Wales.
New Zealand .
Queensland...
South Australi
Tasmania.
Victoria
Western Austral

Death Rates in Australasian Colonies, 1866

to 1876.
Number of Deaths per 1,000 of Mean
Population.
Year. £ 2 < ] . g
P k] = g < =
38 35 % €% § £ =%
s 35 § 2% E 2 2%
z & 17 g 8%
= g 8 o3 g g 23
§ > z £ > <
(o4
1866 17-47 12-86 25-67 17-20 1379 19-37

1867 19-64 12-78 17-80
1868 15-83 11-94 17-36 14-41 14-70 15-00
1869 14-05 11-73 1620
1870 13-27 11-13 14-59 13-94 13-88 14-68

1871 12-54 10-13 14-83 12-87 13-38 13-43

1872 14-11 11-68 14-97 1533 13-79 14-23 14-02
1873 13-84 12-67 1606 13-48 14-52 14-74 16-24
1874 1512 13-05 17-98 17-05 1621 15-30 18-74
1875 18-09 15-92 23-80 19-45 20-00 18-76 17-88
1876 18-11 12-66 18-82 16-28 16-54 16-33 14-18

15-64 |12-41 18-01 15-44 1495 15-92 16-21

VOLUNTEER, and other FORCES.

The first Volunteers in Australia were the
Sydney and Parramatta Loyal Associate Corps;
two Volunteer Corps of fifty men each, formed
in consequence of rumoured outbreak amongst
the political prisoners, December, 1800.

The services of the Loyal Association at
Sydney and Parramatta were partially dispensed
with. Captain Thomas Rowley, late of New
South Wales Corps, had charge of the Sydney;
James Thomson of the Parramatta; and Wm.

Balmain was commandant of both. October
22, 1802.
Volunteer movement commenced in Queens-

land, February 15, 1860.

Great Volunteer Review at Geelong, Victoria,
April, 1870.

The Highland Brigade Rifle Corps formed at
Wellington, N.Z., April, 1871.

Volunteer encampment, New South Wales,
April 10, 1873.

Intercolonial Rifle Match between New South
Wales, Victoria, and New Zealand, won by
New South Wales, November 12, 1873.

Sydney Grammar School Cadet encampment
at Botany, 1874.
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3rd Regiment (Western.)
Major Commanding.

William Hillier Holborow, May 13, 1874.
Captains.
Henry Byrnes, February 14, 1871.

Alfred Paul, March 3, 1873,

William John Joseph Dignam, July 31, 1874.

William Farmer Linsley, June 3, 1876.
1st Lieutenants.

Edwin Curtis, May 20, 1873.

Henry Blackshaw, September 12, 1874.

Charles Septimus Guest, October 30, 1874,
2nd Lieutenants.

James Cassidy, November 4, 1878.

Thomas Barnett, November 4, 1878.

Edward Gillespie, November 4, 1878.
Adjutant Permanent Staff.

C. G. Norris, late Capt. 80 F., October 28, 1878.

Northern District.
Major Commanding.
Charles Bolton, July 4, 1870.
Captains.
Alexander Wilkinson, May 17, 1869.
Henry Joseph Brown, July 7, 1870.
1st Lieutenants.
Charles Falkner Bartlett, March 12, 1875.
William Arnott, August 19, 1871.
2nd Lieutenants.
James Thomas Tegg, May 17,1869.
Charles Frederick Stokes, November 4, 1878,
William John Sloan (Super.), November 4, 1878.

Infantry. (Southern District.)
1st Lieutenant.
Thomas Henry, December 10, 1874.
2nd Lieutenant.
Dixon King, November 4, 1878.

Medical Staff.
Principal Medical Officer.

George Frederick Dansey, July 17, 1875.
Surgeon.

Patrick M'Donagh, January 21, 1878.

Head Quarters Band
Director.
George Douglas Callen, Lieut., June 9,1876 (deceased
May, 1879.)

VOLUNTEERS. (Old Organization.)
Honorary Staff.
Chaplains.

Rev. G. F. Macarthur, June 8, 1868.

Rev. Thos. Smith, July 4, 1868.

Rev. Joseph Barnier, August 27, 1869.

Rev. Thos. McCarthy, March 15,1870.

Rev. J. Cameron, June 15, 1874.

Arti

lery Brigade.

aptains.

William Cooper, October 19, 1868.

C. A. W. Lett, April 5, 1870.

Henry Deane, May 1, 1871.

Chas. Henry Myles, December 11, 1875.
st Lieutenants.

T. B. Frith, August 1, 1871.

W. H. Simpson, June 10, 1873.
2nd Lieutenant.

W. Houston, April 26, 1872.
Adjutant.

W. W. Spalding, September 11, 1875.

Infantry—1st Regiment.
Captains.
J. J. Davey, September 3, 1868.
John Cooper, March 8, 1876.
Lieutenants.
J. C. Fisher, October 3, 1872
T. B. Walcot, June 9, 1873.

(Head Quarters.)

Ensigns.
W. L. Davis, September 3, 1875.
J. H. Maddocks, April 10, 1876.
Surgeon.
G. J. Pattison, July 17, 1875.

2nd Regiment.
Ensigns.
George Hamilton, December 4, 1874.
T. Moore, February 7, 1877.
Q.M. H. E. Tidswell, (Ens.) April 16, 1875.
Surg. C. K. Mackellar, November 30, 1872.
Hony. A. S. James Smith, January 12, 1869.

(Head Quarters.)

3rd Regiment. (Western.)

Caplalns
C.

‘Lachlan, September 12, 1873,
G Davidson, July 31, 1874,
J. H. Thomas, October 9, 1875.
Lieutenants.
James Dalton, September 12, 1873.
W. F. Woods, July 31, 1874.
Ensigns.
W. N. Moulder, September 12, 1873
Hony. A.S. C. E. Rowling, September 30, 1875.
4th Regiment. (Northern.)
Captain.
G. T. Loder, July 7, 1869.
Lieutenant.
H. P. Stacy, July 9, 1869.
Ensigns.
A. J. Gould, May 9, 1873
Q.M. E. J. Webb, capt., December 8, 1878.
Hony A'S. Glennie, July 13, 1869.
A. K. Morson, August 19, 1871.
5th Regiment. (Southern.)
ajor.
John Black, January 23, 1872
Captains.
P. H. Sheaffe, November 19, 1869.
D. L. Dymock, January 30, 1874.
Lieutenants.
William Millard, November 19, 1869.
George Woods, January 5, 1877
Ensigns.
James Cork, February 2, 1875.
Hon. A.S. W. S. Thomas, September 6, 1872.

Return showing the effective strength of the Regular and
Volunteer Military Forces of the Colony.













































WESLEYAN.

Gillingham, John, Angaston...
Hanton, Walter H., Yarcowie
James, Johnson, Auburn
Martin, Thomas W., Templers
Mills John N., Minlaton o
Moncrieffe, Samuel S., Yorke Town. . . .
Watts, John, Adelalde Pirie-street..

Tasmania.

Mssions.—Methodist Circuit Aid and Extension Fund.

Secretary.

Rev. H. M oore... ..Westbury.

Tasmanian Auxillary Foreign Missions.

Secretary.

Rev. F. E. Stephenson..... ...Campbell Tow.a.

Victoria.
Adams, John, Elmore..
Adamson, Samuel, Walhalla.
Adamson, Thomas, Daylesford
Albiston, Joseph, Warnambool.
Angwin, Thomas, Albury
Annear, David, Maryborough. . .
Baker, Henry, Melbourne (Hawthorn) . 1861
Bath, Henry, Ballarat (Lydiard-: street)
Batten, William, Traralgon.
Bennett, William H., Searsdale

Bickford, Edmund S., Sandhurst, (Eaglehawk).. 1867
Binks, William L., Melbuurne (Wesley Church).. 1843
Blamires, William L., Melbourne (Brunswick-
street) 1858
Bromilow, William Horsham. . 1878
Brown, Ralph, Melbourne (Brunswnck) . 1865

Brown, Robert, Deloraine.
Brown, William, Belfast
Bullas, M., Merino
Burridge, William, Blac
Butters, William (Supernumerary)
Carey, Jesse, Castlemaine .
Catterall, John, Kyneton
Christie, Robert W., Sale .
Cooke, R. Osborne, St. Arnaud
Cowperthwaite, J., Mersey. .
Cox, Edward T., St. K ilda .
Crisp, James W., Emerald Hi g
Dare, Joseph, Melbourne (Brunswick-street)..
Davies, Edward, Seymour ...
De Garis, E. Clement, Kyabram .
Dodgson, James D., Geelong West ... 1849
Dubourg Charles, Tarnagulla 1856
Dyson, Martin, Beechworth
Edgar, Alexander Robert, Inglewood.
Eggleston, J., (Supernumerary), Brigl on
her, Rlchard Geelong East
Fitchett, William H., B.A., Sandhurst.
Flockart, Robert C., Clunes. .
Graham, James, Ham ilton. .
Greenwood, Henry, (Supernumerary). . . 1865
Grewar, Archibald, Wangaratta

Grove, Thomas, Echuca
Harcourt, John, Sale....
Hart, Richard, Stawell .
Heyward, George T., (Supernumerary). 1865
Horsley, John F., Melbourne (North Melbourne)
Hutchison, James. Portland 1846
Hutchison, Henry K., Omeo..
Ingamells, Charles H., Drysdale
Ingham, J. H A., Steiglitz (Egerton). . . .
Inglis, Andrew, Heathcote

Ironside, Samuel, (Supernumerary), Melbourne
Kane, Thomas, Ararat

King, Edward, Williamstown

Knee, Orlando, Mortlake

Lancaster, Charles, Brighton

Leslie, J., Penshurst

nghtbody, William, (Supernumerary), Portland
Lindsay, David S., Berwick

Lowe, David S., Sandhurst

Lowe, James, Port Albert

M'Cann, Jonathan P., Sunbury

Macdoughall, John C., Ballarat East

Marsland, James A., Avoca

Merriman, Henry E., Wandiligong

Millard, John G., Geelong East

Moore, Henry, Westhuw

Neale, Francis, Melbourne (Carlton)

Nye, Edward W., Creswick

Pemell, John P., (Supernumerary), Coburg
Powell, Arthur, Horsham

Philp, Robert, Melbourne (Footscray)

Presley, William, Rutherglen

Quich, William A., Ballarat East

Reid, William, El Dorado

Rigg, Alfred, Ballarat (Sevastopol)

Robin, James de Q., M.A., Geelong West

Royce, James S. H, Colac

Saloway, Henry, Benalla

Schofield, George, Kilmore

Seccombe, John, Talbot and Amhurst

Smith, John B., South Yarra

Symons, John C., (Supernumerary), St. Kilda
Taylor, Ebenezer, Home Mission, Collingwood
Thomas, Edward, Alexandra

Tuchfield, James W., Maldon

Tuchfield, J. H., Yackandandah

Turner, Josiah G., (Supernumerary)

Usher, Peter R. C., Preston

Waterhouse, Joseph, (Supernumerary) Geelong
Watkin, Edward J., St. Kild.

Watsford, John, Home Mlssmn Victoria
Watsford, James J., (Supernumerary), Melbourne
Waugh, James S., Wesley College Melbourne
Wells, William P., Emerald Hi

White, Joseph, Richmond

Williams, Spencer, Golden Square, Sandhurst
Williams, Thomas, (Supernumerary), Creswick
Williams, William, Bairnsdale

Woodall, William, (Supernumerary), Maldon
Wykes, William, Raywood

The number of Ministers in Australia in 1878:—

































[CORRECTIONS AND ADDITIONS.]

MEN OF THE TIME.

BELL, Hon.Joshua Peter. Page 15, second
column, sixth line from bottom, after the figures
“1863,” add “ accepted office as Colonial Trea-
surer in the Herbert Ministry December 22,
1864, which merged (July 20, 1866) into the
Macalister Ministry. Resigned Aug. 15, 1867.”

DICTIONARY

APPOINTMENTS, Early
Page 11, first column, for
“Wilton.”
Page 11, for “ Rossin,” read “ Rossi.”
Page 11, for “ Raynard,” read “ Raymond.”

BANKS. Provincial and Suburban Bank, Mel-
bourne, failed May 17, 1879.

CHESS.

The Intercolonial Chess Match, New South
Wales v. Victoria, was won by N.S.\W. The
scores were: N.S.W., 3 games won; Victoria,
1game won, 3 drawn. May 24 and 26, 1879.
The following is a list of the players:—

Imperial.

“ Walton” read

N. S. Wales. Victoria
Board 1. A. Chamier v. J. Stanley
2. T.J. Ryan,, A. Burns
3. G. A Russell , L.S Phillips
4. C. M. Fisher , J. Hamel
5. R. Smith . R. Stephen
6. W. Crane,, S. W. Sedgefield
7. H. Ott » L. Goldsmith
CRIMES.

Weiberg, robber of the “ Avoca” gold, recap-
tured by the Victorian police, May 18, 1879.

Attempted robbery of the Walgett (N.S.W.)
mail, May 16, 1879.

EXECUTIONS.
from 1864 to 1874

The following are the returns

GOLD.

Page 110, second column, line 17,for “ Endea-
vour” read “ Palmer.”

Page 110, second column, line 26,for “ largest”
read “ second largest.”

Gold.—Palmer River.—The quantity of
gold which has been obtained from the Palmer
River since its discovery by James V. Mulligan

TYRRELL, The Right Rev. w irriam, D.D.,
Bishop of Newcastle, died (see page 207) in
“ Morpeth,” not “ Newcastle.”

WALKER, Rev. James, M.A. Page 211
last line, second column, after the word “ eaten,
add “ by cattle.”

OF DATES.

and party, in June, 1873, has been very large.
Between June and December 1873, all the gold
that was obtained on the Palmer—and there
were during that period from 4 to 5,000 miners
on the field, all doing well—was brought to
Charters Towers and Townsville, and that gold-
field and port were of course, accredited with
the gold, and it was not till the establishment
of a Custom House at the then newly discovered
port of Cooktown, in December, 1873, that any
of the gold from the Palmer was brought to the
latter port.

The following is an official statement of gold
exports at Cooktown:—

Gold exported from Cleveland Bay from open
ing of the port until the end of the year 1878—

HONOURS.
Ferdinand Von Mueller, K.C.M.G. 1879.
Colonel Peter H. Scratchley, C.M.G. 1879.
P. A. Jennings, C.M.G. 1879.
Christopher Rolleston, C.M.G. 1879.

Maj.-Gen. Edward W. Ward, K.C.M.G. 1879.
Edward Stafford, K.C.M.G. 1879.

William Fox, K.C.M.G. 1879.

George Bentham, C.M.G. 1879.

Edward Richardson, C.M.G. 1879.

William Larnach, C.M.G. 1879.
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THE CITY BANK,

SYDNEY.

PAID-UP CAPITAL - £240,000.

W ith power to increase to £ 500.000.



S HOFFNUNG & (0.



GORDON & GOTCH,



SELECT CATALOGUE of NEW and STANDARD WORKS in every department
of Literature, 420 pages, demy 8vo.; price 1s.; post 2s.

Catalogue of CHEAP NOVELS, gratis, post free.

Catalogue of SCHOOL and COLLEGE BOOKS, gratis, post free.
Catalogue of MUSICAL PUBLICATIONS, gratis, post free.
Catalogue of MEDICAL WORKS, gratis, post free.

Catalogue of JUVENILE BOOKS, suitable for School Prizes, Christmas Presents,
and Birthday Gifts, gratis, post free.

Catalogue of ROMAN CATHOLIC WORKS, gratis, post free.

J J.. MOORE & CO,

GEORGE STREET, SYDNEY.

LICENSED LAND BROKER,

GOVERNMENT & OTHER SALES ATTENDED.
PURCHASE OF CREDIT SELECTIONS COMPLETED.
ALL BUSINESS UNDER REAL PROPERTY ACT TRANSACTED.

LOANS NEGOTIATED.

ADELAIDE.



F. LASSETTER & CO.

(LIMITED.)

WHOLESALE, RETAIL & EXPORT

421 GEORGE STREET, SYDNEY.

F. LASSETTER & CO. (LIMITED.)



C. JERREMES,

STATIONER AND BOOKBINDER,
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